
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Billy Bain 
Councilman George V. Lob 

Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 

Decorum: "Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous 
while addressing the City Council, shall be barred from further audience before the City 
Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is 
granted by the majority vote of the City Council members present. In accordance with the 
foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, personal attacks and 
comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the 
podium". 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

Monday, December 9, 2013- 7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers - City Hall 

201 Westward Drive - Miami Springs 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

2. Invocation: Councilman Lob 

Salute to the Flag: Students from Miami Springs Middle School will lead the audience 
in the Pledge of Allegiance and Salute to the Flag 

3. Awards & Presentations: 

A) Certificate of Recognition to the Anchor Club for their Assistance with the 
Butterfly Garden 

4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign 
the register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins 

City Council Regular Meeting Monday, December 9, 2013 

1 



5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

A) 11-12-2013 - Regular Meeting 

6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: 

A) 11-19-2013- Education Advisory Board- Minutes 

B) 12-02-2013- Zoning and Planning Board- Cancellation Notice 

C) 12-02-2013 -Board of Adjustment- Cancellation Notice 

D) 12-03-2013- Code Enforcement Board- Cancellation Notice 

7. Public Hearings: 

A) Second Reading - Ordinance No. 1060-2013 - An Ordinance of the City 
Council of the City Of Miami Springs Repealing And Deleting Article XIV, Mixed 
Use District, And Code of Ordinance Sections 150-145 through 150-153 in their 
Entirety; Reserving Article XIV and Code Sections 150-145 through 150-153 for 
Future Use; Repealing all Ordinances or Parts of Ordinances in Conflict; 
Directions to the Codifiers; Providing an Effective Date 

8. Consent Agenda: 

A) Approval of the City Attorney's Invoice for November 2013 in the Amount of 
$12,453.75. 

B) Recommendation that Council Approve a Change Order to Wrangler 
Construction Inc., Utilizing Village of Palmetto Bay Bid 2011-PW-102, in the 
Amount of $2,267.50 for Additional Sidewalk Improvements@ Hammond Drive 
due to Unforeseen Work that Needed to be Done to Meet City Code, Pursuant 
to Section 31.11 (F)(11 )(b) of the City Code 

C) Recommendation that Council Approve a Change Order to South Florida 
Maintenance in the Amount of $21,060.00, Amending the Current Contract 
Previously Approved by Council, Effective October 1, 2013, for Maintenance of 
the Common areas Surrounding the Recreation Parks, Pursuant to Section 31.11 
(F)(11 )(c) of the City Code 

D) Recommendation that Council Award City RFP #01-13/14 and Approve the 
Execution of a Contract to Greens Grade Services, Inc., the Only Responsible 
Bidder, in the Amount of $425,636.64, on an "As Needed Basis" for Golf 
Course Labor Services for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, Pursuant to Section 
31.11(E)(1) of the City Code 

City Council Regular Meeting Monday, December 9, 2013 

2 



8. Consent Agenda: (continued) 

E) Recommendation that Council Waive the Competitive Bid Process and Approve 
an Expenditure of $15,111.00, on an "As Needed Basis" to Southern Waste 
Systems for Garbage and Recycling Collection Including All City Buildings with 
Various Pickups a Week for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, Pursuant to Section 
31.11(E)(6)(g) of the City Code and Pursuant to the Contract Renewal Option 
Provided by the City's Existing Contract/Contract Vendor for an Additional One 
(1) Year Period 

F) Recommendation that Council Approve an Expenditure to US Lubricants LLC, 
the Lowest Responsible Quote, in the Amount of $25,000.00, on an "As 
Needed Basis" for Fuel for the Maintenance Equipment for the Golf Course for 
Fiscal Year 2013-2014, Pursuant to Section 31.11(C)(2) of the City Code 

G) Purchase of Network Design Services/Configuration and Hardware to Upgrade 
the Existing Voice Over IP Technology (VoiP) to Enhance Security Measures 
for the Police Phone System: 

1. Recommendation that Council Approve $1,500.00, to lTC Group, Inc., 
for Network Design/Configuration to Enhance Security Measures for the 
Police Phone System, for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, as a Sole Source 
Provider, Pursuant to Section 31.11(E)(6)(c) of the City Code, Utilizing 
Law Enforcement Trust Funds 

2. Recommendation that Council Approve an Expenditure to CDW-G, the 
Lowest Responsible Quote, in the Amount of $1,591.88, for Hardware 
Required to Enhance Security Measures for the Police Phone System, 
for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, Pursuant to Section 31.11(C)(2) of the City 
Code, Utilizing Law Enforcement Trust Funds 

9. Old Business: 

A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 

B) Okeechobee Boat Ramp Discussion 

C) Consideration of Request by Springs on the Green LLC, Principals Mr./Ms. 
Manuel Perez-Vichot, to Purchase a Sliver of City Property Adjacent to 627 
Eldron Drive in the Amount of One Hundred Fifteen Thousand Dollars 
($115,000) 

City Council Regular Meeting Monday, December 9, 2013 

3 



10. New Business: 

A) Education Advisory Board Recommendations 

1. Recommendation that the City of Miami Springs work together with 
the District to achieve the Anti-Defamation League's No Place for 
Hate status at Miami Springs Elementary School. 

2. Recommendation that the City Council work with the District in 
establishing a partnership with Miami International Airport that 
specifically leads to student internships and part-time jobs for OJT 
students from Miami Springs Senior High School and to consult Dr. 
Sean Gallagan at George T. Baker Aviation if need be. 

3. Recommendation that the City Council work with the District in 
hosting an Art Show that showcases the work of senior citizens and 
students from the Miami Springs schools. 

4. Recommendation that the City Council work with the District in 
establishing a partnership with the Miami Springs Historical Society 
so that students can benefit from innovative ways in sharing the 
history of the community. 

B) lnterlocal Agreement Between the City of Miami Springs and the Village of 
Virginia Gardens Relating to Transportation Services 

C) Intergovernmental Agency Agreement Between the City of Miami Springs and 
Miami-Dade County to Perform Traffic Engineering Functions for the Installation 
and Maintenance of Designated Types of Traffic Control Devices on Local 
Municipal Streets Regarding Starbucks/Stadnik Pedestrian Crossing on Curtiss 
Parkway 

D) Resolution No. 2013-3607 -A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Miami Springs Requesting that Miami-Dade County Approve and Authorize the 
Co-designation of the 100 to 300 Block of Curtiss Parkway Fronting Grace 
Lutheran Church at 245 Curtiss Parkway as "Pastor Schmidt Way"; Requesting 
Authorization for the Placement of Proper Recognition Signage; Effective Date 

E) Discussion Regarding Application Fees for Variance Requests to the Board of 
Adjustment and Board of Appeals 

F) Circle Closure Discussion 

11. Other Business: 

A) Scheduling of a Workshop Meeting in January 2014, to Discuss Code Revisions 

City Council Regular Meeting Monday, December 9, 2013 

4 



12. Reports & Recommendations: 

A) City Attorney 

B) City Manager 

C) City Council 

13. Adjourn 

******************************************************************************************************* 
If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of 
the proceedings and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record 
includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is made (F. S. 286.0105), all of which the City does not 
provide. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this 
proceeding should contact the City Clerk, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166. Telephone: (305) 805-5006, 
no later than (7) days prior to the proceeding. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, 
all persons, firms or corporations employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or 
modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of 
any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of City personnel during the time period of the 
entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City 
Council, or a City Board or Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms 
prepared for this purpose and shall state under oath his or her name, business address, the name and business address of 
each person or entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she has been 
employed to lobby. A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk. 

******************************************************************************************************* 

City Council Regular Meeting Monday, December 9, 2013 

5 



DRAFT 

City of Miami Springs, Florida 

The Miami Springs City Council held a REGULAR MEETING in the Council Chambers at City 
Hall on Tuesday, November 12, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order at 7:09 p.m. 

The following were present: 

Also Present: 

2. Invocation: Mayor Garcia 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Billy Bain 
Councilman Michael Windrem 
Councilman George V. Lob 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 

City Manager Ronald K. Garland 
Assistant City Manager /Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
Chief of Police Peter G. Baan 
Planning and Zoning Director James H. Holland 
Golf and Country Club Director Paul O'Dell 
Police Captain Jonathan Kahn 
Acting City Clerk Suzanne S. Hitaffer 

Salute to the Flag: Children from the audience lead the Pledge of Allegiance and 
Salute to the Flag 

The Mayor presented baseball caps to the children who participated in the salute to the flag. 

3. Awards & Presentations: 

3A) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Lieutenant Steve Carlisle 
in Recognition of 29 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami Springs 

Mayor Garcia stated that this is a very special occasion and Lieutenant Carlisle is a staple of 
this community. He asked Chief of Police Baan and fellow officers that were present to join 
him for the presentation. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Mayor Garcia presented a plaque of sincere appreciation to Lieutenant Carlisle in recognition 
of 2 9 years of dedicated service to the City of Miami Springs. 

Chief of Police 8aan commented that he has known Lieutenant Carlisle for many years. In the 
thirty years that Lieutenant Carlisle has worked for the City, he has worked hard every single 
day protecting his City. He wished him the best in his future endeavors and for being a great 
friend. The other officers who are present tonight also work just as hard as Lieutenant Carlisle 
and he thanked them for their work. 

Lieutenant Carlisle thanked Chief of Police 8aan for being a sincere friend and a good boss. 
He thanked Captain Jon Kahn for being his partner. He has enjoyed working for the City and 
thanked everyone who is present tonight and supported him. 

City Manager Garland presented Lieutenant Carlisle with a commemorative clock from the 
Administration and employees in celebration of 2 9 years of service. 

(Agenda Item 38 was discussed after Agenda Item 3D) 

38) Officer of the Month Award - October 2013 - Detective Ramon A. Tamargo 

Lieutenant Carlisle read the nomination letter. He commented that Detective Tamargo is a 
tenacious investigator. He is extremely thorough and takes great pride in his job. He 
congratulated him on the conclusion of this robbery investigation that led to the arrest of the 
subject. 

Detective Tamargo acknowledged Lieutenant Carlisle who has been his supervisor for the last 
three years. Lieutenant Carlisle has been a pleasure to work for and has taught him to be 
thorough in his work. He thanked him for everything he has done and wishes him a happy 
retirement. 

Chief of Police 8aan commented that Detective Tamargo has a few Officer of the Month 
awards. He has been a detective for three years and is doing a fabulous job. He noted that 
the victim on the case was a retired Miami Springs police officer. 

(Agenda Item 3C was discussed after Agenda Item 3A) 

3C) Yard of the Month - Oliver Pacheco and Mirella Martinez - 631 Oriole Avenue 

Mayor Garcia presented the Yard of the Month Award for November 2013 to Oliver Pacheco 
and Mirella Martinez. 

3D) Proclamation - "Jonathan Dweck Day" 

Mayor Garcia read the proclamation recognizing Miami-Dade County Police Officer Jonathan 
Dweck who risked his life by assisting a young woman who died in a tragic car accident. 

Mayor Garcia said that Vice Mayor 8ain brought this information to his attention, which he 
appreciated. He thanked Officer Dweck for his services. He specifically invited the family to the 
stage because it takes a village to raise a child and to keep the City as beautiful as it is. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 2 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Officer Dweck stated that he was raised in Miami Springs and has had the privilege to know 
most of the City Council since he was a child playing at the Recreation Center. Miami 
Springs is different from all other cities in Miami. Many citizens do not see what police officers 
do on a daily basis and they risk their lives every day. This incident happened to be 
something that was caught on camera and it could not have been done without teamwork. He 
introduced his friends and family who were present. 

(Agenda Item 38 was discussed at this time) 

4. Open Forum: 

40-Year Recertification: 449 Swallow Drive 

Beatrix Obermann of 449 Swallow Drive commented that she is here for the same reason as 
the last meeting. Nothing has happened with her situation. She went to City Manager Garland 
and did not want him to handle her situation any longer for personal reasons. She went to the 
Community Policing Office and spoke with a gentleman who has her file. She wants to know 
what Council is going to do about the situation. 

Mayor Garcia asked that Ms. Obermann to give her contact information to the City Clerk and 
he will call her tomorrow. 

5. Approval of Council Minutes: (SA and SB approved with one motion) 

5A) 10-23-2013- Special Meeting 

Minutes of the October 23, 2013 Special Meeting were approved as written. 

Vice Mayor Bain moved the item. Councilman Lob seconded the motion which was carried 
5-0 on roll call vote. 

58) 10-28-2013 - Regular Meeting 

Minutes of the October 28, 2013 Regular Meeting were approved as written. 

Vice Mayor Bain moved the item. Councilman Lob seconded the motion which was carried 
5-0 on roll call vote. 

6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: 

6A) 10-28-2013 - Board of Appeals - Minutes 

Minutes of the October 28, 2013 Board of Appeals meeting were received for information 
without comment. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 3 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



6B) 11-04-2013 - Zoning and Planning Board - Cancellation Notice 

Cancellation Notice of the November 4, 2013 Zoning and Planning Board meeting was 
received for information without comment. 

6C) 11-04-2013 - Board of Adjustment- Cancellation Notice 

Cancellation Notice of the November 4, 2013 Board of Adjustment meeting was received for 
information without comment. 

6D) 11-05-2013 - Code Enforcement Board - Cancellation Notice 

Cancellation Notice of the November 5, 2013 Code Enforcement Board meeting was received 
for information without comment. 

6E) 11-06-2013 - Architectural Review Board - Cancellation Notice 

Cancellation Notice of the November 6, 2013 Architectural Review Board meeting was 
received for information without comment. 

6F) 11-13-2013 - Golf and Country Club Advisory Board - Cancellation Notice 

Cancellation Notice of the November 13, 2013 Golf and Country Club Advisory Board meeting 
was received for information without comment. 

6G) 11-20-2013 - Board of Parks and Parkways - Cancellation Notice 

Cancellation Notice of the November 20, 2013 Board of Parks and Parkways meeting was 
received for information without comment. 

6H) 11-27-2013 - Historic Preservation Board - Cancellation Notice 

Cancellation Notice of the November 2 7, 2013 Historic Preservation Board meeting was 
received for information without comment. 

City Attorney Seiden clarified that due to the new quarterly meetings, the cancellation notices 
had been sent out so that the public was aware that there were no meetings. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 4 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



7. Public Hearings: 

7A) Second Reading -Ordinance No. 1058-2013- An Ordinance of the City Council of 
the City of Miami Springs Authorizing the Submission of a Corrected Legal Description of 
the City's Proposed Annexation Area to Miami-Dade County; Repealing all Ordinances or 
Parts of Ordinances in Conflict; Providing an Effective Date 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the ordinance by title. This is an ordinance that the City was 
asked to provide to Miami-Dade County to correct the small piece of land that was left off of 
the pre-existing legal description for annexation with the County. 

Mayor Garcia opened the public hearing to those persons wishing to speak. There were no 
speakers, and the public hearing was closed. 

Councilman Lob moved the item. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

7B) Second Reading- Ordinance No. 1059-2013- An Ordinance of the City Council of 
the City Of Miami Springs Amending the Title To Article XV; Repealing and Deleting Code 
Sections 150-154 through 150-163 of the Airport, Marine, and Highway Business District 
(AMHBD); Reserving Code Section 150-154 Through 150-163 for Future Designation and 
Use By The City; Establishing and Enacting Code of Ordinance Section 150-166, Airport 
Golf District; Providing Purpose, Designating Permitted Uses and Prohibited Uses; 
Establishing Setbacks, Density, And Bonus Regulations; Creating Height Limitations; 
Providing For Off-Street Parking and Loading; Specifying Signage; Designating 
Development Review; Establishing Exemptions; Providing Fees; Repealing All Ordinances 
or Parts of Ordinances In Conflict; Directions To Codifiers; Effective Date 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the ordinance by title. 

Mayor Garcia opened the public hearing to those persons wishing to speak. There were no 
speakers, and the public hearing was closed. 

Councilman Lob moved the item. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

8. Consent Agenda: 

SA) Approval of the City Attorney's Invoice for October 2013 in the Amount of 
$13,507.25 

City Manager Ronald K. Garland read the titles of the consent agenda items. 

There was no discussion regarding this item. 

Vice Mayor Bain moved the item. Councilman Windrem seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 5 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



8B) Recommendation that Council Approve an Expenditure to 123SecurityProducts.com, 
the Lowest Responsible Quote, in the Amount of $2,520.45, for a Samsung Digital Voice 
Recorder, Five High Resolution Cameras and Accessories, Pursuant to Section 31.11(C)(2) 
of the City Code, Utilizing Law Enforcement Trust Funds 

Vice Mayor Bain moved the item. Councilman Windrem seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

To answer Councilman Petralanda's question, Chief of Police Baan commented that the 
expenditure does include the installation. 

8C) Recommendation that Council Approve a Bid to Hub City Ford, Utilizing Florida 
Sheriffs Association Bid Award Announcement# 13-21-0904 in the Amount of $23,390.00, 
for a 2014 Ford Interceptor police Rated Sedan Patrol Vehicle, Pursuant to Section 
31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 

There was no discussion regarding this item. 

Vice Mayor Bain moved the item. Councilman Windrem seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

8D) Recommendation that Council Approve a Bid to Auto Nation Chrysler Dodge Jeep 
Ram Pembroke Pines, Utilizing Florida Sheriffs Association Bid Award Announcement #13-
21-0904 in the Amount of $47,526.00, for Two (2) 2014 Dodge Charger Patrol Vehicles, 
Pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 

There was no discussion regarding this item. 

Vice Mayor Bain moved the item. Councilman Windrem seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

8E) Recommendation that Council Award a Bid to Harrell's LLC, Utilizing Miami-Dade 
County Bid #9020-1/19, in the Amount of $26,416.98, on an "As Needed Basis", for 
Customized Chemicals and Liquid Fertilizers for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, Pursuant to 
Section §31.11 (E)(5) of the City Code 

There was no discussion regarding this item. 

Vice Mayor Bain moved the item. Councilman Windrem seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

(Agenda Item 9A was discussed after Agenda Item 1 OF) 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 6 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



9. Old Business: 

9A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 

There were no appointments to Advisory Boards. 

9B) Okeechobee Ramp and Canal Usage Discussion (tabled from 9/09/13) 

City Manager Gorland read the memo in its entirety. 

Chief of Police Peter G. Baan commented that previous issues with the canal usage were with 
the advent of the personal water craft such as jet skis. At that time, the Police Department did 
not have a police boat and since there is currently a police boat, it can be used for 
enforcement if needed. There should be a limit on the speed, the horsepower, or the type of 
boat. 

Mayor Garcia asked what type boats are currently allowed in the lakes and Chief of Police 
Baan said that no internal combustion motors are permitted. 

Vice Mayor Bain commented that some lakes do not even allow electric boats. 

Councilman Lob noted that he fishes at a lake in Tampa that is very large and it only allows 
for a 9 horsepower motor. 

Chief of Police Baan stated that he would suggest a limit of 9.9 horsepower. 

Vice Mayor Bain asked if Councilman Lob could get the rules and regulations from the lake he 
mentioned to use as a template and Councilman Lob replied affirmatively. 

Vice Mayor Bain asked if the Police Department would manage the hours of use and Chief 
Baan commented that it would not be an issue to put a padlock on the gate to close access 
to the canal and remove it when it is open. 

Vice Mayor Bain suggested having the hours from sunrise to sunset and Chief Baan replied 
that he would prefer to set definite hours. 

Vice Mayor Bain said that there should also be some type of registration through the 
Community Policing Office such as a sticker for those who want to use the canal so there is 
some control as to the amount of people using the canal. 

Chief of Police Baan mentioned that the ramp is in terrible shape and it is dangerous. He 
recommends that it be repaired before it is opened to the public. 

Mayor Garcia asked Chief Baan to get an estimate on what it would cost to repair the ramp. 

Vice Mayor Bain believes that it is important that the young men and women who want to use 
the canal go through some type of safety course or training. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 7 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Chief Baan noted that the Coast Guard has a safe boater's course online that is available. 

Vice Mayor Bain would like to have a course that people can take at the Community Policing 
Office. The most important concept is to allow the young children to fish. 

Councilman Petralanda is glad to see this item back on the agenda. He was a little 
disappointed when it was tabled at the last meeting and believes that this is a great idea. He 
asked if the use of the canal would be a liability for the City. 

City Attorney Seiden replied that the City would be creating a liability situation. The City 
currently has no control of the waterway and as long as the City does not exercise control, 
there will be no liability. Once the City makes the canals accessible, then regulations and rules 
need to be created. 

City Attorney Seiden said that if the City tells people that they must attend courses and they 
allow access through the ramp during set hours, under certain conditions, then the City will be 
responsible. 

Mayor Garcia asked what would happen if the City did nothing but repair the ramp and leave 
it open. 

Chief Baan asked if the City repairs the ramp, and assigns a 9.9 horsepower regulation to 
limit the City's exposure, if they would still be liable and City Attorney Seiden responded 
affirmatively. 

Vice Mayor Bain clarified that the County restricted the access because the ramp belongs to 
the County. 

City Attorney Seiden said that the City would have to find out who the ramp belongs to before 
making repairs. 

City Manager Garland stated that the County gave permission for the City to repair the ramp 
and he was under the impression that the ramp is the City's responsibility. 

To answer City Manager Garland's question, Chief Baan said that the Police Department has 
a key to the locked gate because they have a police boat that is used in the canal. Many 
years ago the ramp was gravel and it was once paved by the City and has been in that 
condition ever since. 

City Attorney Seiden asked who closed the ramp and Vice Mayor Bain said that research 
would have to be done to find out who closed the ramp; he was told that the City put the lock 
on the gate. 

Chief Baan replied that he recalls Miami Springs asking to have the canal closed. 

Discussion ensued regarding who owns the lakes and the precautions for use of a lake by 
someone who does not live on it. 

City Attorney Seiden stated that if the canal is opened it will be like opening "Pandora's Box" 
and Vice Mayor Bain said that is why he is tabling the item. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 8 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Councilman Lob was of the opinion that the possibility of opening the canal should still be 
considered and Councilman Petralanda agreed. 

Councilman Windrem stated that the problem began due to the jet skis since there are 
manatees in the canals. 

City Attorney Seiden commented that if the canals are going to be opened, they will need to 
be patrolled. 

Chief Baan noted that the canal is not closed; the ramp is closed and Vice Mayor Bain said 
that people are still putting boats into the canals. 

City Attorney Seiden stated that if the Police Department or the Human Resources/Risk 
Management Department feels that they are permitting a dangerous condition to exist, Council 
has now assumed the duty to prevent it or not. 

To answer City Attorney Seiden's question, Vice Mayor Bain responded that he does not think 
that the canal is dangerous. 

Discussion ensued on whether the canal is covered by the City's insurance and the 
Administration offered to look into the matter. 

Mayor Garcia asked for the Administration to get the answers to all the questions and bring 
the information back to Council. 

(Agenda Item 9C was discussed after Agenda Item lOA) 

9C) City Clerk Consideration.s 

Mayor Garcia commented that at the last meeting Council decided to pick five applicants to 
interview. He explained that Human Resources Director Loretta Boucher called the top ten to 
determine if they were still available and nine out of the ten said that they were available. 

City Attorney Seiden suggested that Council could start at the top of the list and see how 
many Council members have each of the applicants on their top five lists. 

By consensus, Council agreed to interview six applicants instead of five. The following 
applicants were chosen to be interviewed: 

• Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria (with three votes) 
• Jacqueline Vieira (with three votes) 
• Billy Urquia (with four votes) 
• Suzanne Hitaffer (with five votes) 
• Yamileth Pereyra (with three votes) 
• Sandra Novoa (with four votes) 

Councilman Petralanda recommended Tanya Fuentes whose name was under the "not 
qualified" list. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 9 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



City Attorney Seiden asked if anyone else other than Councilman Petralanda wanted to 
recommend Tanya Fuentes and there were no other votes. 

Mayor Garcia asked if the interview process had to be done through a public meeting and City 
Attorney Seiden replied affirmatively; it should be done in the same way as the interviews 
were conducted for the City Manager's position. 

City Attorney Seiden suggested that a Special meeting would most likely have to take place 
for the interviewing process. 

By consensus, Council agreed to hold a special meeting to interview the applicants on 
Wednesday, January 8, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 

Mayor Garcia stated that an applicant would do much better speaking one-on-one than sitting 
in front of a quasi-judicial Board. 

Vice Mayor Bain said that part of the job is how a person represents themselves. 

Mayor Garcia asked if it would be an ethics issue or against the law to call an applicant to 
speak with them and City Attorney Seiden replied that by doing that he would be excluding the 
public process. 

City Attorney Seiden stated that the public process would not be the same because Council 
would have already received their answers from speaking to the applicant over the phone and 
they would be taking away the spontaneity of the process. Council would not be doing justice 
to the process. He is uncertain if there is anything illegal or unethical about calling an 
applicant, but in his opinion it would be inappropriate. If Council wants to be transparent about 
the hiring process then it should be done the same way that the hiring process was done for 
the City Manager. 

City Attorney Seiden suggested having the initial hiring process and then once it has been 
eliminated to two applicants then maybe phone calls can be made to the applicants, but he is 
not giving Council the go ahead yet; he will have to give it some thought. 

Discussion ensued regarding the Jennings Law and making phone calls to the applicants. 

City Attorney Seiden explained the lobbying requirements. He noted that the process should 
be made as transparent as possible. He believes that it is very important to see how a person 
would function in a public setting since they are going to be dealing with the public and 
Council. He would discourage Council from calling the applicants. When there are two 
applicants left, he still believes that the applicants should be brought back again for final 
questioning. 

Mayor Garcia asked that City Attorney Seiden inquire to find out if it is illegal to call the 
applicants and City Attorney Seiden said that he would contact the Commission on Ethics to 
get information and let Council know. 

Mayor Garcia commented that he would like to have a conversation with Acting City Clerk 
Hitaffer about this process but from what City Attorney Seiden is telling him, he cannot speak 
with her. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 10 Tuesday. November 12, 2013 



(Agenda Item 10A was discussed after Agenda Item 10D) 

10. New Business: 

10A) First Reading- Ordinance No. 1060-2013- An Ordinance of the City Council of the 
City Of Miami Springs Repealing And Deleting Article XIV, Mixed Use District, And Code of 
Ordinance Sections 150-145 through 150-153 in their Entirety; Reserving Article XIV and 
Code Sections 150-145 through 150-153 for Future Use; Repealing all Ordinances or Parts 
of Ordinances in Conflict; Directions to the Codifiers; Providing an Effective Date 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the ordinance by title. 

City Attorney Seiden explained that before the Airport Marine Highway Business District came 
into effect, there was the Mixed Use District which was the same area as the Airport Marine 
Highway Business District. There is a provision in this ordinance that is in every ordinance that 
Council passes. These sections have been repealed for some time and have been repealed by 
not only this language, but by the enactment of the Airport District. In removing the Airport 
Marine Highway Business District, he believes that there is no reason for those sections to be 
in the books and it has been superseded twice. 

Councilman Lob moved the item. Councilman Windrem seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

(Agenda Item 108 was discussed after Agenda Item 98) 

10B) Resolution No. 2013-3605- A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Miami 
Springs Amending the Schedule of Golf Charges and Fees For the Operation of the Miami 
Springs Golf and Country Club; Reserving the Right and Authority to Amend or Supplement 
the Schedule of Charges; Effective Date 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the resolution by title. 

Councilman Windrem moved the item. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion which 
was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

(Agenda Item 10C was discussed after Agenda Item 10E) 

10C) Resolution No. 2013-3606 -A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Miami 
Springs Authorizing the City Manager to Apply For a FY 2014 Edward Byrne Memorial 
Justice Assistance Grant From the Federal Drug Control And System Improvement 
Program, through the Office Of Grants Coordination, Justice Assistance Grant 
Administration for Miami-Dade County; Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Grant 
Contracts and Agreements, Execute Contracts and Agreements to Accomplish Grant 
Funding Purposes, Expend Funding for Established and Authorized Purposes, Receive and 
Expend Additional Funding that Might Become Available, Execute Amendatory Application 
Documentation, and to Exercise All Contractual Rights, Authorizations and Privileges 
Available to the City; Effective Date 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the resolution by title. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 11 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Vice Mayor Bain moved the item. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

10D) Recommendation that Council Approve the Execution of an Agreement for Shoring 
Up the Pool and Deck Facility in the Amount of $47,000.00 (materials $20,000.00 and 
installation $27,000.00) and Provide One (1) Site Visit in the Amount of $1,850.00 Six (6) 
Months from Date of Installation in Accordance with the Payment Schedule in the Contract 

City Manager Gorland read the recommendation memo in its entirety. 

Councilman Lob moved the item. Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion which was 
carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 

(Agenda Item 10E was discussed after Agenda Item 108) 

10E) Consideration of Request by Springs on the Green LLC, Principals Mr./Ms. Manuel 
Perez-Vichot, to Purchase a Very Small Parcel of City Property Adjacent to 627 Eldron 
Drive in the Amount of One Hundred Five Thousand Dollars ($105,000) 

City Attorney Seiden asked Council to refer to City Manager Garland's memo before there are 
any questions. Council needs to determine if they are satisfied with the purchase price which 
is proposed to be $105,000 for approximately 10,299 square feet of land. If Council is not 
satisfied with that price, then the City has the option of securing an independent second 
appraisal. 

City Attorney Seiden said that if Council agrees upon a price, then the City is going to ask the 
purchaser to provide a purchase contract for the City which would be in the City's net contract 
which means that the City does not pay for anything. Upon receiving the contract, Council can 
then give conditional approval, without authorizing its execution and the City would then ask 
that the purchaser provide the County with some dates for an election for the referendum that 
needs to be conducted. The Charter requires that there be a referendum when there is a sale 
of any property in regard to the golf course. 

City Attorney Seiden commented that in the County's last e-mail correspondence, they told the 
City not to pass an official resolution setting an election without getting their approval of a date 
first. When the group decides, based upon what Council decides tonight, or what may happen 
in the near future, then the County can select an election date 60+ days in advance. Once 
the dates have been secured by the County, he can prepare a resolution calling for the 
special election. 

To answer Vice Mayor Bain's question, City Attorney Seiden said that the steps that are 
outlined in the memo are the proper way to go through the process. 

Vice Mayor Bain said that it looks okay but because it is City property, there should be 
another appraisal. 

Mayor Garcia clarified that the City does not have an appraiser; the appraiser works 
independently and would be hired. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 12 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



City Manager Garland stated that he will have an appraisal done by an independent appraiser 
and it would be brought back to Council as soon as possible. 

(Agenda Item 10F was discussed after Agenda Item 8E) 

10F) Miami Springs Historical Society Facility Agreement 

City Manager Garland read the recommendation memo in its entirety. 

To answer Vice Mayor Bain's question, City Manager Garland said that there really is no cost 
to the City. The City is only maintaining the structure and the Historical Society will be 
responsible for the normal operating costs for the building. 

Councilman Petralanda moved the item. Councilman Lob seconded the motion. 

City Attorney Seiden clarified that the only blank in the agreement is under the term of 
agreement. He spoke with City Manager Garland today and it is his position that he would like 
to have it executed as soon as possible so the Historical Society can begin their work. 

City Attorney Seiden asked if the Historical Society had insurance and Lily Martinez replied 
that they have asked for quotes but there is not a signed agreement and as soon as there is 
a signed agreement they will be ready to move forward. 

City Attorney Seiden noted that the City cannot give the Historical Society the building until 
they have the required insurance .. 

Ms. Martinez asked if they needed to have an agreement in order to secure insurance and 
City Attorney Seiden stated that the Historical Society should have a copy of the agreement. 

City Attorney Seiden asked if a copy of the agreement had been sent to the insurance agent 
and Ms. Martinez said that they have not done that because they were waiting for an approval 
but it can be done quickly. 

City Attorney Seiden suggested that Council should approve the agreement, subject to the 
insurance and the date that the Society secures the insurance, would be the date that would 
begin the five-year term of the agreement. 

By consensus, Council agreed to the suggestion stated by City Attorney Seiden. 

Councilman Petralanda would like to implement a ten-year term instead of a five-year term. 

Ms. Martinez noted that the Society had previously asked for a ten-year term. They will incur 
a lot of expenses in the move to the new location. She said that this is a big accomplishment; 
they are happy to spend the money, but it would be more comforting to know that they would 
have use of the building for a longer term. 

City Manager Garland clarified that the building belongs to the City but the area belongs to the 
County. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 13 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Mayor Garcia said that his only concern for extending the contract is that if Miami-Dade 
County takes over their property then the City will lose the building as well. 

City Attorney Seiden agreed and apologized because he was told that the building belonged to 
the City. If it is subject to a lease with Miami-Dade County then the agreement has to be 
different. The only change would be that the City and the Society would have to understand 
that it is subject to Miami-Dade County approval, which can be added. 

Ms. Martinez asked if they can have the Museum in another location so they will not have that 
worry and Mayor Garcia responded that the likelihood of the County taking back the property 
is not likely because of the parks that the City maintains. 

Ms. Martinez asked if the Society could have a caveat in the agreement so that the City would 
help the Society find another location if things were to go the other way. The money the 
Society is using belongs to the residents and the Society is grateful for their donations. The 
merchandise that will be in the building is valuable and the Society cannot afford for it not to 
be safe. 

Vice Mayor Bain stated that this should have been discussed between the Administration and 
this should not have been done this way. He believes that this should be tabled and the 
contract needs to be made correctly. 

Ms. Martinez commented that the current facility agreement states that it can be renewed for 
another five years. 

City Attorney Seiden clarified that the agreement states that it may be extended at the end of 
the term upon terms ·and conditions that are mutually acceptable; it does not say that the 
renewal term is five years. What might happen in the future and what Council might want to 
do in the future is not really part of a facility agreement. 

Councilman Petralanda expressed his concern for tabling the item. He suggested a ten-year 
term. 

To answer Mayor Garcia's question, City Manager Garland stated that there was no discussion 
on an extension to the agreement, but there was discussion on the initial term of the 
agreement which was five years. 

City Attorney Seiden commented that he can provide a provision to the agreement that 
everyone acknowledges that the agreement is subject to whomever the property belongs to. 

Councilman Windrem asked for City Attorney Seiden's opinion on the ten-year term versus the 
five-year term and City Attorney Seiden replied that it would be Council's decision. 

Councilman Petralanda said that five years from now, the Council may not be as receptive to 
the Society as the current Council is now. He believes that Council owes it to the Society to 
protect them for ten years. 

Mayor Garcia stated that the time is not really an issue for him. The building was not being 
utilized and he would not mind changing the term. He wants the Society to understand that it 
is County property. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 14 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Ms. Martinez commented that the Society would like to work with the School Board and their 
efforts will be extremely positive. 

City Attorney Seiden suggested that Council could add the changes to the agreement if they 
have a copy in front of them. 

Councilman Lob asked if the five year or ten year term is going to be included in this 
agreement and City Attorney Seiden replied that it is up to Council to decide on the term. 

Councilman Petralanda amended his motion to state ten years rather than five years. 
Councilman Windrem seconded the motion. 

City Attorney Seiden clarified that the vote is for the lease, as amended, with the provision 
and with the amendment of a ten-year agreement instead of a five-year agreement. 

The motion was carried 3-2 on roll call vote with Vice Mayor Bain and Councilman Lob 
being the dissenting votes. 

Historical Society President Beverly Roetz commented that the Society appreciates everything 
that the City has done for them. The Society is anxious to present the museum to everyone. 
She has plans to meet with School Board member Susie Castillo and the museum will be 
affecting every student in Miami-Dade Dade County in a positive way. 

11. Other Business: 

11A) Consideration of Cancelling/Rescheduling the Regular Council meetings of Monday, 
November 25'" and Monday, December 23''. 

City Manager Garland stated that both of these meetings occur during holiday weeks. 

By consensus, Council agreed to cancel the Regular Council meetings of Monday, 
November 25'" and Monday, December 23''. 

12. Reports & Recommendations: 

12A) City Attorney 

None. 

12B) City Manager 

Community Shred Day 

City Manager Garland reminded everyone of the Community Shred Day from 4:00 p.m. to 
8:00 p.m. on Wednesday, November 13'" at the Community Center in the pool parking lot that 
will incorporate the residential and commercial sectors. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 15 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Happy Thanksgiving 

City Manager Gorland wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving holiday. 

12C) City Council 

Veterans Day Ceremony 

Councilman Petra Ianda thanked the Recreation Staff for planning the Veterans Day memorial 
ceremony. He also attended a very moving ceremony in the City of Hialeah. 

Happy Thanksgiving 

Vice Mayor Bain wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 

Okeechobee Boat Ramp 

Vice Mayor Bain said that he was upset about the boat ramp, but he would like the Chief of 
Police to research the subject and bring back the item on a future agenda. 

City Clerk Position 

Vice Mayor Bain hopes that Mayor Garcia talks to all six applicants before the meeting on 
January 8'". 

Golden Veterans Day Parade 

Mayor Garcia thanked the City Manager and Council for their support of the County's Golden 
Veterans Day parade in Downtown Miami. He attended along with Councilman Windrem and 
his daughter who participated in the parade. He thanked Commissioner Jose "Pepe" Diaz and 
Commission Chairwoman Rebeca Sosa. 

Veterans Day Ceremony 

Mayor Garcia gave kudos to the staff for putting together the memorial ceremony. He thanked 
City Manager Gorland for his service. 

Arthritis Walk 

Mayor Garcia reported that this weekend is the Arthritis Walk. He encouraged everyone to visit 
his Facebook page for more information. He thanked everyone who attended his fundraiser a 
few weeks ago; he was able to raise a little over $4,000. 

Youth Basketball League 

Mayor Garcia reported that the Youth Basketball season has begun and he encouraged 
everyone to get a schedule and watch the games. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 16 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



Happy Anniversary 

Mayor Garcia wished his wife a happy 13'h anniversary. 

Happy Anniversary 

Mayor Garcia wished Assistant City Manager /Finance Director Alonso and his wife a happy 
anniversary. 

Golden Veterans Day Parade 

Councilman Petralanda noted that he spoke with Commissioner Diaz and the parade will be 
held on a Saturday next year. 

13. Adjournment 

There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:21 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

Suzanne S. Hitaffer, CMC 
Acting City Clerk 

Approved as _____ during meeting of: 

Transcription assistance provided by Elora R. Sakal. 

Zavier M. Garcia 
Mayor 

Words stFieiEeA tRFe~;~§A have been deleted. Underscored words represent changes. All other words remain unchanged. 

Minutes - City Council Regular Meeting 17 Tuesday, November 12, 2013 



DRAFT 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

The Miami Springs Education Advisory Board met at 6:30 p.m., on Tuesday, November 
19, 2013 in the City Hall Council Chambers. 

The meeting was called to order at 6:33 p.m. 

I. Call to Order/Roll Call 

The following were present: 

Absent: 

Also Present: 

Chair Dr. John Salomon 
Caridad Hidalgo 
Kim Werner 

Vice Chair Dr. Mara Zapata 
Michael G. Hunter 

Acting City Clerk Suzanne S. Hitaffer 

II. Approval of Minutes: September 17, 2013 Regular Meeting 

Minutes of the September 17, 2013 meeting were approved as written. 

Board member Werner moved to approve the minutes and Board member Hidalgo 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously on voice vote. 

Ill. New Business: Focus Group Discussion 

1. Board members will discuss motions/resolutions that will be considered to 
pass on to the City Council for approval. These motions should be in 
alignment with the Education Compact. 

Chair Salomon reminded that any motions should be aligned with the compact. 

Board member Werner said that there is no secret in what she believes is transformational 
for schools. The City of Miami Beach is now funding all of its schools and is already a No 
Place for Hate school. The City received the honor of being a Community of Respect and 
she feels that Miami Springs could be the same. 

Education Advisory Board 1 Tuesday, November 19, 2013 



Board member Werner believes that the community event would still be recognized which 
is necessary to become a Community of Respect. Only one school needs to be trained 
which is a $1,200.00 fee that could be raised. One school principal would need to agree 
to this idea to begin. She would love to see this kind of action taken in the community. 

Chair Salomon explained that the Board is making a recommendation to Council to work in 
conjunction with the District. 

Board member Hidalgo asked what the school training entails and Board member Werner 
replied that it must have a No Place for Hate designated training. 

Chair Salomon suggested that the Board decide what school to work with and include it in 
the motion. 

To answer Board member Werner's question, Board member Hidalgo commented that 
Miami Springs Middle School is under an extreme amount of. pressure because they are 
under Educational Transformation Office (ETO ). The school has dropped to a letter grade 
of a "D". She explained what ETO is and how it works. She would like to see the Middle 
School start this project but she would have to discuss it with the school administration. 

Chair Salomon asked to what extent the No Place for Hate covers cyber bullying and 
Board member Werner replied that a school is offered a variety of trainings and the 
Principal and Staff can choose which training they would like their students to learn. 

Board member Hidalgo suggested Springview Elementary to be the first school to try this 
project. 

Board member Werner noted that she does not know the principal for Springview 
Elementary and Chair Salomon replied that there is a new principal. 

Chair Salomon suggested Miami Springs Elementary since Principal Sally Hutchings has 
been there for so long. 

Board member Werner stated that Principal Hutchings reached out to her so Miami Springs 
Elementary may be a good place to start. 

Chair Salomon commented that he was reading through the "Roberts Rules of Order" and 
it states that when there is a small board, the Chair can make motions. He read the 
following on page 112: 

"Is it true that the President can vote only to break a tie? The answer is no. It is not true 
that the President can vote only to break a tie. If the President is a member of the voting 
body, he or she has exactly the same rights and privileges as all other members have 
including the right to make motions, to speak in debate, and to vote on all questions. In 
meetings of a small board where there are not more than about a dozen Board members 
present and in meetings of a committee the presiding officer may exercise these rights and 
privileges fully as any other member': 

Education Advisory Board 2 Tuesday, November 19, 2013 



Board member Werner moved to recommend that the City of Miami Springs work 
together with the District to achieve the Anti-Defamation League's No Place for Hate 
status at Miami Springs Elementary School. Board member Hidalgo seconded the 
motion which was carried unanimously on voice vote. 

Chair Salomon would like to get help from the City and the District to create a partnership 
with Miami International Airport in order to provide student internships. He would also like 
to provide job opportunities to On the Job Training (OJT) students. 

Board member Werner commented that her husband works at George T. Baker Aviation 
School. The principal is indirectly or directly part of the feeder pattern. She suggested 
including Dr. Sean Gallagan because he is influential. 

Chair Salomon moved to recommend that the City Council work with the District in 
establishing a partnership with Miami International Airport that specifically leads to 
student internships and part-time jobs for OJT students from Miami Springs Senior High 
School and to consult Dr. Sean GaHagan at George T. Baker Aviation if need be. Board 
member Hidalgo seconded the motion which carried unanimously on voice vote. 

Chair Salomon commented that as the Board may already know, he is an Art teacher and 
one of items that the compact discusses is that students establish a relationship with the 
Senior Citizens in the community. He discussed the idea of having an Art Show to 
showcase the art of the senior citizens and the students from the Miami Springs' schools 
with Councilman Petralanda and he said he would definitely help. He would like to have 
the Art Show at the Curtiss Mansion but it could be anywhere that the City decides. 

Chair Salomon moved to recommend that the City Council work with the District in 
hosting an Art Show that showcases the work of senior citizens and students from the 
Miami Springs schools. Board member Werner seconded the motion which was carried 
unanimously on voice vote. 

Chair Salomon stated that he would like to facilitate the Historical Society to the students 
at the Miami Springs Schools. 

Board member Werner suggested that the motion should include the Society visiting the 
schools. 

Chair Salomon said that he does not want to limit the verbiage to just field trips to the 
Society. There could be innovative ways of sharing history. 

Discussion ensued regarding a field trip that students previously took to the Curtiss 
Mansion and to City Hall. 

Chair Salomon moved to recommend that the City Council work with the District in 
establishing a partnership with the Miami Springs Historical Society so that students 
can benefit from innovative ways in sharing the history of the community. Board 
member Hidalgo seconded the motion which was carried unanimously on voice vote. 

Education Advisory Board 3 Tuesday, November 19, 2013 



IV. Suggestions for next agenda 

Chair Salomon noted that the next meeting is in January. 

v. Adjourn 

There was no further business to discuss and the meeting adjourned at 7:09 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Suzanne Hitaffer 
Clerk of the Board 

Approved as written at meeting of: 

***************************************************************************************************************************** 

The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen Advisory Boards do 
not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, which may only be established and 
authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of the City Council. 
***************************************************************************************************************************** 

Education Advisory Board 4 Tuesday, November 19, 2013 



City of Miami Springs, Florida 

Zoning and Planning Board 

CANCELLATION NOTICE 

The Zoning and Planning Board meeting of Monday, December 2, 2013 has been 
canceled since there are no new cases to be heard by the Board. 

      Elora R. Sakal      
      Board Secretary 

cc: City Council 
City Manager 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director 
City Attorney 
Acting City Clerk 
Planning and Zoning Director 
Zoning and Planning Board Members 
Post 



 

 
 

 City of Miami Springs, Florida 
 

Board of Adjustment 
  

CANCELLATION NOTICE 

 
The Board of Adjustment Regular Meeting of Monday, December 2, 2013 has been 

canceled due to the fact that there are no new cases to be heard by the Board. 
 
 
 
 

                 
                Elora R. Sakal 

                                                                     Board Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

cc: Mayor and Council 
 City Manager 

Assistant City Manager/Finance Director 
 City Attorney 
 Acting City Clerk 
 Planning and Zoning Director 
 Board of Adjustment Members 
 Post 



 
 

CANCELLATION NOTICE 

 
CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD 

 
The regular meeting of the Code Enforcement Board scheduled for Tuesday, December 

3, 2013 has been canceled in advance since there are no new cases to be heard by the 
Board. 
 

        

                 
        Suzanne S. Hitaffer 
         Acting City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
cc: City Council 
 City Manager 
 Code Enforcement Board Members by E-Mail 
 Post 



. " 

MIAMI DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW 
Published Daily except Saturday, Sunday and 

Legal Holidays 
Miami, Miami-Dade County, Florida 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE: 

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared 
MARIA MESA, who on oath says that he Or she is the 
LEGAL CLERK, Legal Notices of the Miami Daily Business 
Review f/kla Miami Review, a daily (except Saturday, Sunday 
and Legal Holidays) newspaper, published at Miami in Miami-Dade 
County, Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, 
being a Legal Advertisement of Notice in the matter of 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
PUBLIC HEARING 12/9/2013 

in the XXXX Court, 
was published in said newspaper in the issues of 

11/21/2013 

Affiant further says that the said Miami Daily Business 
Review is a newspaper published at Miami in said Miami~ Dade 
County, Florida and that the said newspaper has 
heretofore been continuously published in said Miami~Dade County, 
Florida, each day (except Saturday, Sunday and Legal Holidays) 
and has been entered as second class mail matter at the post 
office in Miami in said Miami~Dade County, Florida, for a 
period of one year next preceding the first publication of the 
attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he or 
she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or corporation 
any discount, rebat · · r refund for the purpose 
of securin ·sement for p blication in the said 

per. 

MARIA MESA personally known to me 

B. THOMAS 
Notary Public · State of Florida 
My Comm. Expires Nov 2. 2017 

Commission 11 FF 034747 
Bonded Through Nal/onal NOiary Assn. 



f 

Agenda l'l:8m No. 711-

Ctty Coundt Meeting 9f: 

AN ORDINANCEO::I:C:.~OC~~:~:
1

:F TME CITY:·. /~-j_ -/!6 
MIAMI SPRINGS REPEALING AND DELETING ARTICLE XIV, L-JJ"') 
MIXED USE DISTRICT, AND CODE OF ORDINANCE 
SECTIONS 150-145 THROUGH 150-153 IN THEIR ENTIRETY; 
RESERVING ARTICLE XIV AND CODE SECTIONS 150-145 
THROUGH 150-153 FOR FUTURE USE; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT; 
DIRECTIONS TO THE CODIFIERS; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, the Mixed Use District, Code of Ordinance Sections 150-145 
through 150-153, was originally enacted to provide "large scale" commercial district regulations 
for the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the district was not successful in application and was subsequently 
superseded by the enactment of Article XV and the Airport, Marine, and Highway Business 
District, Code of Ordinance Sections 150-154 through 150-163; and, 

WHEREAS, although the two districts provided separate and distinct district 
boundary regulations for the same properties in the City, and while the Mixed Use District 
should have been repealed by the enactment of the Airport, Marine, Highway Business District, 
it is likely that the Mixed Use Business code sections have remained in the Code because the 
two districts were given sequential code numbering rather than superseding code numbering; 
and, 

WHEREAS, even the Airport, Marine, and Highway Business District codes have 
been repealed and deleted from the City Code of Ordinances by the enactment of the 
Northwest 3 6'" Street, Abraham Tract, and Airport Golf Districts; and, 

WHEREAS, the code sections of the Mixed Use District have already been 
effectively repealed by the subsequent enactments of the City Council and should be deleted 
from the City Code of Ordinances; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the legislative history of the Mixed 
Use District and Code of Ordinance Sections 150-145 through 150-153 and determined that it 
is both proper and appropriate and in the best interests of the City and its citizens to repeal 
and delete the District and its corresponding Code of Ordinance sections from the City Code; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF MIAMI SPRINGS: 

Section 1: That Chapter XIV, Mixed Use District, and Code of Ordinance 
Sections 150-145 through Code of Ordinance Section 150-153 should be repealed and 
deleted from the City Code in their entirety as follows; 

1 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



ARTICLE: XIV. MIXeD USE DISTRICT 

See. HiQ 14§. Purpose. 

The purpose ef the miJEeEl use (MUB) Elistriet is te previae fer the estaBlishment ef 
eempatiBie ana complimentary eemBinatiens ef !lses fer effiee Elevelepment, retail shep19in§, 
restallrants, ellltllral anEl/er recreational activities, hetels anEl/er metels, ana slleh ether similar 
uses as are 19ermitteEl herein, te§ether with all reqllireEl sllp19ertin§ facilities. MUB Elistriet uses 
shall Be estaBlishes in aeeerElanee with the §lliElelines set ferth in the City flltllre lana !lse plan 
fer leeatiens inElieateEl ana Elesi§nateEl in that plan as milEeEl !lse Bllsiness. 

See. 1§9 14!!. Permittee uses. 

(A) Generally. Prinei19al ana aeeessery !lses ana strllGt!lres 19ermitteEl in the MUB 
Elistriet as set ferth herein, are Slltljeet te the reqllirements ana limitations as 
specifies. Slleh uses ana strlletllres are 19ermitteEl enly 'Nhere they farm 
eem19limentary §rell19in§s ef facilities ana activities, ana where a partielllar 
eemBinatien ef prepeseEl !lses welliEl Be ap19Fe19fiate te the s!lrrellnElin§ area By 
nature ef !lse ana Elesi§n. 

(B) Principal llses ana strlletllres permittee §enerally. 
(1) Offices, Bllsiness ana prefessienal; stuElies, ana elinies (ether than 

veterinary). 
(2) A§eneies fer travel ana insllranee ana similar services. 
(3) 1-letels ana metels. 
(q) Private elllBS ana leEl§es. 
(S) Business eelle§es, secretarial seheels, ana similar eEl!leatienal facilities. 
(6) Banlffi, savin§s ana lean asseeiatiens, ana similar financial institlltiens. 
(7) Retail stares, eJEeept these ElealiR§ in seeenEl hans merehanElise ether 

than antiqlles. 
(8) Service estaBlishments, inelllElin§ phete§raphie stllElies; BarBer ana 

Beauty sheps, estaBlishments fer re19air ef shees, small heme 
appliances, eleeiEs ana vo'atehes, ana pheteeepyin§ service sheps net te 
mmeeEl 2,500 sq!lare feet. 

(9) Restallrants. 
(10) Cultllral ar reereatienal facilities sueh as !lrBan plazas, health ana 

athletic eluBs, theaters, auEliteri!lms, liBraries, art §alleries ana m!lseums. 
(11) Parkin§ §aFa§es. 
(12) Struet!lres ana !lses ether than these listeEl aBeve, reqllireEl fer 

performance ef §evemmental fllnetiens. 
(13) Struet!lres ana !lses relatiR§ te eperatien ef pllBiie lltilities ana reqllirin§ 

leeatien within the Elistriet te serve it er nei§hBerheeEl Elistriets. 
(14) Community resiElential seheel in eemplianee with the terms, eenElitiens 

ana stanElarEls ef llSa§e apweveEl By the City Ce!lneil en SeptemBer 2 S, 
1991, sa len§ as sueh seheel is in eemplianee with the fellewiR§ 
eenElitiens ef llSa§e, te wit. 
(a) Ne seheel may Be leeateEl within a 1,000 feet raElills ef a nether 

eemm!lnity resiElential seheel. 
(B) ~Je seheel may eeeupy mere than ene strlletllre fer "seheel 

pllrpeses", ana ne mere than twe strllet!lres fer "resiElential 
pllrpeses" relatin§ te the eemmllnity resiElential seheel. 

2 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



(e) No school shall permit or proviele resieleRtial ho~oJsiRg for moFO 
thaR five st~oJeleRts aRel two ael~oJit slolpervisors iR each resieleRtial 
StF!olCtlolFO. 

(1 S) Other eRterprises or 13~oJsiResses which are similar to eRterprises or 
13~oJsiResses OR~oJmerateel hereiR, which have seeR revieweel 13y the City 
PlaRRiRg aRel ZoRiRg Boarel aRel approveel 13y the City Go~oJReil lolpoR 
applieatioR aRel heariRg. 

(G) Permissil31e priReipal ~oJses aRel str~oJet~oJres, limitatioRs as to loeatioR. 
(1) Retail service estal31ishmeRts shall 13e limiteel to loeatioR oR the gro~oJAel 

floor of priReipal str~oJet~oJFOS. 
(2) Retail aRel service estal31ishmeRts shall froRt OR peelestriaR portioRs of 

the street right of vvay, or OR other peelestriaR opeR space areas with 
p~oJI31ie access from streets, aRel shall occupy at least SO pereeRt of the 
gro~oJRel floor stFOet froRtage. 

(3) Parl~iRg garages aFO permittee! as a priReipal ~oJse provieleel that there 
shall 13e RO vehie~oJiar access to such facilities elireetly from N. V¥. 36th 
Street. 

(4) Parl~iRg lots aeljaeeRt to ~J. W. 36th Street are permittee! oRiy as a 
temporary ~oJse, s~oJI3jeet to improvemeRt of those portioRs of lots aeljaeeRt 
to priReipal peelestriaR flows so as to proviele sereeRiRg aRel safety 
eoRtrols to alleviate poteRtial aelverse effects oR peelestriaR movemeRt. 
These parl~iRg lots may 13e authori:wel for ~oJSO Rot to mmeeel a perioel of 
oRe year, aRel theFOafter oR a year to year 13asis upoR proper applieatioR 
approveel 13y the City PlaRRiRg aRel ZoRiRg Boarel aRel the City GouReil. 

(D) 1\eeessory ~oJses a Rei struet~oJres. 
(1) Uses aRel str~oJet~oJres customarily accessory aRel iReieleRtal to speeifieel 

priReipal ~oJses aRel str~oJet~oJres, aRel whieA elo Rot alter tAo character of the 
elistriet, are permittee! S~oJI3jeet to limitatioRs aRel provisioRs estal31isheel 13y 
tAiS oreliAaRCO aRel other applieal31e City OFeliRBRCOS BRei FOg~oJiatiORS. 

(2) 1\Ry ~oJse permissil31e as a priReipal ~oJSO is alloweel as aR accessory ~oJse 
s~oJI3jeet to limitatioRs aRel req~oJiremeRts applyiRg to the priReipal use. 

(3) 1\R accessory ~oJse sAall iRel~oJele a s~oJI3oreliRate structure or portioR of tAo 
maiR str~oJCtlolre loeateel OR tAO same BlolileliRg Site WAOR SlolCA USC is 
iReieleRtal to tAO maiR StF~oJCtlolFO. 

(EO) Permissil31e accessory ~oJses aAel struet~oJres, limitatioRs as to loeatioR. 
(1) E:RtraRees to accessory parl~iRg lots a Rei str~oJet~oJres sAall 13e orieRteel 

away from N. W. 3 6tA Street, aAel shall 13e loeateel 13ehiRel the priReipal 
StF~oJCtlolFO OR tAO same BUileliRg site. 

(2) Vehie~oJiar access to oR site parl~iRg, loaeliRg, or service sAall Rot 13e 
permittee! aloRg ~J. 'N. 3 6tA Street. 

(3) 1\eeess elrives are periTiitteel aloRg the aeljaeeRt miRor stFOet froRtage aRel 
shall 13e loeateel a Rei elesigReel iR a maRRer wAieA will iRs~oJre smooth flow 
of veAieular aRel peelestriaR eire~oJiatioR. 

3 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



See. 1§Q 147. Let anel fleer area; setllaeiEs. 

(/\) Mal!imum let eevCFage. Tl9e malEimum allewallle let coverage for all main anel 
accessory lluilelings sl9all not mmeeel SO percent of tl9e let area. 

(8) Floor area limitations. 
(1) For tl9e purpose of tl9is sullcl9apter tl9e floor area ratio (F.A.R.) sl9all lle 

tl9e total floor area of a lluileling or lluilelings on a lluileling site elivieleel lly 
tl9e area of tl9e site. TAo total floor area sl9all incluele tl9e gross 
19orizontal area of all floors of any lluileling or lluilelings on tl9e site for 
tl9e purposes of eletermining tl9is ratio. 

(2) For lot areas less tl9an 15,000 SEiuare feet in size, tl9e mm!imum ratio of 
lluileling floor area to lot area sl9all not mmeeel 0.60 F.A.R. 

(3) For lot areas of 1 S ,000 SEiuare feet, or greater, tl9e ratio of lluileling floor 
area to lot area sl9all not mmeeel 1.5 F.A.R., mmept as otl9eFwise 
moelifieel in tl9is sullcl9apteF. 

(4) For parking garages as principal use, tl9e ratio of total floor area to lot 
area sl9all not mmeeel 1.§ F.A.R. Floor area sl9all ineluele all floor area 
•.vitl9in tl9e structure usee! for pariEing, inclueling area useel for restaurants 
anel retail fecilities wl9icl9 s19all lle permittee! in connection witl9 pariEiRg 
garages as incielental principal uses. Estalllisl9ments sl9all not occupy 
more tl9an 20 percent of tl9e floor area of parking structure, anel sl9all lle 
leeateel on tl9e grounel floor anel erienteel tmvarel peelestrian flows. 

(G) /\llowallle increase in floor area for lluilelings provieling comllination of uses. For 
elevelopments on lot areas of 1 S ,000 SEiuare feet, or greater, tl9e allowallle floor 
area may lle inereaseel in conformance witl9 13FO>Jisions anel limitations specifieel 
llelow. 
(1) MilEOel use lluilelings. For every SEiuare foot of gross area tl9at a lluileling 

provieles of greunel level retail, service anel supporting uses, tl9e floor 
area of etl9er permissillle use may lle increaseel lly one SEiuare foot, not 
to mmeeel a floor area ratio of 2.00. 

(2) Peelestrian open space. For tl9e purposes of tl9is sullcl9apter peelestrian 
open space is elefineel as an area elesignateel fer peelestrian outeloor 
noncommercial uses, mmlueling parking anel etl9er sef\lice areas, anel 
wl9iel9 is open to tl9e siEY (mme13t wl9ere sl9eltereel lly prejecteel portions 
of 13uilelings or arcaeles). Open spaces sl9all incluele lanelscapeel areas, 
paveel terraces, elecks anel sitting areas, anel outeloor recreation areas 
ap13ropriately elesigneel anel impreveel anel locateel for euteloor uses for 
occupants anel visitors, censielering safety, convenience anel aestl9etie 
ap13earance. For every foot of grounel level peelestrian open space 
provieleel 13y tl9e elevelopment, tl9e allowal31e 13uileling floor area may lle 
inereaseel 13y one SEiuare foot, llut tl9e increase sl9all not mmeeel 0.20 
F.A.R. times let area. 

(3) lncreaseel floor area ratio. Sullject to site plan approval anel confirmation 
lly tl9e City Planning anel Zoning Beare! anel tl9e City Council, allewallle 
fleer area ratio may 13e increaseel for elevelopments occupying sites 
larger tl9an 1.0 acre, anel aeeemmeelating a milEture of uses in accorel 
witl9 tl9e intent of tl9is elistrict, net to exceeel a total of 3.00 F.A.R. 

4 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



(D) MiAimum setbael<s for all elevelo13meRis iA MUB elistriets. 
(1) AeljaeeAI to I'J. W. 3 6t11 Street, setbacks sAall be a miRimum of 30 feet 

from lAo street ri§At of way. ~Jo elrivmvay or off street 13arl<iR§ sAall be 
alloweel 13etweeR street ri§Ais of way aRel buileliR!JS. 

(2) AeljaeeAtto streets otl1er tAaA N. 'N. 36111 Street, setbael.s SAall Aave a 
miRimum ele13IA of 12 feet from lAo street Fi§AI of way. 

(3) TAere sl1all 13e RO miAimum requiremeRts for iRierior yarels or setbael.s, 
mme131 as may 13e requireel by o!Aer 13FOvisioAs of tAo City Coele of 
OreliRaRees. 

(q) /\eljaeeAtto resieleAtial elistricts setbacks sAall be a miAimum ele13tA of qo 
feet. 

(S) At least 70 130FCOAI of all setbael<s aeljaeeRI to aRy street sAall 13e 
im13roveel aAel reserveel for 130elestriaR 0130R s13aee. 

(6) PeelestriaR 0130R s13aee may be 13Fovieleel at aRy level tl1at serves lAO 
commercial uses. 

(7) All setbael<s may be useel for utility ri§Ais of way. 

See. 1§Q 148. Hei§AI limitatioAs. 

(A) Hei§AI limitatioRs are as follows. 
(1) Structures loeateel witl1iR 1 SO feet from aeljoiRiR!J resieleRtial elistricts sAall 

AOI mmeeel a 11ei§AI of SO feet. 
(2) Structures or 130rtioAs of structures loeateel aeljaeeAI to N. W. 3 6t11 

Street, a REI more tl1aA 1 SO feet from aeljoiRiR!J resieleRiial elistriets sAall 
Rot mmeeel a 11ei§l11 of 120 feet. 

(B) Mmdmum 11ei§l1t iR t11e MUB elistriet sl1all eleerease Rortl1warel from I'J. VV-. 3 6111 
Street, aAel towarel resieleAtial elistricts to I3FOViele a balaReeel relatioRsl1i13 
betweeA 13l1ysieal masses aAel avoiel li§AI obstruetioA to aeljoiRiAg resieleAtial 
use&.-

See. 1§Q 149. Off street 13arl<iAg aAel loaeliA€J. 

(A) Parking standards and reqtJiFefflents: 
(1) See § 1 SO 016 

(B) 0# street leadiRfJ. 
(1) For t11e I3UF13ose of t11is subel1a13ter a loaeliRg S13aee is elefiAeel as a 

S13aee 'o'o'it11iR t11e maiR buileliRg or OR tl1e same lot, logically aREI 
eoRveRieRtly loeateel for bulk 13iel<u13s aRel eleliveries. A loaeliAg S13aee 
sl1all be sealeel to t11e size of t11e elelivery vel1iele aRtiei13ateel, 13lus a 
s13aee of silt feet iA leAgt11 greater tl1aA t11e vel1iele aRiiei13ateel to be 
aeeommoelateel. I'Jo loaeliR!J bert11 sl1all be less t11aR a miRimum of 12 
feet iR ·.vieltl1 a Rei a leR!JIA of Rot less t11aA 3 S feet, aAel sl1all be elireetly 
accessible from a street •.vitl1out erossiRg or eRieriAg aAy ot11er requireel 
off street loaeliRg or off street 13arkiRg s13aees. 

(2) All elevelo13meRis sl1all 13FO'Iiele off street loaeliAg wl1iel1 sl1all be loeateel 
aRel elesigAeel so as to 13FOviele safe aRel eoRveAieRt access by elelivery 
vel1ieles witt! miRimal iAierfereRee witt! 111e movemeAI aAel 13arl<iRg of 
ot11er vel1ieles oR t11e wemises. Subject to t11e a1313roval of t11e City 
PlaRAiAg aRel ZoRiAg Boarel aREI t11e City CouReil, loaeliAg areas may be 
requireel to be 13laeeel iA loeatioRs se13arateel from ot11er activities or 
sereeAeel 13y DI3I3FOI3fiate 13l1ysieal barriers. 

5 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



(3) Required off street loading stalls shall ee reserved for loading purposes, 
and shall not ee used for parking of vehicles other than those in the 
process of loading or unloading. ~Jo vehicle acing loaded or unloaded 
shall project into any puelie ·.vallwvay or street. 

(~) Off street loading facilities shall ee properly drained to prevent damage 
to aeutting property or puelie streets, and shall not ee used for any 
purpose other than loading and unloading. /\1 no time shall the loading 
area ee used for storage. 

See. 1§Q 1§Q. Site planning. 

The site plan for developments •.vithin the MUB district shall provide for safe and 
efficient functioning of intended uses, including pedestrian and vehicular circulation, and for 
harmonious and convenient groupings of structures and activities. 

(A) Location and design requirements. 
(1) Principal structures shall face towards ~J. VV. 36th Street when possiele, 

or side streets, eut in all instances away from residential districts. 
(2) Entrances to accessory parl<ing lots and structures shall not ee oriented 

tmvard N. VV. 36th Street, and shall ee located eehind the principal 
structure on the same euilding site. Vehicular access to on site parl<ing, 
loading or seFviee shall not ee peFmitted diFeetly from ~J. W. 36th Stmet. 
Access dFives shall ee provided from adjacent minor street frontages, 
and shall ee located and designed to insure smooth flow of vehicular 
and pedestrian circulation. 

(3) PedestFian access may ee provided at any suitaele locations, eut shall 
ee separated from vehieulaF access points, mmept whom signalization is 
used to control pedestrian and vehicular mo•1ements. 

(~) Accessory parl<ing lots shall ee constructed and designed in aeeordanee 
with § 1 SO 016 

(5) Loading zones and the parking of commercial vehicles shall ee arranged 
so as to provide safe access from drivmvays and puelie stmets, to 
prevent intertemnee •Nith vehieulaF and pedestrian circulation on the 
premises, and to avoid friction with traffic passing the premises. 

(6) Developments on sites which occupy the noFtheFn sections of the district 
aeutting residential areas shall provide east/west madv .. ays foF access 
and for eFoss sleek circulation, •.vhere necessary due to side street traffic 
diversion. Roadways shall ee designed to aeeommodate smooth 
vehieulm movement, and shall ee located not less than ten feet fFom the 
adjoining residential district. 

(7) All utilities shall ee placed undergmund, and theFe shall ee appropriate 
provisions made for servicing such utilities. 

(8) Protective semening and landscaping. 
(1) In general, landscaping shall not Feduee visiBility and create a hazard to 

'o'ehieular and pedestrian circulation, nor to puelie safety and security. 
(2) Landscaping shall ee required in all accessory open areas, and 

protective masonry seFeening and hedges shall ee mquimd foF the 
pmtection of adjacent property. 

6 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



(3) lA additioR to laRdseape reg~o~latioRs estal31isl9ed iR § 150 016, tl9e 
followiR§ additiOROI FCq~o~irCFRCRIS SROII apply. 
(a) W19CFe aRy developFReRt site iR tl9is district adjoiRs a resideRtial 

district, tl9ere sl9all 13e a laRdseaped 13~o~ffer area, teA feet ·.vide, 
located aloRg tl9e portioR of tl9e site wl9iel9 directly al3~o~ts tl9e 
resideRtial district. LaRdseapiRg sl9all iRel~o~de aRd eoRtiRliO~oJSiy 13e 
FRaiRtaiRed as a 19edge Rot less tl9aR tl9ree aRd oRe 19alf feet aRd 
ROt greater IROR SiJE feet iR 19eigl9t to forFR 8 CORiiRiolOiolS SCrCCR. lA 
additioR, oRe tree sl9all 13e provided for eael9 30 liRear fact. TAo 
13~o~ffer area sl9all iRel~o~de a 72 iRel9 19igl9 FRasoRry '!Nail wl9iel9 sl9all 
ClEICRd aiOR§ tAO ICR§IR of adjoiRiR§ property liRCS, ClECCpt for 
sites OR tl9ro~o~gl9 streets, wl9eFC a FRasoRry wall sl9all 13e RO closer 
tl9aR teA feet to tl9e property liRe adjaeeRt aRd parallel to tl9e 
street rigl9t of way. ~Jo off street parkiRg sl9all 13e perFRitted iR tl9e 
13~o~#ered area. 

(13) Off street parl<iRg areas sl9all 19ave at least teA sq~o~are fact of 
iRterior laRdseapiRg for eael9 parkiRg space, meel~o~diRg tl9ose 
spaces al3~o~ttiRg a periFReter for wl9iel9 laRdseapiRg is to 13e 
provided, ORd all SlolCR laRdseapiR§ SROII BC CORiiRiolOiolSiy 
FRaiRtaiRed 13y tl9e owRer. ~Jo row of parl<iRg spaces sl9all eJeeeed 
teA spaces witl9o~o~t a five foot FRiRiFR~o~FR •.vidtl9 of laRdseaped area 
to divide DRY CORiiRiolatioR of SlolCR row of parkiRg. IR additiOR, 
otl9er vel9ie~o~lar ~o~se areas sl9all 19ave oRe sq~o~are foot of 
laRdseape area, aRd Rot less tl9aR oRe tree for eael9 100 sq~o~are 
fact of paved area. 

(e) /\I eRg ~J. W. 3 6119 Street aRd oR side streets, sl9ade trees sl9all 
13e provided at FRmEiFRliFR of 30 foot iRtervals, Rot less tl9aR five 
feet froFR tl9e e~o~rl3 liRe. 

(d) For tl9e p~o~rposes of tl9is s~o~l3el9apter, tl9e protective FRasoRry wall 
FRay 13e CORStr~o~eted of CBS CORerete eleele StliCCO BAd paiRtiRg 
are. req~o~ired for all protective eo~o~Rdary walls, aRd special 
arel9iteet~o~ral feat~o~res s~o~el9 as tl9e ~o~se of 13riek, stoRe, wood, 
FReta I, or glass oR tl9ese walls FRay eo allowed if approved ey tl9e 
City PlaRRiRg aRd ZaRiA§ Board aRd tl9e City Co~o~Reil ~o~poR 
proper applieatioR aRd 19eariRg. 

(e) Tl9e owRer of MUB property, or 19is ageRt sl9all eo respoRsil31e for 
tl9e FROiRtCRORCC of lAC protective FROSORF)>' 'NOll 8Rd Of all 
laRdseapiRg wl9iel9 sl9all 13e FRaiRtaiRed at a set 19eigl9t aRd iR 
good eoRditioR so as to pFCseRt a 19ealtl9y, Real, orderly 
appearaRee, aRd sl9all eo l<ept free froFR FCf~o~se aRd deeris. /\11 
laRdseaped areas sl9all eo provided '""itl9 a readily availaele \'o'ater 
s~o~pply witl9 at least oRe o~o~tlet located witl9iR 100 feet of all pi aRt 
FRO!erial to eo FROiRIOiRCd. 

See. 1§Q 1§1. SigRs. 
SigRs iR tl9e MUB district sl9all FReet tl9e req~o~ireFReRts specified iR § 150 030, aRd tl9e 

followiRg additioRal liFRitatioRs. 

(A) No sigRs iR tl9e MUB district sl9all face tl9e Rearey resideRtial district. 

7 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



(B) ORe sigR strueture, ROt eJmeediRg 30 feet iR 11eigl1t, ORd RO'IiRg ROt FROFC lROR 
IWO Si§R SUFfaCC OFCOS, FRay SO CFCcted aiDA§ 13FiRCi130l S!FCC! fFORlO§C fFOFR 
WRiCR lRCFC is 0 FROjOF CR!FORCC to lAC devei013FRCAl. 8i§AS FRay COR!OiR DAly lAC 
ROFRC of lAC estal31iSRFRCRl ORd facilities WilRiR lAC deveiOI3FACRl. Eael1 sigR 
suFfaee sl1all 13e liFRited to 30 SEIUOFe feet for eael1 aero or 130FlioR themof, of 
laRd 066UI3iCd By lAC deveiOI3FRCRl. 

(G) For iRdividual estal31iSRFRCRl5, idCRtifieatiOR Si§RS OFC I3CFFRitted, BUt SROII ROt 
mmeed teA 13CFeeRt of t11e wall suFfaee DFea. 

(D) Detael1ed Si§RS SAO II ROt 13e 13CFFRitted, ClE6CI3l for the 13UF1305CS of I30FI~iRg, 
vehicular aRd 130destriaR directioRal sigRs so loRg as t11ese sigRs sl1all Rot 11ave 
a widtl1, leRgt11, or diaFReter CJ!eeediRg five feet No 13illl3oards shall 13e allowed. 

(e) l\Ry sigR 130rFRitted iR IRiS district, 13y IRiS OF DRY OlRCF ordiRORCC, SROII SO 
rCEIUired to Rave lAC OI3I3FOVOI of lAC City PIORRiR§ DAd ZaRiA§ Board ORd lAC 
City GouReil 13efore a sigR 130rFRit is issued. 

(F) Artificial ligl1tiRg FRay 13e used to illuFRiRate t11e 13FCFRises of advertisiRg eo13y aRd 
sl1all 13e dimeted away froFR aRy adjaeeRt resideRtial area aRd traffic flow. 

See. 1 §Q 1 §2. Develo13FRCRl 13Foeedures. 

(A) 

(B) 

(G) 

ARy devei013FRCRt witl1iR the MUB district sl1all 13e rCEIUired to RO'IC lAC site ORd 
dCVCIOI3FRCRI I3IORS OI3I3FOVCd OS 13fOVided RCreiR 13efore 0 13uildiR§ 130rFRil is 
issued, to iRsure t11at de••elo13FRCRt is iR aeeord ·nitl1 the iRteRt of this district. It 
sl1all 13e the reSI30Rsil3ility of the City PlaRRiRg a Ad ZoRiRg Board to mview sueh 
I3IORS, ORd to FROkC FCCOFRFRCRdatiORS for FROdifieatiOR, 01313r0VOI, OF dCRial iR 
aeeordaRee wit11 §§ 150 101, 150 102 
A13131ieatiORS far site ORd devei013FRCRl I3IOR 01313FO'IOI SROII SO SUSFRitted to the 
13uildiRg ORd ZORiR§ dCI30FlFRCRl aeeordiRg to lAC 13fOViSiORS of lAC ZaRiA§ Code 
ORd lAC additiOROI rCEIUiFCFRCRlS ORd I3F06Cdures SI3CCified hereiR. 
Tl1e 01313lieatioR for site aRd develo13FRCRt 13laR OI3I3FOVOI shall iRelude, 13ut sl1all 
Rot 13e liFRited to: 
(1) PlaRs, FAOI3S, studies, aRd data wl1iel1 FRay 13e Reeessary to deterFRiRe 

'Nhet11er t11e 130Flieular 13fOI30Sed devei013FRCRt FAcets tl1e iRteRt of MUB 
district, ORd lAC SI3CCifie rCEIUirCFRCRts ORd staRdards COR!OiRCd iR this 
sul3eha13ter. 

(2) A survey sl1owiRg 13f013erty aRd ovmersl1i13 I iRes; mEistiRg struetums, 
alleys, easeFReRts, aRd utility liRes. 

(3) A weliFRiRary deveiOI3FRCRl 60RCel3l 13IOR for t11e 13f0130Sed devei013FReRt 
iReludiRg t11e followiRg iRforFRatioR: 
(a) GeRerol Rature of tl1e 13fDI3DSed develo13FRCRl, 13laRRed uses aRd 

(13) 

(e) 

(d) 

(e) 

activities, aRd the RaFRe of t11e de·.•elo13er. 
LoeatioR, 11eig11t, floor area, CJ(temal 01313earaRee, aRd use of 
mdstiRg structures, if aRy, aRd Ol313fOldFRate loeatioR, orieRtatioR, 
heigl1t, floor ama ratio, aRd use of 13fOI30Sed structures. 
PFD130Sed WO!CF ORd SORitary sewer iRSIOIIatiORS, ORd IRe ROFRe of 
the •nater aRd sewer utility. 
PoiRts of iRgress aRd egress for vel1ieular aRd 13edestriaR traffic, 
eireulatioR 130ttems withiR tl1e 13rojeet, iReludiRg loeatioR aRd 
desigR of east/west roadways, wl1ere reEiuimd. 
LoeatioR, el1aracter, aRd seale of 130rl~iRg aRd service facilities, 
iReludiRg area aRd AUFRI3er of 130FI~iRg 513aees, el1araeter of 
structural 130FI~iRg, if aRy, loeatioR of loadiRg areas aRd 
eoFRFRereial vel1iele 13arl~iRg. 

8 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



(f) PrelimiRary storm se·.ver plaR. 
(g) CoReept~o~al laRdseape plaR. 
(19) AdditioRal material aRd iRformatioR as may be reEj~o~ired by tl9e 

proper ageReies of tl9e City. 
(D) W19ere a proposed developmeRt is plaRRed to be eoRstr~o~eted iR stages, tl9e 

timiRg of tl9e first stage sl9all be iRdieated. Tl9e iRformatioR eoReemiRg tl9e 
Rat~o~re of t19e developmeRt, ~o~ses, loeatioR, aRd floor areas to be developed sl9all 
also be s~o~pplied. TAe same iRformatioR sl9all be pro•,•ided for s~o~eeeediRg stages. 
IRitiatioR of s~o~eeeediRg stages sl9all be made depeRdeRt ~o~poR tl9e eompletioR of 
earlier stages aRd tl9e s~o~pplyiRg of aRy iRformatioR tl9at may be reEj~o~ired by tl9e 
proper City ageReies. 

(E) WACR a proposal CORia iRS provisiORS GORGCFRiRg lAC establisl9meRt aRd 
eoRtiR~o~iRg operatioR aRd maiRteRaRee of improvemeRts aRd facilities for 
eommoR ioJSC by lAC OGGiolpaR!S of lAC project aRd lAC geReral p~o~blie, b~o~t WAiGA 
are Rot provided, operated or maiRtaiRed at geReral p~o~blie eJtpeRse, tl1e owRer 
sl9all give ass~o~raRee iR tl9e maRRer pro•1ided below to tl9e City tl9at s~o~el9 
improvemeRts aRd facilities will be maiRtaiRed witl9o~o~t f~o~t~o~re mtpeRse to tl1e 
City, aRd t11at tl9e de•JelopmeRt will eoRform to approved site aRd developmeRt 
~ 

(F) Tl9e City may, iR its diseretioR, reEj~o~ire a s~o~rety performaRee baRd to iRs~o~re tl1at 
lAC OWRCF 8Rd de•Jeioper •.viii COmply Wi!A lAC FCEjloliFemeR!S 8Rd pFOViSiORS of 
tl9is s~o~bel9apter, or s~o~el9 otl1er see~o~rity as may be deemed appropriate by tl9e 
City Co~o~Reil. 

See. 1§Q 1§3. Fees aRd appeals. 

(A) Eael1 applieatioR filed witl9 tl9e b~o~ildiRg aRd zoRiRg departmeRt sl9all be 
aeeompaRied by tl9e paymeRt of a RORret~o~mable fee of $3 SO.OO to cover tl9e 
eJtpeRses iRe~o~rred by tl9e City iR proeessiRg aRd reviewiRg tl9e applieatioR for 
developmeRt. 

(B) TAe applieaRt sl9all reimb~o~rse tl9e City for tl9e east of aRy legal or eRgiReeriRg 
services wl9iel9 mmeed tl9e ~o~s~o~al aRd Rormal amo~o~Rt of services reRdered to tl9e 
City iR reviewiRg or praeessiRg aRy applieatioR, so loRg as tl9e additioRal 
services were reEj~o~ired as a res~o~lt of tl9e applieaRt aRd 19is applieatioR. 

(C) TAe City PlaRRiRg aRd ZoRiRg Board sl9all 19ave tRe respoRsibility to review all 
site aRd developmeRt plaRs aRd to maim reeommeRdatioRs for modifieatioR, 
apflroval, or deRial to tl9e City Co~o~Reil iR aeeordaRee ·.vitA§§ 1SO 1S2(A) aRd 
1 SO 101 aRd 1 SO 102 

(D) 1\Ry deeisioR or reeommeRdatioR by tl1e City PlaRRiRg aRd ZoRiRg Board may 
be apflealed or revie•Ned by tl1e City Co~o~Reil iR aeeordaRee witl9 tl1e proeed~o~res 
set fortl9 iR § 1 SO 113 

Section 2: That Chapter XIV and Code of Ordinance Sections 150-145 through 
150-153 are hereby reserved for the future use of City. 

Section 3: That all Ordinances or parts of Ordinances in conflict herewith are 
hereby repealed insofar as they are in conflict. 

9 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



Section 4: That the codifiers are hereby directed to codify this ordinance within 
their discretion and their prior codification of the City of Miami Springs Code of Ordinances. 

Section 5: That this Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, 
Florida this day of , 2013. 

ATTEST: 

The motion to adopt the foregoing ordinance was offered on 
second reading by , seconded by 
and on roll call the following vote ensued: 

Vice Mayor Bain " " 
Councilman Windrem " " 
Councilman Lob " " -
Councilman Petralanda " " 
Mayor Garcia " " 

Zavier M. Garcia 
Mayor 

Suzanne S. Hitaffer, CMC 
Acting City Clerk 

First reading: 
Second reading: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

11-12-2013 
11-25-2013 

Jan K. Seiden, Esquire 
City Attorney 

Words striel(eR tl9rougl9 shall be deleted. Underscored words constitute the amendment 
proposed. Words remaining are now in effect and remain unchanged. 

10 Ordinance No. 1060-2013 



The City of Miami Springs 
Summary of Monthly Attorney Invoice 

Orshan, Lithman, Seiden, Ramos, Hatton & Huesmann, LLLP 

General Fund Departments 

Office of the City Clerk 
Human Resources Department 
Risk Management 
Finance Department 

December 4 for November 

Building,Zoning & Code Enforcement Department 
Planning 
Police Department 
Public Works Department 
Recreation Department 
IT Department 
Golf 
Senior 
General -Administrative Work 
Sub-total - General Fund 

Special Revenue, Trust & Agency Funds 
Golf Course Operations 
L.E.T.F. 
Due from Pension Funds 
Sub-total -Special Funds 

GRAND TOTAL: ALL FUNDS 

3,280.50 
272.70 
789.75 

1,472.85 
445.50 
814.05 
795.15 
332.10 
438.75 

1,136.70 

2,675.70 
$12,453.75 

$0.00 

$12,453.75 

Agenda Item No. o If 
City Council Meeting of: 

~~ -r--2rJ/ 

24.30 
2.02 
5.85 

10.91 
3.30 
6.03 
5.89 
2.46 
3.25 
0.00 
8.42 
0.00 

19.82 
92.25 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

92.25 



TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Public Works 
345 N Royal Poinciana Blvd 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5170 
Fax: (305) 805-5195 

Agenda Item No. 

City Council Meeting of: 

I d. - 1:._ .;2£) I :J riit 
Honorable Mayor Garcia and e hers of the City Council 

Ronald Gorland, City Man g ~ (\ 

Thomas Nash, Public Wor s Director~ ) 

November 20, 2013 

RECOMMENDATION: 

REASON: 

COST: 

FUNDING: 

Recommendation that Council approve a change order to Wrangler Construction lnc., 
utilizing Village of Palmetto Bay Bid 2011-PW-102 in the amount of $2,267.50, for 
additional sidewalk improvements @ Hammond Dr. due to unforeseen work that 
needed to be done to meet city code, pursuant to Section §3 1. II (F)(ll )(b) of the City 
Code. 

Council approved $39,520.00 for the Hammond Drive sidewalks on September 23, 
2013. 

Current Request: 
Previously approved: 
Total: 

$ 2,267.50 
$39,520.00 
$41,787.50 

CITT funds Account # 13 5-0902-541-46-00 ~ 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES APPROVAL: ~ 



TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Parks and Recreation 
1401 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5075 
Fax: (305) 805-5077 

Honorable Mayor Garcia a 

Ronald Garland, City Man 

November 20, 20 13 

Agenda Item No. 

City Council Meeting of: 

/ .::J. - '1 - ,;u, /:3 rfi1 

RECOMMENDATION: 

DISCUSSION: 

REQUEST: 

FUNDING: 

Recommendation that Council approve a Change Order to South Florida Maintenance 
in the amount of $21,060.00, amending the current contract previously approved by 
Council, effective October I 5\ 2013 , for maintenance of the common areas surrounding 
the Parks, pursuant to Section §31.11 (F)(Il)( c). 

Funding needed to cover the additional responsibilities of South Florida Maintenance 
contract previously approved by Council. Duties will include maintenance of the 
common areas surrounding the Parks, currently serviced by Green Grades. 

$21,060.00 

Previously Approved: $67,365.00, September 23rd, 2013 
Current Request: $21.060.00 
Total Vendor Amount: $88,425.00 

Parks and Recreation/Other Contractual Services 
001-5705-572-34-00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES APPROVAL: @ _:~ 



TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Finance Department 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5035 
Fax: (305) 805-5018 

Honorable Mayor Garcia and e bers of the City Council 

Ronald Gorland, City Manag r ~ . N.__/ 
William Alonso, Asst. City anager/ Finance Director '¥'\ J' 

Tammy Romero, Professional ervices Supervisor c:2-
November 25, 2013 

Agenda Item No. 

City Council Meeting of: 

---- j.). -q, 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Recommendation that Council award City RFP # 01-13/14 and approve the execution of a contract to 
Greens Grade Services, Inc., the only responsible bidder, in the amount of $425,636.64, on an "as 
needed basis" for Golf Course Labor Services for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, pursuant to Section §31.11 
(E)( I ) of the City Code. 

DISCUSSION: On September 23rd, 2013, Council approved the Administrations recommendations to reject the bids 
received for Golf Course Labor Maintenance under RFP# 03-12/ 13 and authorized a re-bid. 

On October 81
h, 2013 were-advertised a new RFP# 01-13/14 for Golf Course Professional Labor 

Services or Professional Employer Organization Services (PEO) where 15 companies were notified of 
the opportunity. A Mandatory Pre- Bid Meeting as held on October 22"d, 2013 and only 3 companies 
were in attendance. 

The Bid opening was held on November 7, 2013 and only one response was received. I would like to 
point out the following: 

I. The requirement of the RFP was that the company must provide the management of human 
resources, employee benefits, insurances, payroll, workers' compensation and all other related 
employee costs of which Greens Grade Services has agreed to provide as referenced in Section 2-
Contract Documents, subsection "o". (Attachment " A") 

2. The only bid received was from Greens Grade Services Inc. Their response was within the 
parameters of our financial budget. 

3. The other two companies who attended the Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting provided "Statements of 
No Response" for the following reasons: 

• Regis HR Group- a PEO service company requested information that the City considered 
to be proprietary to our current contract. Please refer to Amendment I (Attachment "B") 
regarding our response to their request. 

• South Florida Maintenance (SFM)- provided a statement that their impression was that 
the City wanted to work with a PEO service and that the required maximum margin of 
1.30 is not adequate for them. (Attachment "C") 

The recommendation is to award a contract with Greens Grade Services for a one (I) year period with the 
option to renew an additional four (4) one (I) year periods on a year-to-year basis . 

FUNDING: Funds were approved during Budget Hearings 
Department/ Description: Golf Course Maintenance 
Account Number: 001-5708-572-34-00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES APPROVAL: 



Attachment A 

GOLF COURSE LABOR SERVICES A WARD CONTRACT 

THIS LABOR SERVICES AGREEMENT made and entered into this _g__day of December, 

2013, by and between the CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, a Municipal Corporation organized and existing 

under the Laws of the State of Florida, (hereinafter referred to as "City"), and GREENSGRADE SERVICES, 

INC., (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"); 

WIT N E S SETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs has determined it is necessary and in the best public interest 

to establish a contract for providing labor services or Professional Employer Organization Services 

(PEO) for the City of Miami Springs Golf Course and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs has solicited Request for Proposal# 01-13/14- Golf 

Course Professional Labor Services or Professional Employer Organization Services (PEO) ; and, 

WHEREAS, Contractor has properly submitted its Request for Proposal# 01-13/14 for Golf 

Course Professional Labor Services or Professional Employer Organization Services (PEO) as set forth 

in the attached Contract documents and in accordance with the terms and conditions thereof; and, 

WHEREAS, the City administration and the City of Miami Springs City Council have determined 

that the response of Contractor to the City's Request for Proposal # 01-13/14 is the most acceptable 

response meeting specifications for the certain items contained in the City's published Request for Proposal 

# 01-13/14; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs City Council accepted the response of Contractor to provide 

Golf Course Professional Labor Services or Professional Employer Organization Services (PEO) at its 

City council meeting of and directed the preparation of this Request for 

Proposal# 01-13/14 Award Contract for execution by the City and Contractor; 



NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Contract hereby agree as follows: 

1. RECITALS. That the foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated herein 

by reference. 

2. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. That the following listed 11 Contract Documents 11 for this 

Request for Proposal # 01-13/14 award are attached hereto and by this specific reference made a part 

hereof, to-wit: 

a) The Legal Notice of the Request for Proposal# 01-13/14 
b) General Conditions and Instructions. 
c) Signed Affidavit of acceptance 
d) Special Conditions 
e) Introduction to Request for Proposal of Request for Proposal# 01-13/14 
f) Scope of Work/Specifications of Request for Proposal# 01-13/14 
g) RFP General Conditions of Request for Proposal# 01-13/14 
h) Indemnification, Hold Harmless and Insurance Requirements of Request for Proposal # 

01-13/14 
i) Qualification Statement 
j) Proposal Response Form 
k) Questionnaire to Request for Proposal# 01-13/14 
I) Proposal Pricing for Request for Proposal # 01-13114 
m) Amendment 1 dated October 28, 2013 
n) Response of Contractor to Request for Proposal# 01-13/14 
o) The Contractor agrees to provide, at minimum, the following Services to the Golf Course: 

• Bi-weekly invoices (which coincide with the weekly time sheets) to be submitted for services 
rendered the two weeks prior. 

• Contractor must provide the management of human resources as follows: 

1. Provide a time clock machine with time cards or a system equal to for providing 
management of time worked. 

2. Prepare and provide completed packages for all Employees and submit to the City for 
the interviewing process. A package is considered complete once it contains at 
minimum the following: 
• Written statement on company letter head that the employee recommended for hire 
has met the minimum qualifications as required in the RFP Section 2- scope of 
Work/ Specifications, subsection 2. 9 General scope of Work. Proof of verification 
must be attached. i.e. - results of drug testing, copy of certification and licenses. 
• Original signed and completed employee application 
• Original signed and completed W -4 form 
• Copy of background checks to include, prior arrests, warrants and drivers license 
status. 

2 



3. Must maintain at all times the 14 employees as required in Section 2- Scope of World 
Specifications, subsection 2.10 Schedule-Golf Course. In the event an employee 
needs to be replaced, the hiring process must be conducted in a timely manner. The 
City of Miami Springs shall not be left more than 5 business days without the 
replacement of a new hire. 

4. Processing of forms for any injured or deceased employees shall be the responsibility 
of the contractor. 

• Background checks must be conducted annually on all 14 employees and submitted on or 
before Sept. 301

h of every year prior to contract renewal. 
• Drug Testing must be conducted by a private contractor or Public Entity approved by the City 

ofMiami Springs. 

3. BOUND BY DOCUMENTS. That the parties mutually agree to be bound by the aforesaid 

"Contract Documents" in the administration and completion of this Contract. 

4. CONTRACTOR REPRESENTATIONS. That Contractor represents and warrants to the City 

that the Contractor (i) possesses all qualifications, licenses and expertise required by the Request for 

Proposal# 01-13/14 for the performance of the requested services; (ii) is and shall be, at all times during the 

term hereof, fully qualified and trained to perform the services and (iii) will perform the services in the 

manner described in the Contract Documents. 

5. CONTRACT SERVICES. That this Request for Proposal# 01-13/14 Award Contract shall 

encompass the following work to be performed by the Contractor, to-wit: 

Golf Course Professional Labor Services or Professional Employer Organization Services (PEO), 

in the contracted amount of$ 425,636.64 annually 

6. CONTRACTOR DUTIES. That Contractor agrees to provide all services, materials, and 

equipment necessary for the timely completion of its duties and responsibilities as set f011h in its 

proposal and all other referenced and attached "Contract Documents". 

3 



7. OWNERSHIP OF INFORMATION AND DOCUMENTS. That Contractor 

understands and agrees that any information, document, report or any other material which is given 

by the City to Contractor or which is otherwise obtained or prepared by Contractor, pursuant to or 

under the terms of this Contract, is and shall at all times remain the property of the City. Contractor 

agrees not to use any such information, document, report or material for any other purpose without 

the written consent of the City, which may be withheld or conditioned by the City in its sole 

discretion. 

8. PAYMENT. That the City agrees to make all payments to the Contractor for all work 

performed in accordance with the terms and conditions for payment contained in the referenced and 

attached "Contract Documents". 

9. BUDGETARY APPROPRIATION. That notwithstanding anything contained herein to 

the contrary, the parties hereto mutually acknowledge that in the event that no funds or insufficient 

funds are budgeted and appropriated during any term of the contract for the payment of the 

obligations hereunder to the Contractor, the City's obligations under this Contract shall automatically 

terminate on the last day of the fiscal year in which funds were budgeted and appropriated for this 

Contract. 

10. AUDIT AND INSPECTION RIGHTS. 

A. That the City may, at reasonable times, and for a period of up to three (3) years following 

the date of final payment by the City to Contractor under this Contract, audit, or cause to be audited, 

those books and records of Contractor which are related to Contractor's performance under this 

4 



Contract. Contractor agrees to maintain all such books and records at its principal place of business 

for a period of three (3) years after the final payment is made under this Contract. 

B. That the City may, at all reasonable times during the term hereof, inspect Contractor's 

facilities and perform such tests as the City deems reasonably necessary to determine whether the 

goods or services required to be provided by Contractor tmder this Contract conform to the terms 

hereof. Contractor shall make available to the City all applicable facilities, at a reasonable time, and 

will assist with the facilitation of any tests or inspections by City representatives. 

11. SOLICITATION OF CONTRACT: That Contractor represents and warrants to the 

City that Contractor has not employed or retained any person or company employed by the City to 

solicit or secure this Contract and that Contractor has not offered to pay, paid, or agreed to pay any 

person any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, or gift of any kind contingent upon or in 

connection with the award ofthis Contract. 

12. PUBLIC RECORDS. That Contractor understands that the public shall have access, at 

all reasonable times, to all documents and information pertinent to this Contract, subject to the 

provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and agrees to allow access by the City and the public to 

all documents subject to disclosure under applicable law. Contractor's failure or refusal to comply 

with the provisions ofthese sections shall result in the immediate cancellation of this Contract by the 

City. 

13. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS: 

That Contractor understands that Contracts between private entities and local governments are 

subject to certain laws and regulations, including laws pertaining to public records, conflict of 

5 



interest, and record keeping. City and Contractor agree to comply with and observe all applicable 

laws, codes and ordinances as they may be amended from time to time. 

14. IND EMNIFI CA TI 0 N. That Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 

City and its officials, employees and agents (collectively referred to as "Indemnities") and each of 

them from and against all loss, costs, penalties, fines, damages, claims, expenses (including 

attorney's fees) or liabilities (collectively referred to as "Liabilities") by reason of any injury to or 

death of any person or damage to or destruction of loss of any property arising out of, resulting from 

or in connect with the performance or non-performance of the services contemplated by this Contract 

which is, in whole or in part, by any act, omission, default or negligence or the failure of the 

Contractor to conform to statutes, ordinances, or other regulations or requirements of any 

governmental authority, federal or state, in connection with the performance of this Agreement. 

15. DEFAULT. That if Contractor fails to comply with any term or condition of this 

Contract or fails to perform any of its obligations hereunder, then Contractor shall be default. Upon 

the occurrence of a default hereunder the City, in addition to all remedies available to it by law may, 

as provided herein, upon written notice to Contractor, terminate this Contract whereupon all 

payments, advances, or other compensation paid by the City to Contractor for the period during 

which Contractor was in default shall be immediately returned to the City. Contractor understands 

and agrees that termination of this Contract under this section shall not release Contractor from any 

obligation accruing prior to the effective date of termination. Should Contractor be unable or 

unwilling to commence performance of the services within the time provided or contemplated 

6 



herein, then, in addition to the foregoing, Contractor shall be liable to the City for expenses incurred 

as a result of the non-performance including all costs and expenses incurred by the City in the re

procurement of services, including consequential and incidental damages. 

16. RESOLUTION OF CONTRACT DISPUTES WITH CITY. That Contractor 

understands and agrees that all disputes between Contractor and the City based upon an alleged 

violation of the tetms of this Contract by the City shall be submitted to the City Manager for 

resolution, prior to Contractor being entitled to seek judicial relief in connection therewith. 

Contractor shall not be entitled to seek judicial relief unless Contractor has first received the City 

Manager's written decision, within a reasonable period of time after submission, which fails to 

resolve the matters in dispute between the parties. 

17. CITY'S TERMINATION RIGHTS. 

A. That the City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time following 

Contractor's receipt of written notification of default and Contract termination to be effective thirty 

(30) days thereafter. In such event, the City shall pay to Contractor compensation for services 

rendered and City approved expenses incurred prior to the effective date of termination. 

B. That the City shall have the right to terminate this Contract upon the occurrence of an 

event of default hereunder in the event that Contractor fails to cure a default within 30 days of 

receiving notice of the default. In such event the City shall not be obligated to pay any amounts to 

Contractor for any period during which the Contractor was in default and Contractor shall reimburse 

7 



to the City all amounts received for any period during which Contractor was in default under this 

Contract. 

18. INSURANCE. That Contractor shall, at all times during the term hereof, maintain such 

insurance coverage as may be required by the City. All such insurance, including renewals, shall be 

subject to the approval of the City for adequacy of protection and evidence of such coverage shall be 

furnished to the City on Certificates oflnsurance indicating such insurance to be in force and effect 

and providing that it will not be cancelled during the performance of the services under this Contract 

without thirty (30) calendar days prior written notice to the City. Completed Certificates of 

Insurance shall be filed with the City prior to the performance of services hereunder, provided, 

however, that Contractor shall, at any time, upon request, file duplicate copies ofthe policies of such 

insurance with the City. 

19. NONDISCRIMINATION. That Contractor represents and watTants to the City that 

Contractor does not and will no engage in discriminatory practices and that there shall be no 

discrimination in connection with Contractor's performance under this Contract on account of race, 

color, sex, religion, age, handicap, marital status or national origin. Contractor further covenants that 

no otherwise qualified individual shall, solely by reason of his/her race, color, sex, religion, age, 

handicap, mat·ital status or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied services, or 

be subject to discrimination under any provision of this Contract. 

20. ASSIGNMENT. That this Contract shall not be assigned by Contractor, in whole or in 

part, without the prior written consent of the City Manager, which may be withheld or conditioned, 

in the City Manager's sole and exclusive discretion. 

8 



21. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Refer to Section 1.0 Introduction to Request for Proposal, 

subsection 1.15 Liquidated Damages. 

22. CONTRACT DURATION. Shall be in effect for a one (1) year period effective from 

the date of the award and shall have the option to renew this contract for an additional four (4) one 

(I) year periods on a year-to-year basis. 

23. NOTICES. All Notices or other communications required under this Contract, shall be 

in writing and shall be given by hand-delivery or by registered or certified U.S. Mail, return receipt 

requested, addressed to the other party at the address indicated herein or to such other address as a 

party may designate by notice given as herein provided. Notice shall be deemed given on the day on 

which personally delivered, or, if by mail, on the fifth day after being posted or the date of actual 

receipt, whichever is earlier. 

TO CONTRACTOR: 

Kenneth Kniaz, President 
GREENS GRADE SERVICES, INC. 
12253 NW 11 Street 
Pembroke Pines, FL. 33026 

TO THE CITY: 

Ronald K. Gorland, City Manager 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 

24. ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS. That should it become necessary for either party to 

this Contract to bring suit to enforce any provisions hereof or for damages on account of any breach 

of this Contract, the prevailing patty in any such litigation, and any appeals therefrom, shall be 

entitled to recover from the other patty, in addition to any damages or other relief granted as a result 

of such litigation, all costs and expenses of such litigation and reasonable attorney's fee as fixed by 

the court. 

9 



25. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. THIS AGREEMENT and the rights and liabilities 

of the parties hereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. In the event oflitigation in 

regard to the parties' agreement, the venue for such action shall be in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

26. PUBLIC RECORDS PROVISION. That Contractor understands public records, 

subject to the provisions of Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, is created to read: 

(l) For purposes of this section, the term: 

(a) "Contractor" means an individual, partnership, corporation, or business entity 

that enters into a contract for services with a public agency and is acting on behalf of the public 

agency as provided under s. 119.0 II (2). 

(b) "Public agency" means a state, county, district, authority, or municipal officer, 

or department, division, board, bureau, commission, or other separate unit of government created 

or established by law. 

(2) In addition to other contract requirements provided by law, each public agency 

contract for services must include a provision that requires the contractor to comply with public 

records laws, specifically to: 

(a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be 

required by the public agency in order to perform the service. (b) Provide the public with access 

to public records on the same terms and conditions that the public agency would provide the 

records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this chapter or as otherwise 

provided by law. 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 

public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law. 

10 



(d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to 

the public agency all public records in possession of the contractor upon termination of the 

contract and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 

from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided 

to the public agency in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of 

the public agency. 

(3) If a contractor does not comply with a public records request, the public agency shall 

enforce the contract provisions in accordance with the contract. 

27. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 

A. That this Contract shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Florida. 

B. That title and paragraph headings contained herein are for convenient reference and are 

not a part of this Contract. 

C. That no waiver or breach of any provisions of this Contract shall constitute a waiver of 

any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision hereof, and no waiver shall be effective 

unless made in writing. 

D. That should any provision, paragraph, sentence, word or phrase contained in this Contract 

be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or otherwise unenforceable 

under the laws of the State of Florida, such provision, paragraph, sentence, word or phrase shall be 

deemed modified to the extent necessary in order to conform with such law, or if not modifiable, 

then same shall be deemed severable, and in either event, the remaining terms and provisions of this 

Contract shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect or limitation of its use. 

11 



E. That this Contract constitutes the sole and entire agreement between the parties hereto. No 

modification or amendment hereto shall be valid unless in writing and executed by properly 

authorized representatives of the parties hereto. 

F. That this Contract shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their heirs, executors, legal 

representatives, successors or assigns. 

G. That Contractor has been procured and is being engaged to provide services to the City as 

an Independent Contractor, and not as an agent or employee of the City. Accordingly, Contractor 

shall not attain, nor be entitled to, any rights or benefits under the Civil Service or Pensions 

Ordinances of the City, nor any rights generally afforded classified or unclassified employees. 

Contractor further understands that Florida Worker's Compensation benefits available to employees 

of the City are not available to Contractor, and Contractor agrees to provide workers' compensation 

insurance for any employee or agent of Contractor rendering services to the City under this Contract. 

H. That this instrument and its attachments constitute the sole and only agreement of the 

parties relating to the subject matter hereof and correctly set forth the rights, duties, and obligations 

of each to the other as of the date hereof. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or 

representations not expressly set forth in this Contract are of no force or effect. 

I. That this Contract may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall 

constitute an original, but all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same 

Contract. 

12 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the patties hereto have executed this Contract on the day and 

date first above written in five (5) counterparts, each of which shall, without proof or accounting for 

the other counterpart, be deemed to be an original Contract. 

ATTEST: 

Suzanne Hitaffer, Acting City Clerk 

(SEAL) 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE 

BY: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, 
A Municipal Corporation 

RONALD K. GORLAND, City Manager 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared RONALD K. GORLAND and 
SUZANNE HITAFFER, the City Manager and Acting City Clerk respectively, of the City ofMiami 
Springs, 

personally known to me, or 
produced identification: ____ _ _ _____ _ 

who being first duly sworn by me, state that they have executed the foregoing Contract for the 
purposes herein expressed. 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this __ day of _____ _ , 2013. 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State ofFlorida at Large 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

13 



GREENS GRADE SERVICES, INC. 

BY: --------------------------
Print Name: ---------------------------
Print Title: ---------------------------

ATTEST: 

Print Name: -------------------

(SEAL) 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE 

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared __________ _ 
-----------------------------------' President and Secretary respectively, of the 
the firm of GREENS GRADE SERVICES, INC. 

personally known to me, or 
produced identification: _____________________ _ 

who being first duly sworn by me, state that they have executed the foregoing Contract for the 
purposes herein expressed. 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED before me this ____ day of _______ , 2013. 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Florida at Large 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES: 

14 



Tammy Romero 

From: Jorge Saladrigas Usaladrigas@RegisHRGroup.com] 

Sent: Tuesday, October 29, 2013 4:37 PM 

To: Tammy Romero 

Cc: Marc Rodriguez 

Subject: RE: Amendment 1 for Golf Course Labor Services or PEO Services 

Thank you Tammy. 

Attaclunent B 

Without access to the information we requested (Question #1 in the Amendment), Regis HRG cannot 
develop a proposal as we need that information to determine our costs and price to the client. 

If that information is currently unavailable, we will have to withdraw from providing a proposal for our 
services. 

Should the situation change at any time, or if you have any questions, please feel free to give us a call. 

From: Tammy Romero [mailto:romerot@miamisprings-fl.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, October 29, 2013 4:00 PM 
To: KEN KNIAZ; Jorge Saladrigas; Christian Infante; marc.rodriguez@regisgroup.com 
Subject: Amendment 1 for Golf Course Labor Services or PEO Services 
Importance: High 

Good afternoon, 

Please find attached Amendment 1 for the following: 

·Request for Proposal #01-13/14 for Miami Springs Golf Course Labor Service or 
PEO services 

Print out and retain with your records. 

Thank you, 

Tammy Romero 

Professional Services Supervisor 
Crn' OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, Fl. 33166 
305-805-5035 Phone 
305-805-5018 Fax 
romerot@miamisprinqs-fl .gov 

Please save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary. 

11/7/2013 



Attachment C 

STATEMENT OF NO RESPONSE 

Some recipients of t his sol icitation may elect not to respond for a 
vadety of reasons . 'l'he City of t-liami Springs is very inte rested in 
learning whether certain conditions exist with our s olicitation process 
which may discourage responses . Accordingly , if you elect not to 
respond wi t h an o ffer to this solicitation , we ask that you ind i cate 
the reason below and e ither fax t his form to 305-805- 5018 or mail the 
form to : 

Ci ty of Miami Springs 
Finance Department 
20 1 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs , FL 33166-5259 

[] We do not offer t his product/service or an equivalent. 
[] Our s chedu l e would not permit us to perform 
[] Insufficient time to respond to solicitation. 
[] Unable t o meet specifications . 
0 Specifications not clear . 
[] Unable to meet bond and/or insurance requirements . 
[] Solicitation addressed incorrectly. 
[] Specifications "too tight" 

(i. e . geared to specifi c brand or manufacturer ). 

If an explanation is appropriate , you may include it below or in an 
attached letter. 

Due to the large number of compani es listed on the City' s vendor list 
and the cost of 1nailing, i t is necessary to delete the names of persons 
or businesses who fail to respond to three (3) consecutive 
solicitations without giving a reason or reques ting retention on our 
vendor list. 

Do you desire f ut ure solicitations? J:8. Yes 0 No 

Company: ;:2511 ~e ....... v '1 c.<.:. c·~ ·~ . 

Address: !IJ...DC' !Vt, 2 ··7.q +6 flvt. . fbr:i'lth c.,; ... rAf4 1-
7 
R .. 3-;:SnU-

RFP# 01 · 13/ 14 9 Initials 



Monday. November I I. 20 13 

City of Miami Springs 
201 Wt:sl\\·ard Drive 
Miami Springs. FL 33166-5289 

Reference: RFP 01-13/ 14 

To whom it may concern : 

ln reference to RFP 01-1 3/ 14. SFM Services, Inc. decided not to submit a proposal Cor 
the rollowing reasons: 

• We got the impression thm the City preferred to work with a Professional 
Employer Organization Service (PEO) rather than a Profess ional Landscape 
Contractor. 

• The ;'Proposed Profit rvtnrgin'· or 1.30 the City mandated is not adequate. 

1 r you bavc any questions or 'voulcl like to further discuss please Lee! fi·ce to contact me. 

Sincere!). 

Ph: 305.818.~42·1 Fax: 305.81 R351 0 
9700 NW 79'h /\vr.:. ll ialcah Ga rdc11S. Fl. J:>OJ6 



TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Finance Department 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5035 
Fax: (305) 805-5018 

Agenda Item No. 

City Oouncil Meeting of: 

I~- -9-_ ,}{)I;;.. zfl1 

Honorable Mayor Garcia and M m ers of the City Council 

Ronald Gorland, City Mana r\ I . \ ~/\ / 
William Alonso, Asst. City g r/Finance Director ~\f 

Tammy Romero, Professional Ser ices Supervisor ~ 
December 3, 2013 

RECOMMENDATION: 

DISCUSSION: 

REQUEST: 

FUNDING: 

Recommendation that Counci l waive the competitive bid process and approve an 
expenditure of $15,111.00, on an "as needed basis" by each department to Southern 
Waste Systems for garbage and recycling collection for a ll city buildings with various 
pickups a week for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the 
City Code and pursuant to the contract renewal option provided by the City' s existing 
contract/contract vendor for an additional one (I) year period. 

On December I ih of20 II, Council approved the award of a contract with Southern 
Waste Systems (SWS) as the lowest responsible quote for garbage and recycling 
collection for all city buildings. The contract was for I year with two additional I year 
renewal options. SWS has accepted their I st year renewal option per the attached email. 

$15,111.00 

Funds were approved during Budget Hearings 

Department/ Description/ Account Number: 
Golf/ Contractual Services $3700.00 
PW & C ity Hall/Dumping and Disposal $2600.00 
Senior Center /Dumping & Disposal $13 11 .00 
Rec./Pooi/Contractual Services $7500.00 

$15,111.00 

001-5707-572-34-00 
430-3401-534-34-02 
140-5101-519-34-02 
001-5701-572-34-00 

PROFESSfONAL SERVICES APPROVAL: &-



Tammy Romero 

From: Rosita Hernandez 

Sent: Tuesday, December 03, 2013 8:27AM 

To: Tammy Romero 

Subject: FW: contract renewal for city of miami springs 

1?();1-Ucvf{er~ 
Procurement-supen;i1JO·r 
City ofMiami/Spri#lffr 
345 N Royal-Po-tncia-na/ BL 1/c? 
Mia+nVS,!Jr~ TL 33166 
305 805-5170 ea-4228 
T(A4(/305 805-5177 

From: Tony Badala [mailto:tbadala@southernwastesystems.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, December 03, 2013 7:52 AM 
To: Rosita Hernandez 
Subject: RE: contract renewal for city of miami springs 

~ Yes, we will renew for next 1 year 
r' Tony Badala 

d:-:----
Southern Waste Systems LLC I Sun Recycling I Sun Disposal/ All Star Toilets 
790 Hillbrath Drive I Lantana, Florida 33462 
c . 561 -441 -9095/ f. 561-582-6985 

--1 et. ycltng for lmo W~>ste 

Soutllern Waste Systems 

Please consider the environment b efore printing this email. 

www.southernwastesvstems.com 

From: Rosita Hernandez [mailto:hernandezr@miamisprinqs-fl.gov] 
Sent: Monday, December 02, 2013 12:51 PM 
To: Michael Phillips 
Cc: Tony Badala 
Subject: contract renewal for city of miami springs 

Good afternoon 

We need to know if your company will be renewing your contract for the last time for the upcoming 

year. 
Here are your numbers. 

12/3/20 13 

Page 1 of2 



Page 2 of2 

1- Public Works 343 Royal Poinciana Blvd. 1-2yd I lx weekly $36.80 
2- City Hall 201 Westward Dr. 1-2yd I 5x weekly $179.69 
3- Golf Course 650 Curtiss Pkwy 1-2yd I 2x weekly & 

1-6yd I 2x weekly $287.51 
4- Senior Center 343 Payne Dr. 1-2yd I 3x weekly $107.07 

5- Recreation/Pool 1401 Westward Dr. 1-4yd I 4x weekly $287.51 
1-96ga I 1x weekly $28.14 

RO;fUl:vf{er~ 
Procurement' Supewt:Jo-r 
cay orMt:amVSpnA1ffr 
345 N RoyabP~ 13L vd
Mt:amVspr~ FL 33166 
305 805-5170 ~4228 
FCI1(/305 805-5177 

The City of Miami Springs is on Twitter and has a website MiamiSprings-FL.Gov 
Please save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary. 

Internal Virus Database is out of date. 
Checked by AVG- www.avg.com 
Version: 8.5.455 I Virus Database: 271 .1.1/5970- Release Date: 07/06/13 16:46:00 

12/3/2013 



TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Miami Springs Country Club 
650 Curtiss Parkway 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5180 
Fax: (305) 805-5192 

Honorable Mayor Garcia an 

Ronald Gorland, City Manag 
Paul O'Dell, DirectorofGol 

Laurie Bland, Golf Course Superintendent~ 

December 3, 2013 

City Council Meeting of: 

!d. -1-)(}ttl\ 

RECOMMENDATION: 

DISCUSSION: 

REQUEST: 

FUNDING: 

Recommendation that Council approve an expenditure to US Lubricants LLC, the 
lowest responsible quote, in the amount of$ 25,000.00, on an "as needed basis" for 
fuel for the maintenance equipment for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, pursuant to Section 
§3 1.1 I (C) (2) of the City Code. 

To fuel maintenance equipment for the golf course. 

$25,000.00 

Funds were approved during Budget Hearings 

Department/ Desctiption: Golf Maintenance/Fuel 
Account Number: 001-5708-572-52-02 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES APPROVAL: ~ 'JJI 



Tammy Romero 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Subject: 

Laurie Bland 

Tuesday, December 03, 2013 2:31 PM 

Tammy Romero 

RE: Fuel 

Attachments: Recommendation to Council Memo- FUEL US Lubricants.doc 

From: Laurie Bland 
Sent: Tuesday, December 03, 2013 1:12PM 
To: Tammy Romero 
Subject: Fuel 

Tammy, 

We have collected three quotes, how do you recommend I should proceed: 

aofe I Macmillan Oil- not charging freight or environmental 

$3.4977 I gallon- Gas 

$3.6168 I gallon- Diesel 

Palmdale Oil- charges freight and environment fees 

$2.89 I gallon- Gas 

$3.49 I gallon- Diesel 

~ok 3 US Lubricant LLC- not charging freight, or environmental fees 

$2.80 I gallon- Gas 

$3.491 gallon- Diesel 

Laurie Bland 
Director of Golf Course Maintenance 
Miami Springs Country Club 
650 Curtiss Parkway 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 
(786) 371-3146 cell 
blandl@rniamisprings-fl.gov 

12/4/2013 

Page 1 of2 



Paul O'Dell 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

jorger@us -lubes.com 
Tuesday, December 03, 2013 12:17 PM 

Paul O 'Dell 

Quote 

•nxr -

P..s to you r last fuel delivery 9-24-13, our cost to Miami Springs Golf and Country Club will be as the 
fo llowing; 

1- Dyed Diesel@ $3.4993 per I Gal. 

2- Unl. Gasoline @ $ 2.7970 per I Gal. 

Note : We do not charge Freight Fuel Surcharge and Environmental Compliance Fee (these fees only 
add up to 4.5 Cents per I Gal. At the end of our analysis we can save you .06 Cents on the Gas and .09 
Cents on the Diesel .) 

Again thanks for allowing us to quote our fuel prices. 

Regards, 

Jorge L. Rios I US Lubricant LLC. 

rrxll c_j 

The City of Minmi Springs is on Twitter and has a website MiamiSprings-FL.Gov 

Plea£e s <:lve a tree. Don't: print thi s e- mail unless it's really n ecessary. 



Tammy Romero 

From: Laurie Bland 

Sent: Wednesday, December 04, 2013 10:11 AM 

To: Tammy Romero 

Subject: FW: Macmillan Oil quote. 

Attachments: New CREDIT APPLICATION and AGREEMENT (8).doc 

----- Forwarded Message-----
From: Frank Saldana <frank@macmillanoil.com> 
To: "blendl@miamisprings. fl .gov" <blendl@miamisprings. fl .gov> 
Sent: Monday, November 25, 2013 3:53 PM 
Subject: Macmillan Oil quote. 

Lorry, it was a pleasure talking to you today. 
Our price for Regular unleaded gasoline today is $3.4977 the Ultra low red dyed 
sulfur is $3.6168 
this includes freight and all applicable State and Federal taxes. 
I don't th ink this will apply to you but just in case we have a minimum of 200 
gallons per delivery, if less we charge $75.00 for the delivery. 
I'm attaching a simple credit application for you to fill out at your earliest 
convenience. 

Thanks for the opportunity to be your fuel supplier. 

Sincerely, 

FRANK A. SALDANA 
District Sales Manager 
Macmillan Oil Company of Florida, Inc 
Serving South Florida Since 1951 

2955 E 11 Avenue 
Hialeah, FL 33013 
cellular: 754-214-5989 
fax: 305-693-1880 
e-mail: frank@macmillanoil.com 

12/4/2013 

Page 1 of 1 



Pal~ndale, 
(OIL COMPANY 

911 N. 2nd STREET 
FT. PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 

800·785·7114 

PAGE NO. INVOICE DATE 

1 10 /23/ 13 
WAREHOUSE INVOICE NO. 

1 363679 

Ship Date: 10/23/13 

MIAMI SPRINGS GOLF & COUNTRY C 
DAISY GARCIA, A/P 

MIAMI SPRINGS GOLF & COUNTRY C 
DAISY GARCIA, A/P . 

201 WESTWARD DRIVE 212326B 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166 407874G 

P.O. NUMBER ACCOUNT NO. SHIP VIA SALES ID. B.O.l. I 5~W~b~G 

Product Code/ 
Description 

Quantity 
·shipped 

B/L Number-- 546858 
XX GAS PRODUCTS DO NOT MEET SPECS FOR RFG, 
XX MAY NOT BE USED IN RFG C?VERED AREAS. 
XX MAY CONTAIN UP JO 10% E-10 

065 \ 
87 OCT E-10 I I -

XX PRODUCT ' IS DYED 'DJ:ESEL, 'NdNTAXABLE USE ) 
• • • -~ ~ # # •• ...., ..... .,. ............_ ·-. ~ / 

XX ONLY, PENALTY FOR TAXABLE USE OFF HWY"::-
XX NOT LEGAL· '·FOR'·MO':tOR VEHICLE USE. 

227 ··· .. · .. ::··." '~;_..:;~J r.:~!; 

ULT LS DSL-DYED 90.0 
88 
FREIGHT FUEL SURCHARGE 
99 

1.0 

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE FEE .. ,;: 'L' •· , , .!\..,. " ' 1.0 

j I ' i I ; I : ;•', 

MIAMI-DADE LOCAL OPTION 

. ·.· 

·;. · -.- !\ 
"··-· 

. , , ; ,·_ 

! ··.·:._:r· .. _~_. · •_'\' . 

·' 
: · -· j , 

. : •• . . ! . · 

DIESEL EXHAUST ~: LUiD 
PALMDALE OIL COMPANY 

911 N. 2nd STREET 
FT. PIERCE, FLORIDA 34950 

800-785·7114 

www.palmdaleoil.com 

207.0 

Price 
Each 

8. 950000' 

0.062000 

.. . ~ . 

TERMS 

Extension 

591. 60 

313. 74 

13.15 

8.95 

12 . 83 



TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

DISCUSSION: 

COST: 

FUNDING: 

FEDERAL 
STATUTE: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Police Department 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 887-1444 

Agenda Item No. 2.?& 
Clty Council Meeting of: 

Fax: (305) 884-2384 

Honorable Mayor Garcia and ~~f the City Council 

Ronald K. Garland, City Mana 

Peter G. Baan, Chief of Police • P .;:;:;,.(. ~ 
December 4, 20 13 

!).+ ,pot~ 

Recommendation that Council approve an expenditure of $1,500.00, to ITC Group, 
Inc., for Network Design/configuration to enhance security measures for the Police 
phone system, for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, as a sole source provider, pursuant to 
Section §31.11 (E)(6)( c) of the City Code. 

Recommendation that Council approve an expenditure to CDW-G, the lowest 
responsible quote, in the amount of $1,591.88, for hardware required to enhance 
security measures for the Police phone system, for Fiscal Year 2013-2014, pursuant to 
Section §31.11 (C)(2) of the City Code. 

Purchase necessary network design services/configuration and hardware to upgrade the 
existing Voice over IP technology (VoiP) to include enhanced security measures as 
directed by FDLE CllS Security Policy to establish VLAN technology to segment 
VoiP traffic from data traffic. See attached documentation; 1) Memo from Chief P. 
Baan, 2) Memo from L. Bosque, 3) Quote from ITC Group, Inc. for network 
design/configuration 2) Quotes from CDW-G, lTC Group, Inc. and PCM for required 
hardware. 

$3,091.88 

Department/ Description: LETF Machinery & Equipment/ LETF Operating Supplies 
/LETF Professional Services 

Account Number: 650-2010-521 .64-00/650-2010-521.52-00/650-2010-521.31-00 

Civil Asset Forfeiture Reform Act, PL 106-185 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES APPROVAL: dlf2 J' 



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Miami Springs 
Police Department 

Memorandum 

Ronald K. Gorland, City Manager (} ~ ! /) ~ _ 
Peter G. Baan, ChiefofPolice ~~·/ ~ 
Police Network Upgrade 

12/04/2013 

A recent audit of the Police Department data/communications network by the Florida 
Department of Law Enforcement revealed some system security issues that need to be addressed. 
In her attached memorandum dated 12/03/2013, Communications Supervisor Linda Bosque 
detailed the system upgrade that is necessary to correct these issues. 

The total cost for the system upgrade is $3,091.88. Funding for this proposal is available from 
the Law Enforcement Trust Fund. I recommend that this item be placed on the next regular City 
Council Meeting Agenda for approval. 

Attachments 



MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: ChiefP. Baan 

FROM: Linda Bosque, Communications Sup...,.w,"VJ' 

SUBJECT: Proposal: Upgrade security ofVoiP n twork 

DATE: December 3, 2013 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this proposal is to upgrade our existing Voice over IP technology 

(VoiP) to include enhanced security measures. We will incorporate a level-two smart 
switch and router to implement a digital telephone network that separates voice from data 
traffic. As directed by FDLE CJIS Security Policy, our agency must establish VLAN 
technology to segment VoiP traffic from data traffic. 

Purchase Proposal: 
I propose that we upgrade the current digital phone system with two 26-port smati 

switches and a router configured to run all Police phones over a separate segment of the 
PBX. The vendor ITC will redesign the network, configure the routers, switches, phone 
IPs and firewall to run on the new VLAN configuration. Since the PBX hardware 
management interface is a customjzed program written and managed by JTC, they are a 
sole source vendor with the expertise to redesign and configure the phone system to meet 
these requirements. 

Product Description: 
Total Cost: $3,091.88 

Quotes were obtained from lTC and two other vendors for the hardware; see attached 
quotes: 

lTC Group, Inc 
4995 NW 79 Ave #112 
Dora), FL 33166 
Ph/305-593-9004 
Contact Person: Alex Garcia 

CDW-G 

Network Design/configuration $1 ,500.00 

Netgear M4100 26pmi L2 POE (2) $1,165.06 
Cisco 881 K9 Router (1) $ 426.82 

$1 ,591.88 



lTC Group, Inc. 
Voice & Data Solutions 

INVOICE NO. 4995 NW 79 Ave, Suite 112 

Doral, FL 33166 

alexg@itcgrp.com 
DATE November 25, 2013 

CUSTOMER ID 

EXPIRATION DATE December 20, 2013 

TO City of Miami Springs 

201 Westaward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 

Attn: Jorge Fonseca 

Reconfiguring PO Network 

;SALE~PERSON -~ _" JOB ···: PAYMENT TERMS -, .. :::. ._ .. 

Alex Garcia PO Network Due upon Receipt 

,- "·DESCRIPTION 

4.00 Redes1gn network 

2.00 Reconfiguring routers & smart Switches 

2.00 Configuring Firewall and IP PBx for 
new network 

4.00 Reconfiguring VoiP Phones (Yealinks) for 
VLAN 
Testing & implementation 

Quotation prepared by: Alex Garcia 
This Is a quotation on the goods named, subject to the conditions noted below: 
(Customer herby authorizes the work to be done with the necessary mater1als and labor rates as described above. 
Prices li materials are good for 30 days. After 30 days prices are subject lo change without notice . } 

To accept this quotatoon, sign here and ret..-n: 

·,UNIT PRICE 

5 125.00 

125.00 

125.00 

125.00 

SUBTOTAL 
SALES TAX 

TOTAL 

f\. 
THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS! . , 
. ! ,I ,~·._;· ' ' o [ I • ' .:J .:• i ~·& · .... ~:. _:~,~,-.}d •, 

DUE DATE 

.. LIN-E TOTAl 

~ soo.pp·-
~-. ··; ;;;; ~li..,;;t. 

-~' ' ····.:·J5,Q. qqc 
I 

·" 
. " ' l;lll·)~'-' ~ ·; .. ' -~~ - ;: 

s c i:250.Qp. ~ 
·" . ·~.~ .. ~ c """'' ·_; 

- <' "'· 
J 5_00.00 

·-
<.l . '{ 

~)1· i: ~;r .• 
r;t, ~-?'.;: ~ , t'i' y};%·_:; . . ~ 

·-; ~;:.J)I' ~~ i": "lf .: '.. . :·~::,·, "t*~> 

., !;)!''"' ···: J~t;_:~. ,: ' ·' _,:¥. -
, {~j,l;~>';;~,ri; "'''• 

ill/ _;~~f,{ J..i·i ~~t. ffi 
ll' { ·~~!A~~j'l~~n' :·;•' ~-.· , .1:.. ,1-A .. Y.~ . ,~1: ;t, 

-~ "~lt~itJ63t ;;~·1~::!~ ~ ', . .: ''· • ~I.J· .}' ,• . 

I'• ·!~~t~frtf..~;,:;'· ., ' .. " ·-:i:c· .-f.•!f, , · .•· •. ,:, · 
•'• :r.;· • .t.' ~ 

; ~-· . 

s ,1, s_oQ:oo .. 
-

s 1,5p0.0.0 ' 



;uw-u (..1uote contirmatJOn: (..luote # ll:HJKC'/ X/P.U. Ket. VUIP UP ... 

of2 

Subject: CDW-G Quote Confirmation : Quote #1BDRC7X/P . O. Ref . VOIP UPGRADE- REV! 
From : Zach Roden <zachrod@cdwg . com> 
Date : 12/03/2013 10:14 AM 
To: <lbosque@miamispringspolice.com> 

Thank you for choosing CDW·G. \Ne have received your quote request 

DEAR LINDA BOSQUE, 

-

.PEOPLE 
WHO 
GETlT 

Thank you for considering CDW-G for your computing needs. The details of your quote 

are below. Click here to convert your quote to an order. 

QUOTE DETAILS 

Requested: 12/3/2013 

Quote#: 1BDRC7X 

Quote Reference: VOIP UPGRADE- REV1 

QUOTE DETAILS LIST 

ITEM 

Cisco 881 Ethernet Security 
router - desktop 

~Mfg. Part#: CISC0881-K9 
_.- UNSPSC: 43222609 

- · Contract: Nat ional IPA Technology 
Solutions (130733) 
Go to Site 

NETGEAR ProSafe 
M4100-26G-PoE - switch - 26 
ports - managed - d esktop, rack 

,_ __ il"'t•····· Mfg. Part#: GSM7226LP- 100NES 
Contract : National IPA Technology 
Solutions (130733) 
Go to Site 

IMPORTANT- PLEASE READ 

Grand Total: $1,591.88 

Customer Number: 8783075 

QTY COW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE 

14 82835 $ 426.82 $426.82 

2 3052173 $582.53 $1,165.06 

Special Instructions: Beginning of customer text: Sorry, I added the wrong router on 

the last quote request ... thi s one has the correct model. End of customer text. 

Subtotal: 

Shipping: 

Sales Tax: 

GRAND TOTAL: 

$1,591.88 

$0 .00 

$0.00 

$1,591.88 

I Convert Quote to Order 

12/03/20 13 10:33 AM 



lTC Group, Inc. 
Voice & Data Solutions 

4995 NW 79 Ave, Suite 112 

Doral, FL 33166 

alexg@itcgrp.com 

TO City of Miami Springs 
201 Westaward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 

Attn; Jorge Fonseca 

Reconfiguring PO Network 

). 

Alex Garcia PD Network 

Quotation prepared by; Alex Garcia 
This is a quotation on the goods named, subject to the conditions noted below: 

INVOICE NO. 

DATE November 27, 2013 

CUSTOMER ID 

EXPIRATION DATE December 22, 2013 

Due upon Receipt 

(Customer herby autholizes the work to be done with the necessary materials and labor rates as described above. 
Prices ft materia ls are good for 30 days. After 30 days prices are subject to change without notice. ) 

To accept this quotation, si!jn here and return: 



PCM I Cisco, 881 Ethernet Security- router- desktop, CISC0881-K9 Page 1 of I 

Business Enterprise Govemment Healthcare Solutions Services l:hi!HJ¥J•i@i it]ffiii;f-Bi Live Chat I \{ Cart I Sign-In I Register 

PCM 1-800-700-1000 

Categories Brands Product Finder PCM Interactive WnyPCM? Follow Us 

'\®J Shopping Cart Home> Shopping cart No Payments+ No Interest If paid In full In 6 Months 
PCM On orchmover Sl50 
r:. ~~ Subje-ct to<n-dit appro~t ~i.!~ffil 

Save Thts Cart 

Enter PCM Part# ~!j 
·use comma for mulliple entry or SKUs 

Qty Product Description Price Instant Savings Total Price 

NetGear 

" 2 - Prosare M4 1 00-26G-PoE - switch - 26 paris- managed -desktop rack
mountable $590.00 St , l8800 

F'CM Part fl 95129/0 I Q UStlallv Sh1ps Satne Day S3v·e Fer L.J!er 

C isco 

l( 831 Elhernet Security- rouler - desktop 
S399.89 $399.99 

PCM Part fl 750354g 1 0 Usually Sh~os Same Day Save For Later 

CALCULATE SHIPPING TAX 

Zip Code 33166 FedEx Ground (3-7 days) - $16.07 

Saved Items 

You don't have any saved items! 

COMPANY 

Locations 

Executives 

Investor Relations 

Careers 

Brands 

Events 

Order Status 

RSS 

Terms or Use and Sale 

Sit" Map 

SUPPORT 

My Account 

Email Subscriplions 

Catalog Subscriptions 

General Sales 

Cuslomer Supp011 

Teclimcal SuppM 

Conlacl Us 

Help Topics 

WE PROVIDE 

Leasing & Financing 

Services 

Solullons 

Business Direct 

Employee Purchase Program 

Product Configurator 

http://www.pcm.com/n/Shopping-Cart/msc-cart 

Sub Total: 
Shipping: 

Grand Total: 

$1,597.99 
$16.07 

$1,614.06 

Proceed to Checkout 

More Than an IT Provider- We're Your Technology Partner 

Since 1987, PCM has been a leadtng provider of IT products, setvices. ancl solutrons to 
businesses. government agencies. educational instrtutions. and healthcare racili ties. V•!e 
provide access to over 300,000 IT products like lablets. slate, no!ebooks. desktops, servers. 
sloraqe. and networking from leading manuracturers like Cisco. HP, Apple. Adobe. Lenovo 
and Microsofl. With powerful eProcw·ement tools. cornprel1ensive software licensing 
solutions and dedicated Accounl Executives. ll's easy to gel cxaclly whal you need to tac~le 
yom !edmical d1allenges. 

In addition. we offerw011d class procurement and logistics, IT consulting. anct 
implementation services delivered lhrough over 1200 tech•lical professionals. V\11cther you 
want to deploy tablets securely or move your data center to the cloud. PCM is here lo make 
it happen. Our Services experts \\rlll collaborate with you to understand your business and 
provide tailored se1vices to allow your organization to lower costs. illCn~ase agility, im1>rove 
erf!ciency and succeed in loday·s global economy and beyond. 

1 

~!.O:,~~v:._i:_~-1 
--- ·-

1940 E. Mariposa Ave. El Segundo. CA 90245.800-700-1000 
© 20 13 PCM Sales, Inc. 

12/03/2013 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 

Suzanne S. Hitaffer, Acting City Clerk 

December 2, 2013 
P·~ 

PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 

Agenda Item No. 

City Council Meeting of: 

T .• Jd.:. q. ,OM 13 

************************************************************************************************************************************** 

The following appointments are pending: 

APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER 

CURRENT 
MEMBER 

Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board 

Mayor Zavier Garcia 
Vice Mayor Bain - Group 2 
Councilman Lob - Group 3 

Architectural Review Board 

Vice Mayor Bain - Group 2 

Code Enforcement Board 

Francisco Fernandez 
Ernie Aloma 
Bill Tallman 

Joe Valencia 

Mayor Zavier Garcia Walter Dworak 
Councilman Petralanda-Group 4 Robert Williams 

Civil Service Board 

Councilman Windrem - Group 1 Rob Youngs 
Vice Mayor Bain - Group 2 Carrie Figueredo 

Code Review Board 

Mayor Zavier Garcia 
Councilman Lob - Group 3 
Councilman Petralanda-Group 4 

Disability Advisory Board 

Mayor Zavier Garcia 
Councilman Windrem - Group 1 
Vice Mayor Bain - Group 2 
Councilman Lob - Group 3 
Councilman Petralanda Group 4 

Connie Kostyra• 
Dan Dorrego 
Jana Armstrong 

Charlene Anderson• 
Catherine Stadnik 
Peter Newman• 
Richard Barnes 
Roslyn Buckner 

NEW 
TERM 
EXPIRES 

04-30-2015 
04-30-2016 
04-30-2016 

10-31-2014 

09-30-2016 
09-30-2016 

06-30-2015 
06-30-2015 

04-30-2015 
04-30-2016 
04-30-2016 

12-31-2016 
12-31-2016 
12-31-2016 
12-31-2016 
12-31-2016 

ORIGINAL 
APPOINTMENT 

DATE 

10-14-1991 
04-13-2009 
01-11-2010 

02-27-2012 

11-14-2005 
03-10-2008 

01-11-2010 
08-24-2009 

VACANT 
08-11-2003 
06-11-2001 

VACANT 
12-14-1998 
VACANT 
05-11-2009 
03-26-2012 

LAST 
APPOINTMENT 

DATE 

11-28-2011 
01-11-2011 
05-14-2012 

02-27-2012 

09-14-2010 
10-25-2010 

01-11-2010 
08-24-2009 

VACANT 
05-24-2010 
05-10-2010 

VACANT 
02-14-2011 
VACANT 
01-24-2011 
03-26-2012 



Memo to Council 
December 2, 2013 
Page 2 

APPOINTMENT CURRENT 
COUNCILMEMBER MEMBER 

Education Advisory Board 

Mayor Zavier Garcia Caridad Hidalgo 
Councilman Windrem - Group 1 Michael G. Hunter••• 
Vice Mayor Bain - Group 2 Dr. Mara Zapata 
Councilman Lob - Group 3 Dr. John Salomon 

Golf and Country Club Advisory Board 

Mayor Zavier Garcia Michael Dominguez 
Councilman Windrem - Group 1 Mark Safreed 
Vice Mayor Bain - Group 2 George Heider 
Councilman Lob - Group 3 Ken Amendola 
Councilman Petralanda-Group 4 Art Rabade 

Historic Preservation Board 

Mayor Zavier Garcia Sydney Garton•• 

Recreation Commission 

Mayor Zavier Garcia E. Jorge Santin 

• Connie Kostyra resigned on April 28, 2011. 
Charlene Anderson resigned on June 6, 2011. 
Peter Newman resigned on August 1, 2009. 

NEW ORIGINAL LAST 
TERM APPOINTMENT APPOINTMENT 
EXPIRES DATE DATE 

05-31-2015 01-28-2013 01-28-2013 
05-31-2015 05-14-2012 05-14-2012 
05-31-2015 06-13-2011 06-13-2011 
05-31-2015 12-14-2009 06-13-2011 

07-31-2013 04-12-2010 09-26-2011 
07-31-2013 08-08-2005 06-27-2011 
07-31-2013 08-13-2001 06-27-2011 
07-31-2013 10-10-2011 10-10-2011 
07-31-2013 03-11-2013 03-11-2013 

01-31-2016 11-08-1993 02-08-2010 

04-30-2016 04-14-2008 12-13-2010 

•• Historic Preservation Board -Council confirmation required per §153.11 of the City Code of Ordinances: " ....... No 
board member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve an additional 
term of office for 2 years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be confirmed by a 
majority of the council. ....... " 

*** Three absences 

cc: City Manager 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director 
City Attorney 

0:\3\BOARDS\Pending Board Appointments - 12-02-2013 CCRM.doc 



Page 1 of2 

From: 

Date: 

To: 

"William Alonso" <alonsow@miamisprings-fl.goV> 

Tue, 26 Nov 2013 16:55:26-0500 

"Jan Seiden" <jseiden@olsrhh.com>, "rpETERS@FLCITIES.COM" <rpETERS@FLCITIES.COM> Agenda Item No. 9.5 
Cc: "Pete Baan" <pbaan@miamisprings-fl.goV>, "Ron Gorland" <gorlandr@miamlsprings-fl .gov> 

Subject: RE: Boat Ramp City Council Meeting of: 

p -9-0}()!3 ~ 
Mr. Peters how about Monday Dec2 at 10N1?? 

From: Jan Seiden [JSeiden@olsrhh.com] 
sent: Tuesday, November 26, 2013 4:44 PM 
To: Wil l iam Alonso 
Cc: Pete Baan; Ron Garland 
Subject: Re: Boat Ramp 

OK with me, but Pete must be there. He seems to have the most prior knowledge and most 
responsibility (MSPD), moving forward. Try to set it for either 10 or 2 on Monday. JKS 

Sent from my iPhone--JKS 

On Nov 26, 2013, at 2:51 PM , ~1illiam Alonso 
<alonsow@miamisprings-fl.gov<mai l to:alonsow@miamisprings-fl.gov>> wrote: 

We have various meetings on Dec 3 (Board of Education in AM and PBA in PM ) so the only open date is 
Monday Dec 2, do you a l l agree??? 

IHlliam Alonso CPA, CGFO 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director 
City of Miami Springs 
201 Wes t ward Drive 
Miami Springs, Fla. 33166 
305-805-5014 
Fax : 305- 805-5018 
Cell: 786-219-6883 
Email: a l onsow@miamisprings-fl . gov<mailto:alonsow@miamisprings-fl.gov> 

PPlease save a tree . Don't print this e-mail unless it ' s really necessary. 

From: Loretta M. Boucher 
Sent: Tuesday, November 26, 2013 2:43 PM 
To: Ron Garland; William Alonso 
Cc: Jan Seiden 
Subject: FW : Boat Ramp 

From: Ronald Peters [RPeters@fl cities.com<mailto :RPeters@flcities.com>] 
Sent: Tuesday, November 26, 2013 1 : 49 PM 
To: Loretta M. Boucher 
Cc: Byron Beard 
Subject: Boat Ramp 
Good afternoon Loretta, 

Received word that the City is considering opening up a boat ramp to the public. I wi ll be happy to 
stop by to take a l ook at the proposed site. I currently have Dec 2 and 3 open . Please select a 
time with contact info and I will happy to make recommendations based on my findings. Thanks and 
hope to hear from you soon. 

Some things that come to mind: 

Will this ramp provide deep water access? 

Sufficient parking for boat trailers? 

Who is currently patrolling the canal if at all? 

Is permission required from SFWMD? 

What structures are currently in place? 

What will the impact be on the surrounding neighborhood during possible times of high 
use? 

Fees , hours of operat i on , signage , rules , speed limits, manatee zone ...... 

http://mail.networkcomputers.com/_readmail?id=2a2it67gl 2gskBuFgAJqYvzB9IhQcRJ ... 11/26/2013 



Respectfully, 

Ronald E. Peters 
Ris k Contr ol Consultant 
Department of Insurance and Financial Services 
Florida League of Cities, Inc. 
407 616 2259 
rpeters@flcities . com<mail to: r peters@flcities.com> 

Page 2 of2 

[http://www.miamisprings-fl . gov/sites/defaul t/files/imagecache/featured/photoalbumslideshowimages/1 2 . jpg] 

The City of Miami Springs is on Twitter<http://www.twitter. com/mi amispringsFL> and has a website 
MiamiSprings-FL. Gov<http : //www. miamisprings-fl.gov> 
Please save a tree. Don't print t his e-mail unless it ' s really necessary . 

http://mail.networkcomputers.com/_readmail?id==2a2it67g12gskBuFgAJqYvzB9IhQcRJ ... 11126/2013 



( 

Jan Seiden 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Jan Seiden Useiden@olsrhh.com) 

Tuesday, November 26, 2013 12:49 PM 

'Byron Beard' 

Cc: 'Ron Gorland'; 'William Alonso'; 'Loretta M. Boucher' 

Subject: RE: FMiami River Access 

Byron, thanks for the follow-up and suggestions. Have a great holiday. JKS 

Jan K. Seiden, Esq. 
Orshan Lithman Seiden Ramos Hatton Huesmann & Fajardo, LLP 
ISO Alhambra Circle, Suite I ISO 
Coral Gables, Florida 331 34 
Tel: 305-858-0220 
Fax: 305-854-6810 

From: Byron Beard [mailto:BBeard@flcities.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, November 26, 2013 12:44 PM 
To: 'Jan Seiden' 
Cc: Loretta M. Boucher; Ron Garland; Valerie Burns 
Subject: RE: FMiami River Access 

Page 1 of3 

Jan-------i t is true allowing access to the canal is an additional exposure to the city. I believe you will find In the long run this 
exposure Is not that great. The city may want to check other cities with this same exposure and see what type of signage they 
use. 

You have probably seen signs at swimming pools saying "Swim at your own risk" and "No lifeguard on duty". With a few 
change of words, these warnings could be tailored to the city's needs. The depth of the canal can also be noted. 

Ron Peters is the risk control representative for the FMIT. I will have him make an appointment with Loretta to inspect the 
area. I 

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you. 

Byron Beard 
Underwriting Manager 
Department of Insurance and Financial Services 
Florida league of Cities 
125 East Colonial Drive 
Orlando, Fl32801 
Direct line: 407-367-1742 
Fax: 407-425-9378 
bbeard@flcitles.com 

From: Jan Seiden [mailto:JSeiden@olsrhh.com] 
Sent: Friday, November 22, 2013 9:20AM 
To: Byron Beard 
Cc: Loretta M. Boucher; Ron Garland; Valerie Burns 
Subject: Re: FMiami River Access 

Byron, while the ramp itself is certainly an area of concern, the biggest area of concern for me is the liability that would be 
created by the city allowing access to the presently closed C-6 canal and the fact that the city will then be establishing and 
attempting to enforce rules and regulations related to the activities on the water-----and the police department has only one 
small boat. I don't want this to become akin to the life guard cases where there is no liability if the city policy is not to provide 
them, but once they do, the potential for failures of supervision, etc., expand like viruses. In my opinion, that Is the liability 
the city would need to insure against. JKS 

11/26/2013 



r ( Page 2 of3 

Sent from my iPhone--JKS 

On Nov 21, 2013, at 4:18 PM, Byron Beard <BBeard@flcities.com> wrote: 

According to the claims department, we get very few claims associat ed with boat ramps. They estimate in th e 
past 10 years we may have had six or seven Bodily Injury claims. These were slip and fall claims due to algae on 
the ramp. We do not require the members to advise us of the number of boat ramps they have. 

The city currently purchases a liability limit of $2 mil. The annua l premium to increase the limit to $3 mil would 

be about $7,900.00. 

So, the exposure for the boat ramps is very low and the premium to add another $1 mil limit to the GL coverage 
is about $7,900.00. This premium would be pro-rated for the 13/14 year. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. Than k you. 

Byron Beard 
Underwriting Manager 
Department of Insurance and Financial Services 
Florida League of Cities 
125 East Colonial Drive 
Orlando, FL 32801 
Direct Line: 407-367-1742 
Fax: 407-425-9378 
bbeard@flcities.com 

From: Loretta M. Boucher [mailto:boucherl@miamisprings-fl.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, November 21, 2013 6:43 AM 
To: Byron Beard 
Cc: Ron Garland; Jan Seiden 
Subject: FW: FMiaml River Access 

City Mgr. has requested if we need additional insurance this waterway is under the control also of South Fla. 
Water Management. 
We have not used this ramp in the past as a public use. 
Loretta M. Boucher, HR Director/Risk Mgr. 
City of Miami Springs 

From: Ron Garland 
Sent: Wednesday, November 20, 2013 3:32 PM 
To: Pete Baan; Tom Nash; Loretta M. Boucher 
Cc: William Alonso; Jan Seiden 
Subject: FMiami River Access 

Updated request follows. 

Need to coordinate subject for upcoming Dec. council meeting as follows: 

1. Chief: recommendation covering safety, water craft, engine type, size, ramp use and 
ramp hours of operation, CPO certification, police patrol, and canal use rules/posting, 
etc. 

2. Nash: est. ramp repair cost; ongoing maintenance (if any), etc. 

3. Loretta: Please contact Fl League and find out if the City will need additional 
insurance/increased cost if the City ramp is opened for public use for boating access to the 
Miami River 

11126/2013 



( Page 3 of3 

Thanks, 

Ron 

The City of Miami Springs is on Twitter and has a website MiamiSprings-FL.Gov 

<imageOOI.jpg> Please save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary. 

11/26/2013 



Boat Ramp 

Inspection 

DE~C 2, 2013 

Prepared for Miami Springs 

Identified 6 Issues 

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust 

DEPART MINT Of INSURANCE 
A Mil fiMAMOAl SEAVI(iS 



Issue 1 

Issue 2 

Issue 3 

Issue 4 

I' 
! ' 
j 

.... 

Bike path and current boat ramp in conflict. Shoreline to bike path 25ft. Boat ramp 

observed open by SFWMD without signage for non-public use. 

Current surface at ramp trip and fall hazard. 

Repair or replace with concrete ramp equipped with traction grooves. 

Grass maintenance needed. Is there enough of a natural ramp angle underwater 

before the drop off? This can cause trailer and vehicle damage if not sufficient. 



Issue 5 

SFWMD trailer and vehicle observed blocking bike trail due to lack of parking. 

Issue 6 

Disclaimer 

FMIT Risk Control services are intended solely to identify and assess reasonable risks within the Member's insured 

property. However, FMIT Risk Control does not warrant or guarantee the safety of any property or condition within the 

Member's property and cannot guarantee additional risks will not result in loss following a Risk Control assessment. 

Improvements or corrections to the Member's property are solely its responsibility. Accordingly, Member acknowledges 

neither FMIT, its employees nor its agents shall be liable for losses related to any risk assessment provided. 



TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY OF MIAMI 5_PRINGS 
Planning & Zoning Department 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5034 
Fax: (305) 805-5036 Agenda Item No. 9 L 

Olty Oounell Mlllming ot: 
1~-9-~!-3 

Honorable Mayor Garcia an.,?~mbers of the City Council 

Ronald Gorland, City ManJgei. r 
James H. Holland, Plannin~& Zoning Direc 

December 5, 2013 

Second Appraisal of Golf Course Property in the Matter of Springs On The Green 
LLC 

At Council's request, Staff obtained a second appraisal of the Golf Course property located adjacent to 627 
Eldron Drive. The appraisal, which was prepared by Jorge Luis Canellas of Appraisal Zone Corp. is attached. 
The established valuation was determined to be $115,000.00. 

Recommendation: 

Consideration be given to proposed purchase by Springs On The Green LLC in the amount of an appraised 
value of$115,000.00 



<fipptai~al Jotte 6tp. 
I 806i df'W 8 7'" eoutt 
d'f.i.ami., d"lotida JJO I 8 

LOCATED AT: 
650 Curtiss Parkway, 

Miami Springs, FL 33 166 

PREPARED FOR: 
City of Miami Springs 

ASOF: 

November 25,2013 

PREPARED BY: 
A lain Acanda 

Ce1t Res RD380 I 
Jorge Luis Canellas 
Cert Gen RZ3065 



cfipptai!Ja/ Jone f:.otp. 
1806~ cJr'W B~lt f:.ou'ct 

cJ'llami., d"loti.da JJ018 

cimall: lca~tella!J@aeptzone.com 

'W eb!Jite: www. app'czone. com 

December 4, 20 13 

Client: City of Miami Springs 
Ref: Real Estate Appraisal on property located at: 
650 Curtiss Parkway, Miami Springs, FL 33166 

In accordance with your instructions, we have prepared a summary appraisal rep01t on the below 
described property. The objective of this rep01t is to establish an opinion of market value for construction 
loan purposes as of November 25, 20 13 the date of inspection. 

The subject property consists of one commercial vacant land that abuts a go t f course. Property located at: 
650 Curtiss Parkway (SW portion of tract 8 that abuts the adjacent property on 627 Eldron Dr) Miami 
Springs, FL 33 166. 

The legal description of the property is as follows; 

A Portion ofTract B, Block 140 of"REVISED PLAT OF SEC 2, COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES" 
, according to the Plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 34, Page 40, of the public records of Miami 
Dade County, Florida: Commence at the Southwest corner of said tract "B", thence North along the 
west line of said tract"B" A distance of256.1 0 fee; Thence N 77.08'52"E A distance of95.00 Feet; 
Thence 40.01'26"E, A distance of79.77 Feet to a point on curve concave to the Northeasterly having 
radios of 400.78 Feet; Thence Northwesterly along said curve a distance of266.92 Feet, and through 
a central angle of 38.09'38",To the intersection ofthe west of said tract "B"; Thcncc S89.05' I 4" E 
for a distance of 66.63 Feet to a point; Thence S 00.49'5 1 "W for a distance of75.44 Feet to a point; 
Thence S33.0636"E for a distance of 155. 10 feet to a point'; thence S39.5 I' 39"W for a distance of 
23.5 I Feet to the point of the beginning and contains 1 0299. 12 Square feet or 0.23644 acres 

Based upon our analysis it was concluded that the Opinion of Market Value subject to of the subject 
property in fee simple, is: 

O NE H UNDRED FIFTEEN THOUSAND {$115,000) DOLLARS 

The analysis, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this repmt has been prepared, in conformity 
with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. Furthermore, no one other than the 
appraisers listed below prepared the analysis, opini ons, or conclusions concerning real estate that are set 
forth in this appraisal report. 

The appraisers certify they have no interest, past or present in the subject premises, and that our 
conclusion of value is based on professionally accepted techniques and methods. Our fee is not contingent 
upon any specific find ing. The conclusion of value is also subject to our standard limiting conditions 
which are included in the report . 
Respectfully Submitted, 

Jorge L. Canellas Cert Gen RZ 3065 

2 
APPRAISAL Z ONE 



CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned hereby certify(ies), to the best of his/her or our knowledge and belief: 

He/she or we have/has relied on statements of facts furnished to him/her or us by others and has 
performed no independent verifications of any facts except as specifically set fo11h in the report. 
However, to the best of his/her or our knowledge and belief, the statements of facts in this report, upon 
which the analyses, opinions and conclusions expressed herein, are true and correct. 

The rep011ed analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and 
limiting conditions, and they are that of the appraiser(s) and /or his/hers or their employees or personnel, 
unbiased professional analyses, opinions, and conclusions. 

The appraiser and/or his/her their employees and/or independent contractors have no (or specified) 
present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this rep011, and that the pa1iies to this 
report and his/hers their employees and or independent contractors have no (or specified) personal interest 
or bias with respect to the parties involved. 

The compensation is not contingent upon the reporting of a predetermined value or direction of value that 
favors the cause of the client, the amount ofthe value estimate, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the 
occurrence of a subsequent event. That neither or employment nor our compensation for preparing this 
report is in anyway contingent upon the conclusions reported herein. 

The appraiser (s) preparing this report and or his, thei rs or its employees prepared the analysis, 
conclusions and opinions concerning real estate values that are set forth in this Appraisal Report. 

To the best of our knowledge and be lief, the statements of fact contained in this appraisal, upon which the 
analysis, opinions and conclusion expressed herein are based. are true and correct. 

That neither our employment nor our compensation for making this rep01i, are in any way contingent 
upon values reported herein, or the attainment of a stipulated results, or the occurrence of a subsequent 
event directly re lated to the intended use of this appraisal. 

I have no bias with respect to the property that is subject of this report or to the parties involved with this 
assignment. 

That this report has been made in conformity with and is subject to the requirements of the Code of 
Professional Conduct of the Appraisal institute Inc. 

The scope of our assignment was to value the property here inafter described and delineated. 
That we have no direct or indirect, present or contemplated future personal interest in such property or in 
any way benefi t from the sale of the subject. 

3 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



CERTIFICATION CONTINUED 

The analysis, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been prepared, in confonnity 
with the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. However, the undersigned prepared the 
analysis, opinions, or conclusions concerning Real Estate. 

I have performed no (or the specified) other services, as an appraiser or in any other capacity, regarding 
the propetiy that is the subject of the work under review within the three year period immediately 
preceding acceptance of this ass ignment. The appraiser with no current or prospective interest in 
regarding the subject and/or parties involved. 

The exposure time estimated length of time that the property interest being appraised would have been 
offered on the market prior to the hypothetical assumption of a sale at market value on the effective date 
of the appraisaL Most types of commercial properties simi lar to the subject have marketing periods 
ranging from s ix to twelve months. Exposure time is a retrospective opinion on an analysis of past events 
assuming a competitive and open market. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jorge L. Canellas 
Cert Gen RZ 3065 

A PPRAISAL ZONE 

4 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CERTIFICATION 3 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 5 

SUMMARY OF SALIENT FACTS & CONCLUSIONS 6 

ASSUMPTIONS & LIM ITING CONDITIONS 7 

INTRODUCTION TO THE APPRAISAL 9 

DESCRIPTION 13 

NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION 30 

ZONING 35 

FLOOD MAP 41 

PLAT MAP 42 

TAX & ASSESSMENT ANALYSES 43 

HIGHEST & BEST USE 44 

ESTIMATION OF LAN D VALUE 47 

SALES COMPARISON GRID 51 

PARAMETERS OF VALUE CONCLUSION 58 

QUA LIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER 60 

EXPLANATION OF TERMINOLOGY 62 

SUBJECT PHOTOS 64 

5 
APPRAISAL Z ONE 



SUMMARY OF SALIENT FACTS & CONCLUSIONS 

Valuation Date: 

Location: 

Property Type: 

Client: 

Property Owner: 

Property Sale History: 

Twelve Month Listing His: 

Occupant 

Appraisal Type: 

Scope of Work: 

Intended Use/Intended Users: 

Property Rights Appraised: 

Property Tax ID #: 

Census Tract/Block: 

Exempt, YR 20 12 Assessment: 

Flood Information: 

Year Built/Effective Age: 

Land/Building Ratio: 

Site Size: 

Building Size 'As Is' : 

Building Size 'As Proposed ': 

Zoning: 

Agreement/Easements: 

Highest and Best Use: 

Estimated Marketing Time: 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

November 25, 2013 

650 Curtiss Parkway, Miami Springs, FL 33166 and/or 
SW corner just east ofEidron Drive in Miami Springs 
Countty Club Golf Course 

Vacant Land 

City of Miami Springs 

City of Miami Springs 

Oct. 1997 

None, as per SFMLS 

Currently Vacant Land 

Summary Appraisal Report 

Valuation by Sales Comparable Approach only 

Sole Knowledge I Springs of the Green, LLC 

Fee Simple Interest 

Pending 

47.02 

Land 
$0 

Building 
$0 

Total Value 
$0 

Zone: X Panel: 12086-0291 L Date: 09111 /2009 

N/A 

N/A 

I 0,299 SF Acres as per data provided 

N/A 

N/A 

P l Public Property 

Taxes 
$0 

The subject is currently leased with a licensed agreement issued 
by the city of Miami Springs. The terms is until 3/31 /2016 

Commercial 

Nine to Twelve Months. 

6 



ASSUMPTIONS & LIMITING CONDITIONS 

The value conclusions and the certification within this report are made expressly subject to the following 
assumptions and limiting conditions in this report, which are incorporated herein by reference. 

I. No responsibility is accepted for matters legal in nature; ti tles are presumed to be good and assumed to be held in fee 
simple. All existing liens and encumbrances, if any, have been disregarded (unless otherwise stipulated within the 
report) and the property is appraised as though free and clear, under competent ownership and management. 

2. The legal description and site drawings furnished (if provided) are assumed robe correct. 

3. The maps and sketches are included to assist the reader (if provided). Unless a survey of the property has been 
provided, no responsibility, whatsoever, in connection with such matters will be recognized. 

4. It is assumed that the project herein set forth is an allowable use w1der tl1e zoning, and is further considered its highest 
and bet use. 

5. TI1e land and soil of the area under the appraisement appears li1m and solid. TI1e analyst was not supplied with an 
engineering survey and under this condition this appraisal does not warrant this condition. 

6. Existing bui ldings involved in this appraisal report have been inspected and dan1age, if any, by tem1ites, dry rot, wet 
rot, or other infestations have been reported if discovered as a matter of in fom1ation but no guarantee of the amount or 
degree of damage is intended. 

7. In this appraisal of existing improvements, the physical condition of the improvements was based on visual inspections. 
No liability is assumed for the soundness of structural members since no engineering tests were made. 

8. All furnishings and equipment, except those specifically indicated and typically considered as part or real estate, have 
been disregarded. Only the real estate has been considered. 

9. lnfonnation furnished by others including comparable sales data is believed to be reliable, but the appraiser assumes no 
responsibi lity for its accuracy. 

I 0. The fees received for preparation of this report were not contingent upon the final value estimate. 

I I. The appraiser is not required to give testimony or attendance in court by reason of U1is appraisal with reference to the 
property in question, unless aJTangements have been made previously thereto. 

12. Possession of the reports or copies thereof, does not carry with it the right to publications nor may be used for any 
purpose by any but the applicant, without the written consent of the appraiser and then with the proper qualifications. 

13. The valuations may not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal. The conclusions are based upon the program 
of utilization described herein and have not been separated into parts. 

14. This appraisal has been made in accordance witl1 the rules of professional ethics of the Appraisal lnstitute Inc. 

15. Neither all nor any part of the contents of this report shall be conveyed to the public through advertising, public 
relations, news, sales, or other media, without the written consent and approval of the author, particularly as to the 
valuation conclusions, the identity of the appraiser or finns with which they are connected or any reference to the 
Appraisal Institute Inc., and /or the M.A.l. or S.R.A. designations. 

7 
APPRAISAL Z ONE 



ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS (Continued) 

16. The estimate of Market Value applies only to the date specified in the report. Market Value of Real Estate is affected 
by many related and unrelated economic conditions, local and national, which might necessarily affect the future 
market of the subject property. We, therefore, assume no liabi lity for an unforeseen precipitous change in the economy, 
the project, region, or property. 

17. Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous substances, includ ing without limitation asbestos, 
polychlorinated biphenyls, petroleum leakage, agricultural chemicals, urea fonnaldehyde foam insulation, toxic waste, 
other contents of environmental conditions, which may or may not be present on the property has not been considered, 
they were not called to the attention of the Appraiser, not did the appraiser become aware of such during the 
Appraiser's inspection. The Appraiser has no knowledge of the existence of such materials on or in the property unless 
otherwise stated . The appraiser, however, is not qualified to test such substances or conditions. The value estimated is 
predicated on the assumption that there is no such condition on or in the property or in such proximity thereto that it 
would cause a loss in value. No responsibility is assumed for any such conditions, or for any expertise or engineeri ng 
knowledge required to discover them. An expert in this field should be retained by the property owner if deemed 
appropriate. 

18. No environmental impact study has been ordered or made. The appraised property is assumed to be in compli ance with 
all applicable regulations unless otherwise noted in the report. 

19. The Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") became effective January 26, 1992. We have not made a specific 
compliance survey and analysis of this property to detennine whether or not it is in conformity with the various 
detailed requirements of the ADA. It is possible that a compliance survey of the property, together with a detailed 
analysis of the requirements of the ADA, could reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more of the 
requirements of the Act. If so, this fact could have a negative effect upon the value of the property. Since we have no 
direct evidence relating to this issue, we did not consider possible noncompliance with the requirements of ADA in 
estimating the value of the property 

8 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



INTRODUCTION TO THE APPRAISAL 

CLIENT, PURPOSE AND FUNCTION OF THE APPRAISAL 

The appraisal was requested by the client; Springs of the Green, LLC. The purpose of the appraisal is to 
estimate an opinion of the Market Value of the fee simple interest, unencumbered for the subject property. 
It is our understanding the appraisal is to be used for client sole knowledge. 

PROPERTY RIGHTS/INTEREST APPRAISED 

A right or interest in property is referred to as an estate. This interest may be a fee ownership interest or a 
lease interest for a period of years. An estate in land is the degree, nature or extent of interest, which a 
person has in it. An undivided ownership of a parcel of real estate embraces a great many rights such as 
the right to its occupancy and use; the right to sell it in whole or in part ; the right to bequeath it; and the 
right to transfer it by contract for specified periods of time. These rights of occupancy and use are called 
beneficial interests. An owner who leases real estate to a tenant: transfers one of these rights in his bundle, 
namely the beneficial interest or the right to use or occupy to the tenant, in accordance with the provisions 
of the lease contract. He retains all other interest in the bundle. 

In the subject instance the interest appraised herein is the market value in the fee simple. T itle is assumed 
good and marketable. Ownership is assumed transferable and free from all encumbrances, except those 
specified in public records. 

For an explanation of fee simple interest, we have consulted the Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 3rd 

ed ition. 

Fee simple interest is defined as: An absolute fee; without limitations to any particular heirs, or 
restnct10ns, but subject to the limitations of eminent domain, escheat, police power, taxation; an 
inheritable estate. 

INSPECTION DATE 

The subject property was inspected by Jorge L. Canellas November 25, 20 13. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF VALUATION 

The subject propetty is valued as of the date of inspection which was completed on November 25, 20 13. 

FORMAT AND CONTENTS 

This appraisal has been prepared conforming to the minimum standards of the Uniform Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP), as adopted by the appraisal foundation and the Supplemental 
Standards of Professional Practice adopted by the appraisal institute. 

9 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE 

The most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market requisite to a 
fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently, knowledgeably and assuming the price is not affected 
by the undue stimulus. Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a speci fied date and 
the passing of title from seller to buyer under condit ions whereby: 

I. Buyer and seller are typically motivated 

2. Both parties are well informed or well advised, and both acting in what they consider their own best interest. 

3. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market. 

4. Payment is made in cash in U.S. Dollars or in tem1s of financial arrangements comparable thereto. 

5. TI1e price represents the nonnal consideration for the property sold unaffected by the special or creative financing or 
sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale. 

The definition of market value reiterates the Depamnent of the Treasury, Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency, under 12 CFR Part 34, dated June 241

h, 1990. (Section 34.42- Definitions) 

As defined in the dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 3'd edition, Appraisal Institute 1993: the Value of 
specific ownership rights to an identified parcel of Real Estate as of the effective date of the appraisal: 
relates to what physically exists and is legally permissible and excludes all assumptions concerning 
hypothetical market conditions or possible rezoning. 

SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL 

An appraisal is generally defined as an estimate of value based upon the parameters of the assignment as 
of a specified date. The valuation of real estate is base on a process of date collection, and analysis and 
conclusions drawn by a third party. The purpose and data of this appraisal, along with the property rights 
appraised, have been previously defined. 

Existing improvements are best valued through the application of the traditional approaches to value as 
applicable, i.e., The Cost Approach, the Sales Comparison Approach, and the Income Approach. The 
scope the appraiser utilized in this report was the market and income approaches which were believed 
most reliable. 

GENERAL MARKET DERIVED DATA 

Data sources used to identify comparables sales, market rents and expense statistics have been obtained 
from various sources including our office files from properties previously appraised as well as other 
generally accepted as reliable sources such as Metroscan, Realtron, First American Data Solutions, 
Loopnet, and commercial and investment properties published by the Board of Realtors. 

COMPETENCY PROVISION 

In regard to this appraisal assignment, the appraisers have complied with the "Competency Provision" of 
the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice. Reference is made to the "Appraisers' 
Qualifications" in the addendum of this rep011. 

~~ 
APPRAISAL ZONE 

10 



DATA VERIFICATION 

Every effort has been made to verify information obtained from secondary sources. However, in the time 
frame in which an appraisal is prepared, principals are not often available or do not wish to discuss 
information with an appraiser that is not part of the public records, knowing that some of the infonnation 
might be disseminated, to the general public. Therefore the data used in this appraisal is believed to be 
true and correct but cannot be warranted. Data obtained from professional associates' sources often 
relates to properties they have personally appraised. This information is often confidential 
(Appraiser/Client) in nature, and may be referred to in this analysis as a general source of data with the 
client's permission, but retained in our files so that the confidentiality of the source is maintained, and the 
specific data is not disseminated to the public in a manner not authorized by the client. Verification of 
data may have come additionally from, surveyors, closing agents, attorneys, buyers, sellers, property 
owners & property management co's i.e.; leasing agents and/or realtors. 

ISSUES OF GROWTH MANAGEMENT AND CONCURRENCY 

Concurrency is an issue that affects development in the State of Florida. According to Florida's Growth 
Management Act; Section 163.3180, Florida Statutes; " It is the intent of the legislature that public 
facilities and services needed to support development shall be concurrent with the impact of 
development". 

Issues of Growth Management are not completely understood by market participants, nor are they 
completely understood by local government employees. The appraisers have researched the issues of 
Growth Management and Compact Deferral Zones, and have found that the issues have certain adverse 
impacts on undeveloped property as well as reconstruction and/or expansion activities on improved 
properties. Zones of Compact Deferral are in constant change; that is, areas are under constant review for 
inclusion/and or exclusion from the zones. As amplified in the following sections, the appraisers have 
reported these issues and the effect (if any) on the subject as of the date of valuation, as related to the 
appraisers by local governments and their employees. The appraisers assume that the infonnation they 
received is true and correct. 

PERSONAL PROPERTY/FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT 

To the best of our knowledge, the market data used in this appraisal was not impacted by the inclusion of 
personal property or furniture, fi xtures and equipment (FF & E). The value estimated (s) for the subject 
excludes personal property, business equipment and FF & E. The equipment A/C, security systems, and 
the like referred to in this analysis is by method and attachment and function considered to be integrated 
components of the Real Estate and included in the overall value estimate. 

~~ 
APPRAISAL ZONE 

11 



EXPOSURE TIME 

Since Real Estate is a highly leveraged investment, the estimate of value contained herein is made w ith 
the assumption that some type of mortgage financing will be available or a cash transaction will result. 
The subject & most types of commercial real estate have marketing periods ranging from six months to a 
year or more. Value estimates would typically be discounted for extended marketing periods. These 
discounts may include deductions for holding costs or simple discounting based on the infonnation 
available within the area for similar type properties. 

Buyer and seller demand for a patticular location and the desire to obtain same/or dispose of, are amongst 
many of the untold motivations that influence sell ers to sell and buyer to buy in many a transaction. 

Most definitions of market value presuppose a transaction that occurs after reasonable exposure in the 
market. The Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice states that, when the purpose of an 
ass ignment is to develop an opin ion of market value, the appraiser must also develop an opinion of 
reasonable exposure time linked to the value opinion, which should be stated in the report. Exposure time 
is defined as the estimated length of time the property interest being appraised would have been offered 
on the market prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at market value on the effective date of the 
appraisal. Statement according to Appraisal Standards No.6 in USPAP. 

12 
APPRAISAL Z ONE 



DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT 

The appraiser inspected the vacant land on November 25, 20 13, and the public/tax records were 
examined. The following is a summary of the major components if applicable. 

Type of Building: N/A 

Year Built: NIA 

Gross Building Area: N/A 

Exterior Walls: N/A 

Interior Walls: N/A 

Windows/Doors: N/A 

Foundation: N/A 

Roof: NIA 

Clear Ceiling Height: N/A 

Bathrooms: N/A 

Floors: N/A 

Heating I Cooling: N/A 

Loading: Street level 

Other: N/A 

Building Site Improvements: 

Total Number of Units: N/A 

Lobby: NIA 

Stairs: N/A 

Parking/Paving: Typical 

Landscaping: Typical 

Fencing: N/A 

Other: N/A 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

l3 



I 
Ft. Walton Bch. / 

Pe sacola 

Panama City 

Northwest 
Region 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

FLORIDA MAP 

Ta 

Tampa Bay Region 
Pinellas 

Lllgl tt 

Daytona 
.,..Bch. 

Central/ Space 
Coast 

St. Petersburg r~~~-.....,,_..--\-.....l.,R 

Punta Gorda WJ~~I--..J 

Fort Myers 
Southwest 

Region Naples 

Key 
West 

14 



Subject: * 

Other Non-Hispanic 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY MAP 

""' i 

~ *'" ,'\ua•• 

t • • ... ~· ··· 

Miami-Dade County 
Municipalities 

0 2 5 

Miles 

Surfside 

M dian 
O.l%H I S 

15 



Miami-Dade County Schools: 

Miami-Dade County Schools currently has the fourth largest school district in the country and the largest 
in the state. 

Colleges and Universities in Tri-County Area: 

• Florida International Un iversity 
• The Art Institute of F01t Lauderdale 
• Miami-Dade College 
• Florida Atlantic University 
• Nova Southeastern University 
• Keiser University 
• DeVry University 
• University of Miami 

Public Libraries: 

Miami-Dade County Library is one of the largest public library systems in the country composed of 42 
branch locations. 

Major Freeways and Tollways: 

• 1-95 Interstate 95 
• 1-75 Interstate 75 
• Florida's Turnpike shield.png Florida's Turnpike 
• Florida's Turnpike shield.png Homestead Extension of Florida's Turnpike 
• Toll Florida 836 Dolphin Expressway (State Road 836) / 1-395 Interstate 395 
• Toll Florida 924 Gratigny Parkway (State Road 924) 
• Toll Florida I I 2 Airport Expressway (State Road 112) /1-195 Interstate 195 
• Toll Florida 874 Don Shula Expressway (State Road 874) 
• Toll Florida 878 Snapper Creek Expressway (State Road 878) 
• Florida 826 Palmetto Expressway (State Road 826) 
• Florida 934 Hialeah Expressway (State Road 934) 
• Florida 970 Downtown Distributor (State Road 970) 

Railroads: 

• Tri-rail Commuter Trains on CSX Tracks 
• Amtrak Passenger Train Service on CSX Tracks 
• CSX Railway Freight Service 
• Florida East Coast Railway Freight Service 

Airports: 

• Miami International Airp01t 

Public Transportation: 

• Miami-Dade County Transit 
• Tri-Rail 

A PPRAISAL ZONE 

16 



t 

~1 ru ' · M·trchrl J THE · 
R E s E A R c H s E R v I c E ; 0 U. 

I ... 

Economy Making Steady Gains Despite Recurrent Headwinds 

:\ slow, >l(".ldy exp.1nsion .:h.u nc terlus U.S. eco nomic perfol mJn.:c, led by .1 soliJ rcboun,l in housing, rcs ilicm 
.:omun1cr spending. broad-bHed l'ri\·Jte sector employment growd1, .1nd .:onrinued expJnsio n in rhe e nergr :tnd 
tec hnology sectors. Although the c.:onomy l~ccs J po re nti.1l sprin:: slowdown lo r the lo unh .:onsecu th ·e ycm. seveml 
I~.: ton rcm.1in pecsili\•c. Some un.:crt~inry >Lirrounding fi scal po lkies has bl!'t'n rcmo\'ed or .11 km dcfcrr.:-:1; in Jddi. 
lion . the econo my .ilisorbed the df~-c t s o f scqucsrra1ion 
and hi~hcr u xes without di re com~uen.:cs .1nd con
ri ntK'S ro rc.:ord progress >.:ross mos1 mc.lSurcs . G ains 
posted in ho m e prices Jnd cquily m.u kc ts hH·c helped 
resrore nc..u ly $ 16 t rilli on of wcJ ith surrende red in the 
GreJt Rc.:essio n. liltin:: consumer Jnd business co nli
J en.:c . .\lo nei.U}' e.lSi ng h,,s .:o mlnued 10 suppon 1he 
.:rcJ it nurke1s Jnd i nihrio n re mains rumlo n .1bly within 
the fcdci'J I Rcser\'c rJ rge1 range. 

"lhe economk c xpJnsio n rcnuins very 1esiliem despite 
the conrinucd rcc.1libra!ion of U.S. hscal policy J nd 
governmen1.1l anemp1s 10 ddc-·e r.lgc. Components o f 
G Dl' 1h.u J c!r.Ktcd fro m grow1h In rcccllt )it'J I> h .we 
IC\'CI'scJ .1nd now <"Xcn n ncu1ml1o high ly pos ili\'c intlu

U.S. Hiring Maintains Plodding Momentum 
!OJ 

·!01 oo ot oo n 01 06 oos 01 tll ce 10 11 12 n• 

cn.:c on GDI'. w hi.:h grew ''n .lnnu.llizcd 2..1 pcr.:cnt in 1hc lirst quaner oi 20 13. lnw mo ry lnvcstme iH. househo ld 
.:onsumplio n . • 111d rcs idcn 1ial imcs tme nt tucleJ grow th. while dc.:lining icderal, SIJ ie and lo.:al gO\·ernmcm spend· 
in{; sub1r.1.:ted . Businesses co111inue to iJrc- bcu cr 1h.1n .;onsumcrs, whh corpo ral(' p rolits {;rowin~; a t a he.1l1 h)' 4.7 
pch:em r~-=e In 20 12. OUipJ.:in~ d iminishcJ r erson.ll income g rowrh .tnd lowering SJ\'ings I'J(('S. No nc lhclcss. re l;'l il 
sales h.l\'c rebounded 11.8 pc-rce111 irom rhc pre-recessio n hi~;h . • mJ 1hC' lirmill,(; rccowry In 1he rcsiJ cnliJI scCI>.> r 
willlii1 consume-r spending ."IS home u lcs Jnd C'mploymcn t growtl1 g.1ln mom entum. New .1nd exls ling home s.~lcs 
now c\in.:e >olid tTJCi ion in sab vo lume .t nJ pricing. whi le pcrmiuill{: lor single- a nJ mulril~mily llnics now .tp
proJ.:h the highest lc"cls in ti,·e J nd six y<='.trs . respectively. 

Mixed c<onomic d.1ta favocs <on~umers, but manufact uring beginning to s t ruggle. Lower prices. panicuiJrl!· 
lo r ~;.uo linc. hJvc help~-! s rrc~.:h d iscretio nary income and rhC'rcby sus tain consume r spcndin~:, dcspi1c higher pay
ro ll u xcs md the i mp.~e 1 o f scqucSIIJiion. HowC\·er. we.tkc ning glob.tl dcm.1nd h.IS tiltcrcd 10 1he induslriJI scc10r. 
p.utku!Jrl~· 111J nufa.: nrri ll,(;. where o u1 p111 h.JS I~ lie n io r 1he 1.\St rwo momhs. O n b.tl.lllcC', ime rnuio nal prcssurcs 
n1.1;t dcu a.:1 irom inJuslriJI produ.:lio n .1nd cxpo ns umil a.:1hi1y Slrengthe ns in C hin.! .1nd cxo no mk growth is 
1es10rcJ lv the eu rozonc. bm J.:~mc>lk Jre.JS o f 1he c.:onomy .1ppcar poised for grN ter momcnmm. 

• Srt'.ld); if unrem affiablc, job gro\\,lo remai ns broad-based vic1ual ly nationwh:k and indud<"S ail pclntc em· 
ploymcnt sectors. Priv.Hc·sce~o r l'ayrolls exp.mdcd by 178,000 posilions in 1-!Jy. bringing .lnllliJ I (;Ji ns ro nearly 
.! . .!mill io n io bs, hm 1hc loss o i )8,000 go,'l"rn menr jo bs in 1hc l.m }'car rcsultcxl in .1 ncr "ddi lion o i appro xim.ucly 
2.1 million posilions. lniriJ luncmploym<'lll clnin"IS h.we fa llen 10 .1 live-yc-;u low .md rhc uncml' loymeiH mtc h.1s 
lmpro,·cd hy 60 basis poims to 7.6 per.:cm . 

• tl ousing sector recovery cncompusing a hroader gcogrJphic mnge. S.1lcs oi cxis1ing slnglc-ia milr ho mes 
h.we murncd to 1he lo ng-1crrn 1rc nd . • 1ppro.1c hing Jn .mnu alized 4 .9 7 mi llion units In MJrc h. a nd resulting In .1 
24 pcr.:cnt dcdinc in invento r;- 10 4 .7 months •lithe n 1rrcm SJ!cs pJ.:c. ·n,c mcdiJn oalcs prk c ln.:rt'J S~i by II .0 
pcn:ent 10 $ 19) .900. I iftcxf by iewc r di>rrcss s3lcs. 1hinning invemo ries. and 311 i n.:rcasi n{:ly compcd r:iw en,· iron· 
ment. N ew hom e sales rose l n Jnnu.ll t?.cd 29 pcrccn l in 1\.fardl to a oti ll -low 454.000 unib cvn,·urrcnr with .1 1) . 1 
pcr.:cmlno;rcasc in 1hC' median sales price to $167.100. l'crmi11ing io rfiveunits o r morc lnc reaseJ ) 4 .) pcrcc-ntto.J 

APPRAISAL Z ONE 
17 



i:. 

Marcus ~1 THE · 
~--;-S-;-A ~ ~ H S E R V I C E ; 0 u 

I .. 
seJSon~llr .1djusted .1nnu.1lized 374.000 unirs.1nJ singlc-tJmil)' permits in ct'<-".lscd 37 percent ro 639. 100 units .u oi 
:\prilrhis year. lcH3I permirrin g surp.lSScd rhe 1.0 mi Ilio n unit nurk. rhc highesr b·cl sin.:c rhc- b~i nnlng of 2008. 

• Recent l"<'la il sales rnnJs undenhUc rbc su engtla underpinning cons umption. Significan t energy prke dc
dinC'S we.1kcned no minal SJb d.m, bur core rer.1il s.1b. cxduding .1uros Md g.\S, rem.1in .\.~ pcrccm higher o n 
J n mnuJiizcd bJsis. W·'ith 1ho:- ex<:Cf'lion of de~~mmcnr s1ores .1nJ electron k .1nd .1ppliJ n.:c s.1b, wh ic h mc-.ISured 
dec! in~., L>f 2 pr:r.:ent 3nd 1.4 percent. rc-; peniwly. rerai I SJics p:lSted solid gains .u:ross rh<' bo.1rd. Rc.:ciprs from 
housl ng- rclHed ~men1s inceNsed , namdy buildin{: 
m.11erl.1ls .1nd supplies, J nd h.rrnl nr rc ;lnd ho me i\rrnh h • 
lng sro rcs, growing .t) .1nJ ~. 9 perccm. respecriw lr. In 
add ition. non -sro re re r.1i lcr sJics J o mln.m ·d b y rhc: In · 
remer (!rew II pc r.:cnr. auro sales lm:rcJScd 65 per.:enr. 
and .lppJrd sto res recorded .1 ) .0 pcr.:cnr incrC\ISC O\'er 
the pasr )'<".tr. 

' lhe U.S. e.:.:>no my has rc.:o,·er"-1 ).•) mi llio n jobs since 
hiring begJn ro rc.:o,·cr ar the end o f rhe rc.:ession. add
Ing h1.:k o\'Cr 70 perce-nt o f the losr positions. Hiring h as 
been broad-bas.,~ . bo th rcgio n.11ly .1nd .lC ross indusrrr 
sectors. but the r c-chnolog~v. ene-rgy Jnd rrJd e sc-:rors wi ll 
rem.1in pill,us of rhe e.:onom;-. In .1ddirion. do uble-digit 

Quarterly U.S. GOP Growth 

12 
- GOP c;,.,,...., - Coopcutt l'loiit,. 

&2200 

suro &I 

un.•lrUII sroo ~ 

·12 oo 01 ca 01 01 06 116 01 oe 09 to 11 12 1'1' 
•fcuu;t 

'I) 
d 

.. fj) ~ 

S.)IICIK:M:tM I MICh:f P~:.lJI(I\·k'.tcct, lki•»Jol E-~ AA'IJ-t 

g.1ins po!>rcd by res idc-nri.ll ill\'esrmenr ior three consr.-:urlve quHiers shows promising fo rw .1rJ mo menl\lm, while 
business irwr.srmcnr on stnr<:rures and busi ness Co.JUipment .1nd so ftw.ue wi ll co nrribur~ .1s well. 1hough ac a slower 
p.1ee. law in ~.uioll.lr)' pr<SSure. fJIIing comn1odicy prkcs, .1nd rhe modcr.u c pJce of economic imp rovcmcnr should 
supporr conrinued mo nc-rJ ry casing io r rh e renuindcr .,f rhe )'Colr. :\r this po int in rhe cycle. the p.1Ce t>f eoonomk 
gtu \\lth rcrn.lin s s trong enough l o tOslc r src-.,Jy dcn'\.l ll\..1 fo r \:"On'lmcrd .. ll rl!'a_l t."S h.He and J rc"·o,·cr~· In pror crrv <l ~"Cn\ · 

rions, bur low enough ro keep inHJrion .11 b.l)' .tnd imc-res r rar cs low. 

• Mo derate cco no mk ~nd cmplop ncnr g towth In 20 U wiU m a1dalast )'Car's p au, wirh gtowlh occd eut ing 
in 1014 a nJ 2 01 5. G DP is forec.1s r ro .wc:r.1gc 1 . .2 pe rcc m grow1h in .20 IJ, w hi lc pJ;-rolls .trc forec.lSr ro expJnd b~· 
15 mill ion jobs. reducing the unc!llplo~·menr rJ rc 10 7.5 perc en 1. 

• ~ ,tdit growcla will support econo m ic pcrfom\.l nce. Busi n<'l's .:red ir wi ll exp.1nd in che form oi -:ommc:rcial 
and indusrri.lllcxtns. J iding reco,·er~· mo menrum fo r sm.1llc-r·sized escJblish mC'n ls. In addi tion . hc.1lrhic-r .:onsu mcr 
bJI.ince sheers will e nhan.:e credit .1.:ccss. benefic ring from low lnAJrion .111d inceresr mC'S. which wi ll supporr C.lll· 
rlouslr higher levels o i dcbr and spending. 

•lice federal govunmcnr~"<'presents tht l.u geu do m estic dowmid~ r isk , upccially with Congtess In perpetual 
gridlocl1. lncc-rnarional risks .He perhaps less pronounced now rl13n in recent ye.m. althoue.h rhoe eu ro deb1 alsls 
Jnd re.:=lo n rcm.1ins un resol"ed .1nd. gen~ra ll r. ~ lo i:>.Jl d emJnd lo r goods has wCJkened sl~nllic·JnrJr Tcnsions In 
the MidJie E.1s1 rem.1in J .:loud o n rhe horl1.on . 

• W'irh th~ cconom~· o n the me nJ . conceur tlu t tlae Ftd mar begin to Jro~w do wn thd t as~et pul'(h~ has 
incrr-ascd upward pressure o n intcl"<'st ro les. 'I he Fed hJs been irwes1ing $8) billion per momh lnro Tre.1.~urr 
bo nds a nd mo rrgJ{:e-b.lCkcd securities .1s p.m of rhe rJt ird round of qu.lnril•lliVeCJsing. During rhe ir l\ l .1~· meering. 
the fled iniC.rrcd rh.u rhe:r m.1y raper 1he spending sho uld th e rccowry gai n mo nlenrum. Sin.:e 1hen. rh<' 10-ye.u 
Trc.ISUI'}' rHcs b.1''~ clin,bed ~0 b:lSis po inrs ro lprroxlmardr 1.1 perccn1. 1-.lorrgagc- ro~rcs o n m awmgc .lO·)"C'JI 

mo rrgage from rhe agencies ha,·e jumped 7) b.uls po in rs shKe the meeting ro 4 . 1 pcrcem . adding some risl: to 1he 
n.uccnr ho using rc.:owrj. 

APPRAISAL ZONE 
18 



Office Hiring Continues to Build Momentum; 
Bolsters and Broadens Recovery to Secondary Markets 

Quart9r1y Offic9-Uslng Job Growth 
vs. Otfic9 $fxlc9 AbsOI'b9d 

- JobC'"'C'O'h1h 

lh~ office s«tor's fit ful f<'COVU)' laas lxgun to stabi
lize, with improvements reach ing mor<' metros. Ncr 
~bsorpt ion ior the p.u t two qu.m crs h.u bee-n rcm inis.:ent 
of le.JSing activity in 2007. and the tl.lk.e-down o f spa.:e b~· 
long dormant o ffice ten an IS suggests stronger momen
tum o n the horizon. ( h ·er the past 12 mo mhs, v.~.:an9· 
rJtcs in most m.Hkets tightened sign I ti .:~nt~•. lowerin g 
th e t1Jtio n.1l oAi.:e va.:.m.:y mtc by 50 basis points to 16.) 
percent .lS oi the first quarter o f this year. Net absorption 
opproachcd 17.9 million '"-lUHe tCx-t in the ti r.;t quarter, .1 
4 I percent in.:rc.~Se O\~r one ye.~r ago. Ano ther key J river 
in perio rm.1n.:e impro,·cmcnt has been the lack o i nc·w 
,·onmuetlon; the ,,dditio n oi ).) million <']ll.lre tee t In 
the tit~ t quancr rep resented ,1 47 pe rcent decline com
pucd with I.!St yc.1r. Howe,w , lender .1nd in,~ tor bcltci 
in the sus~alnobtllty oi the U.S. c-:ono mi.: recovery. as wdl as mo re capit~ l sources entering thc.u-cna, hu res ulted In 
a signilican tr.1mp up in new Sltpp l~· in sclcn ~uew.1y metros. 

1...-:Hing act ivity u t<'nds bC)und <'nugr a nd tcdanology industries. E:trlr rcco\'ety o tfi<:e m;ukcrs shored strong tics 
to rcchn ology. e nergy, trade. cd u,\llio n and hc.1ldKarc industries and many oi these markets should pos t ..:ontinued 
strong pcrio rn1.1ncc. including San Frmdsco. San Jose. :\ustin. Boston and Housto n. Ahho u{;h tcch- anJ cncrg.·
rebted enterpri ses continue to do minate ll'.lns.Krions. companies in I ndlL~trles that ha,·e continued to d c-.vnslzc and 
rd1ne thel r sp.Kc needs. such as tin.md al scf\i.:CS. insuran.:c. consul ring and b w firms, h.we grown their businesse-s. 
aJJeJ to p•yrolls. .llld now l' Ursuc new space- requlreme ms. 

\~caner acf1iev<'s tuc t ion across classes; rents ~t il l slow to recowr. Dem.1nd ior C lass A sp.Ke. p.~rlicu brlr CUD 
buildings, .:ontlnucs to lead th e l'C.:O\'ety In o tn.:e s~1ce, but the dwindling supply oi brge block sp~ce .tnd sublease 
options h.u .:reatcd a surge- in demand for Cllss B/C product over the- past 12 mo nt hs that has he lpeJ s t~bi bzc the 
>e.:tor. Clm :\ \'.1can.::·· peake-d a t I ').8 pe-rcent miJ-20 I 0 and has sin ce re..-cdcd 240 basis points to 17.4 f<'l'\:ent. sci II 
380 basis po ints higher than the low record(\.~ in 2007. C lus BIC \'aca nC)' pC'.!kcd Jt 16.6 pcr.:en t in 20 I 0 .1nJ htl.lll~· 
dcdincd )0 bHis poin IS by the end o i 20 12, al tho ugh \'ac.1ncy remains dc,·ated 440 basis points .100vc its 2007 low. 
' I he median .lS kin£ rent io r C h ss :\properties remJins 16.0 percent lowe r than the peak w bridly in 2008, while the 
mcdi.1 n .1sking rem lo r C bss 0/C o ttice spa.:e rcn1-1ins I 0 .1 pe r.:em lower th.1n the former peak in 1008. Ovctall . the 
n.11ion.1l .uking rent ior oAi.:e spJ.:C' Jt $26.39 st.lll,ls 11 .6 pcrcem below the peak .1nd only 4.6 perce nt higher ti1J n 
the trough. For sC\~mlm.ukets. howe\'C r. o tlice rents haw iully rccow rcJ .1nd •11reJ.d}' surp.lSscd prio r pC'.lks. 

Full -tim e office-using employmen t, excluding workers in te mporarr positioM, continues to g row at a h~lthy 
p.1cc. Full-rime o ltice-using employment, whi ch ex.; lud cs workers in tcmpo~ur positions • .:ontinucs to grow Jt .1 
hel!th)' p.Ke. 'lh rough the- fi rst fi-·e mon ths oi 2013. more than 266.000 iull -timt•office po>lt lo ns haw been odded 
n.uionallr. a,-.;:o unring io r more th.1n o nc--lo unh o i .1ll1'rl\·ate-sc.:ro r jobs created. \l;' ith the increase in 1'-lyrolls 
re,-orded thus i:1t in 1013. full -lime oAice-using employment h.s neMiy returned to d1e le\'d a t the stJ.tt oi thc 
re.:cssio n. 'I he .:rc.uion o i more th.1n 1.3 millio n fitll · rimc o ffice jobs since par roll s bottomeJ three yc.1rs •1!;0 h.!S 
helped re-duce the ,1moum o i under-utilized space- m d mises the l' rob.1bility th.u exp.1nded byo uts wi II be-required .1s 
employers hi re .1ddition.1l worker>. O ther emplorment sccror.; with oHice-using funct ions arc .1lso growing, helping 
to o tl"set shrlnkin!; go\·ernmcnt p.1yrolls. Emplo;-mem in doc tot~· otliccs .md outpatient fa.:t llties. a primHy drl\'er 
oi demand to r med ical otfice spJce, grew by 8 1.000 workers in the li r.;t h\'C' mon ths oi the )'Nr. Ye.1r to d.u e, nu nu
t:1.:turers ha\'c .1lso cre.11ed 16.000 johs. hundre-ds oi whi ch Jrc loca 1<.~ In excc uti \'c, .1dministrativc .llld s:.1les oHices. 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

19 



Secondary and tertiary nlMkcts offu the gr~at~~t ;ubi
tr-age opponunity in cap ratu and pricing. Sales o i oi
h.:e p roperti es to tale-d $96.3 billio n in 20 12 .• 111 incre.uc 
oi ncm l}· 30 perce-nt O\'Cr 20 J I. Al~1ough the $20 mil· 
lio n-pl us segmcm coprure<l chrec-qu.mcrs of soles vo l
ume. the- b rgcs t per.:c:-nt•lgc incrc.l.(e o.:currc:-..1 in th e :$10 
millio n co 510 million mn.: hc, a rrcnd likdr to .:omimac 
~lis yc:-.1r b.IS<:d on pau erns in tirsc 'luarcc r ~J ic:-s 1·olum~. 
Inves tors paid .1 mcdi.1 n prkc o i Sl99 per squ•re loot 
lo r oHi.:e propc:-nies, rc:-presen ring a neuly 26 pen:enc rise 
irom th~ price- m the t rough o i chc marke t and .1 I) pc:-r
.:cnt Jisc-ount to the 2007 pc:-.1k price oi $2.H pe-r squ.He 
loot. Cap n tes io r properties loc.u cd in prim.1ry. s.:.:onJ 
ary .1 nd tcni.lrf m.ukccs .:h.1ngcJ signilicam~· .1fter the 
rc.:c:-ssio n. ll1c:- bro.1d sprc:-.ld be-tween ahem unJerscurt's 
how inve-stors .1re clearl:t pridng in risk to r lo.:ational <H· 
tributes. C.1p race-s to r prim.Hy matkcts at i. l per.:cnt 
h.wc Jc.:rcascd 130 basis points sin.:c the rcc~sion. but 
renu in 90 basis po inrs hi{: her than the- pe.1k o t' ahe lll.lr
kct. Sc.:onda ay • nd tcrti~l)' marke ts' .:Jp r.u cs re-mai n 
1)0 anJ 129 b.lSis po ints. respcx rivdr. higher ch.u1 chose 
rcc\lfl.-lcd in 2007. 

forecast: 

Office foncbm~ntals str~ngthc-n whU~ aonomr gains 
tnomcntwn. Employers .1rc iorn:~Sl to Crt'Jt~ .2 .5 million 
new jo b s in .20 13 .• 1 1.9 p crccm annual in<rC\lSC, w hile 

ofli.:~-using e-mployment is io rcc.u c to in.:r~ase 4 .1 pcr
.:~nt. ' I h e numb~r oi o lticc--using lobs is now le;s ch.1n 2 

Offic& Cap Rat~ by Mork&t TYJ>9 

06 0$ 09 10 
'1111«~10 
&eu-ctt: M:tlJt & Mlkl'lp FMN"<h 5o~ rA e• . C.o!fo:r Cl«.f», he~ f'MII ~·~ Ndfk• 

Offic~ Rents by Mark&t Typ& 
- A-irn:uy 

-
ra• 

r~r.:cm o tf its pC3k )~,-~ ) rt'O:Ordcd .u the sc.m oi the r~ccssion . O lti.:c prop~rry fundamentals will strc ngchcll ovcr ch~ 
rt'tm in,lc r oi the ? <'.H .1nd rt'vcnuc gc-n~wion likd~· w ill be .1.: hic1•cd mor~ ah ro u~h occu1" n'y ~a ins chan re-nt growth 
in most markets. In addition, irt'c re-nt in.:~ntives will li kd y diminish and ten am improw mc nt pod:.l.'CS will be.:ome 
less generous .lS che )'Car p rogresses. 

• Muted rent groMh c:qxctation has limited development activity. Six markets, New Yo rk, Boston, \V,lS hington, 
D .C.. Hous ton , S.1n .Jose and San Francisc-o, will comprise ncarlr 3) perccnr o t the p rojc.: tcd 52.0 millio n squ.ue 
IC.: t of ne-w su~'ply in .201 J In each of those m.1rkcts, J cmand is torc:-.:ast to wdl surpass new supply. Ncr .1bsorpri on 
is iorcc.l.S t to cot~l 98 million square- ieee n.ltionwidc, rcdudng the- n.uional v.Ka nq rate- br 80 b asis po ints to 15.9 
perce-nt by yc:-.H end . Asking rents ;l re fo recast to rise .2 .5 per.:cnr to $27.03 per squ.1rc loor: rcdu.:cio ns in .:o n.:cssions 
will drive- e-ven s tronger c:-lfcctii'C' rcnr growrh . 1\luch tiglue r v,lCJI1')' ;lnd st ron&cr rent gains were .1chi evcd in supply 
.:onscmin e<-l technology a nd dymmk ene1w lll3rkets. ,1hhough n..-w sul'f'ly mar limit the magnitude- ot 1.hose rt'nt 
g.1ins co mpucd co recent rent h ikcs. 

• Yidds in primary markets have comprc.ss«l to the point th~t corc or value-add oppo rtoniti~.s loc~ted in dte 
best sui. markets of suondary markets maroft'cr l.cttu I'Ctorns. The mo mcnmm behind C MBS issu,lncc:-. whkh 
tot.l led $37.4 billio n th rough ,\1<~y oi this )'eH, p rovides a less risk·a\'ersc capitJI sour.:c lor properties outside- chc 
primaf}·/.:orc box. lhc highe-r yields and grc.u cr Jis<:Olllll to rt'p!J.:cmenc ,-osr in scrondal)' marke-ts o tfc r .1 powcriul 
in.:entr.·c to i twc:-s tor.> interested in rc.:ovcrr plays. C.1pi1JI wi ll be ,l\',libblc io r the- buyc rwi ah good spollsorship. some 
cqu iq· in the deal • • 1 o ne-- to chrcc-rcar story ior a re-positioning str.l tc~··" proven tm.:k rcc-orJ .• 1nd marke-t ren ts th.H 
h.we been p roperly idcnrilicJ. 

APPRAISAL ZONE 
20 



Office Market Vital Signs 

Employnw nt Trends 
- Totol Esnplo-,mont ,., 

"''· ot 02 m 01 116 O$ 01 oe 09 to tt t2 t$' 
' f)no:.ul 
t.::uc.c: W4ttut L WI.:Np IIMMrch $.1\i;Qt, llt 

Office Sl~ly and Vacancy Trends 
- Compl<tion• V<><-.>ncy 

20•. 

l. 

I·: IUU ~::: I 
m 01 06 0$ 01 011 09 to tt 12 t1' 

'FCft<Mt 
!os~:M.J'(~& ... I d\lf), .. iN'.:hSWik,Go!QrCr'JI,f).h:. 

U.S. OHice R911ts vs. S&P 600 
• SSP 500 - Ar.king Ront 

t,IOO 

tO t2 .,, ... ,,o 
S,.)JrCctJ WlrUH l Wilt:~ ~y.; h!CJn1~.Co-.Art ~If(., U P 

Office Price and Cap Rate Tr911ds 

1Q 2012 to 1Q 2013 Change in Office Vacancy 

M:uims b) Grut(Sl Dalior in Va>ancy M:uk«i by G1rJ1tll Rlsc In \'acan,l' 

IQ Y-O.Y IQ 

~ittro lOB Che.objlj ~1!110 2013 

rhocnU. 11.991. -120 W.chinecon, D.C. 1 8.2~~ 

lnlmd fr11piro 17.4'1. -110 Colun1bus 1) .5~ 

ChJrlone 1 5.0~ -180 .Minnoorolis 15.~ 

lnJi>rupolls 1.1.9% -170 Nonhcm Nt.,. Jm:r 1?.?% 

S...cr.amenr~> 1 8.i~ -160 Tunr•-k Ptt<ub"'' IH,j% 

Auuin 1~.9% -150 c t .. -dmJ 1 6.5~ 

Lu V""' 21.491. - ISO ChiG.I'O 18.5% 

s.1c L.~:o a.,. l_i.5% -150 Fon t_. •J,rJ..J, 17.Bq• 

O..kbnd 1 S.O~ -120 S.mlc-Tsconu 14 .jll(. 

D.dls:l fon Worch 1?,4'1;, - 11 0 l.ot.lro,!:<l.s 16.J-• 

U.S. Mmo Anr~y< 16.S -SO U.S. M<lro A-.roy< lG.S 

S.:UJf;Y;: !,[,,:J/1 6 f,Jif/i.:ltrf Rtu.rr(}; £ , l·iUI, Cc....V.rt Gtwq. h:.:. 

y.l).y 

Ch:.obps) 
120 

.o 
40 

40 

40 

30 

10 

10 

10 

0 

.so 

0w hifxaUIIcnlhlhLI Hf4 n h lf,_trotJ IC< lu u(!ltir. ["W')'lifm•K" n" j' Ill> utuJJ\ u:er1~ u .J : :crphtr lnf:CIIW.IJU b : ..--;"1 fl l:' f'J'IUf tl.lll« l , VlltVlt}' IU &lll"lllk U f ttwJ rl ltlf~ld, ma>•lunu.Jc U IC' dlf . !lQI):')' 

c:t fthibll~· r:J' du t~Mmrl;u<H,IIrttJ •min ! .utn:u:.\hr: u ,. r.llU:••r F:tJUI\b Su't\a-t Cc-S.. wC it"' f• h.,,, Du~a.k. C'lllolu<•• ! •rk Eu:.tl'n~t.:-:m F-dlfll F.. :~~om, M&.V., !<o.' ,\R. R~tii C. apiUI.\mt.'lfc l \b:AI,l' .S. 

Cn"""' ~'"''' 

21 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



NEIGHBORHOOD D EMOGRAPHICS 

Neighborhood Information 
Report Core l og ir 
For Property Loc.lted At Real Q u~st Protes Slana I 
650 CURTISS PKWY, MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166-5250 
DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION: 

Census Tract / Block: J7.02 I 5 Year: 20 11 

Hooselwld: 
Popul.lton: Population by Age : 

Coun t: 5,981 0 And \ I: 10% 
Esumate Current Year. 5,565 2 And 17: 11% 
Estim.lte tn ~Years : 5,507 18 And 24: 10% 
Growth Last 5 Ye.1w ·1.04% 25And 64: 57% 
Growth Last 10 Years· -4.79% of-And 74: 6% 

Household Size: Aver.lge Household Income: $7,498 

Current Year : 2,o53 Household Income: 
Average Current Year: 2.66 0 To $25.000: 14% 
Estim.lte tn 5 Years: 2,006 $25,000 To S3~.000: 12% 
Growth Last 5 YeJrs -2.29% $35,000 To S~O.OOO: 17% 
Growth Last 10 Years -6.81% $50,000 To S75.000: 19% 

Male Population: 52% $75.000 To S 00,000: 16% 
Fenule Population: 48% Above S100,000: 22% 
Number Of Married People: 43% 
Numoer Of Unmarned People: 57~'0 

Housing: 
MediJn Mortg.:~ge . $1,940 Rent Paym en:s: 
MediJn Mortg.age Payments: LHS Th.ln $499 2% 

Under $300 Oo/o $!00- S749: 29% 

$300 • S799. 5% $750- 5999: 37% 
$800.$ 1999 35% $I 000 e. Over: 32% 
o·.er 52000 . 47~~ Year Buil t: 

Medi .:~n Home V:tlu~: $306, 100 1009 & 2000: 1°/o 
Unit Occupted Owner: 65% li05 & 1998: 20/c, 
Home Values: 1990 & 1994: 1°/o 

Below $100.000: 2% l QBO & 1989: 7°/o 
$10J.OOO To $150,000 6% 1070 & 19iP: 13% 
$150.000 To S200.000. 13% 1000 & 1989: 76% 
$200,000 To $300.00•) . 18% Commute Time. 
$<00.000 To S500.000 35% Less Than 15M n: 25% 
Above $500.000 1 00,~ 15 Mtn To 29 Min 37°,. 

Unit Occup.ed Ren:er. 35% 30 Min To 51? Min 28% 
MediJn Gross Rent: $805 Over60 M tn: 1 0~~ 

Educarion: 
Enrollment: NotA High School Gr;~duate : 9'% 

Public Pre-Primary Sohool: 1 ~'· Graduate Of High School: 47% 
Pr.vJte Pre-Prim.:~ry School: 2'% Atlended Some College: 42~'0 

Public School: 49% College Gr.lduate: 3% 
Pr.v.l te School: 18% Graduate Degree: 9% 
Pub ic College . 25% 
Pr.vate College 6% 
Not Enrolled In Schoo l: 75% 

Workforce: 
Oooupation: Pnvate Worke r 7o/o 

MJn.ager:Prof: 8°/o Government Worker: 16% 
Technkal· 2°/o Se ,f Employed Worker: 4: 1',\ 
S.1les· 35o/o UnpJ·d ramilyWor1<er: 3% 
Adm ntstrative 2'% 
Pr.vJte House Hold 3% 
Senf ~ce: 14% 
Pro:eoti~e Services: 6°/o 
F~rmtng 0°/o 
Sk• led: 3% 
Slue-Co lar 13% 

22 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



Core l ogle: 
Neighborhood Information 
Report 
For Property Loc.1ted At Rea iQuost Protess1onal 
650 CURTISS PKWY, MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166-5250 
SCHOOL INFORMATION: 

MIAMI SPRINGS SEVENTH -DAY ADVENTIST 
701 CURTISS PKWY FL 33 t 6G 

School Type. 
G r.1de Range: 
Enrollment: 
Advanced Plac.eMenr 
District . 

Combined 
K - 8th 
82 
No 

BLESSED TRINITY CATHOLIC SCHOOL 
J020 CURTISS PKWY FL 33 1 GG 

School Type: 
Gr.1de R:lnge: 

Combined 
Pre-K - 8th 
300 

Distanco= From Subjec.t 
Phone Number. 
Textbook Expens.e.'Student: 
Supply ExpenseiS:udent: 
Total Expense/Student: 
Kindergarten· 

D1st3nce From Subject . 
Phone Number: 
Textbook Expense.'Student: 
Supply ExpenseiStudent: 
Total Exp!l'nse/Student 

0.08 (miles) 
(305) 888-2244 

Yes 

0.26 (m iles) 
(305) 87 1-5766 

Enrolment 
Adv.1nced Placement 
District: 

No Kindergm1en Yes 
A RCHDIOCESE OF MIAMI 

I SMILE FOR CHILDREN 
150 HIBISCUS OR FL 33166 

School Type· 
Grade Range: 
Enrolment-

Elementary 
K - 3rd 
11 

D1stance From Subjec-t 
Phone Number. 
Textbook !::xpense.'Student: 
Supply Expense!Siudent: 
Total Expense/Siudem 

0.52 (miles) 
(305) 302-5840 

Advanced Plac.ement No Kindergarten Yes 
Dis trio!. 

MIAMI SPRINGS ELEMENTA RY SCHOOL 
51 PARK ST FL 33166 Dtsl l nce From Subjec.l 

Phone Number. 
Senool Typ,.: 
Grade Range: 
Enrollment 
Advanced Placentenr. 
District 

Element:uy T,.lflbook Expense:Stud&nl: 
Pre-K - 5th Supply Expense/Student: 
600 Total Expense/Student · 
No l<indergarten: 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

MIAMI SPRINGS MIDDLE SCHOOL 
150 S ROYAL POINCIA NA BLVD FL 33166 DtstJnce From Subject . 

Phone Number: 
Junior High Textbook Expense.'Student: 

0.65 (m iles) 
(305) 888..J558 

5372 

Yes 

0.96 (miles) 
(305) 888-6457 

School Type. 
Grade Range: 6th - 8th Supply Expense/Student: 5372 
Enro lment 1500 Total Expense:IStudent 
.4dvanced Placement No KindergJrten: No 
District MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

23 



AKTIV LEARNING ACADEMY 
6405 NW 36TH ST FL 33166 

Sc.nool Typo:: 
Grade Range: 
Enro hnent. 

Elementary 
K - 6th 
16 

D•stance From Subject 
Phone Number: 
Textbook Expense:Student: 
Supply Expens.eiStudent: 
Total Expense/Student. 

0.99 (miles) 
(786) 293-7000 

Ad· .. anced Placement 
District 

No Kindergarten: Yes 

SECOND HOME LEARNING CENTER 
118 W 7TH ST FL33010 

SChool Type: 
Grade Range: 
Enrolment. 
Advanced P13cemem 
District 

Preschoo l/Kindergarten 
Pre-K - K 
62 
No 

FAITH LUTHERAN SCHOOL 
293 HIALEAH OR Fl 33010 

Scnool Type: 
Grade Range: 
Enro'lment: 

Combined 
Pre-K - 8th 
82 

D•stance From Subject. 
Phone Number· 
Textbook Expense.'Student: 
Supply Expense!S:udent: 
Total Expense/Student· 
Kindergarten 

Dtst~nce From Subject 
Phone Number. 
Textbook Expense.'Student: 
Supply Expense/S:udent: 
Total Expense/Student 

·1 (miles) 
(305) 888-2728 

Yes 

1.02 (miles) 
(305) 885-2845 

Advanced ?l.a~ment 

District 
No l<indergarten Yes 

MIAMI SPRINGS MONTESSORI 
699 LUDLAM DR FL 33 166 

School Type: 
Grade Range: 
Enrollment 
Ad~anced Placement 
District 

Pres chooi/Kindergarten 
Pre-K - K 
67 
No 

o .stance From Subj ect 
Phone Number: 
TeiCtbook Expense:Student: 
Supply Expen sefStud ent: 
Total Expense/Student 
Kindergarten: 

IrS A SMALL WORLD LEARNING CENTER Ill 
405 HIALEAH DR FL330 10 

School Type: 
Grade Range: 
Enro lment: 

Presc hooi/Kindergarten 
Pre-K - 1st 
65 

Distance From Subject 
Phone Number: 
Textbook Expense.' Studen 1: 

Supply ExpensefS:udent: 
Total Expensel Student 

·1.11 (miles) 
(305) 883-0012 

Yes 

'1.14 (mi lo;;s) 
(305) 888-0828 

Advanced Placement 
District· 

No Kindergarten Yes 

MIAMI SPRINGS SENIOR HIGH SCHOOL 
751 DOVE AVE FL 33166 Dist~nce From Subjecl 

Phone Number 
'1.15 (miles) 
(305) 885-3585 

SChool Type. 
Grade Range: 
Enro.lment. 
Advanced Pl-acement 
Dist rict. 

A PPRAISAL ZONE 

Senior High Textbook ExpenseiStudent: 
9th - 12th Supply Expense/S:udent: 5372 
1950 Total Expensei Studern 
Yes Kindergarten: N o 
MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

24 



ALL ANGELS ACADEMY 
1801 LUDLAM OR FL 3:)16G 

Sonooi Typ~ 

Cr~dl< RJngi: 
Combined 
Pr<>·K • 8th 
100 

D1etar.oe From Suoj<tct 
Phone Number · 
Tttxtbook Expent~IStud~nl : 

Suppl·l' Expenu/Stvdtnt: 
Tol~ t E~penJt/Shtdent 

1.54 (miles) 
(306) 888·9483 

Enro lnll!nt 
Ad··~nced Placemem 
Diu riot· 

No l<lndergarten: Y~:s 

HIALEAH ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
050 E 8TH ST FL 33010 DletMoe From Subject: 

School Type: 
Or.1de R~nge: 
Enrollment. 
Adv.1nced Placement 
District: 

Phone Number: 
EI£.11H!Illlry Textbook Expen!!?IStudent: 
Pre·K • 5th Supply Expen!eiStvdent: 
700 Tolal EJ<pense/Studem. 
No l<lndergarten. 
MIAMI·DAOE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

SPRINGVIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
1122 BLUEBIRD AVE FL 33 166 Di! tance From Subj ect: 

Phone Number. 
School Type: Elementary Textbook Expens.eiStudent: 
Grade Range: Pre·K · 5th Supply ExpenseiStvdent: 
Enrollment: 545 Tot~ t Expense/Student: 
Advanced Placement No Kindergarten: 
District: MIAMI·DAOE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

GEORGE T. BAKER AVIATION SCHOOL 
3275 NW 42NO AVE FL 33142 D1stance From Subject · 

Phone Nvmber 
School Type: Senior High Textbook Expens.eiStudent: 

·1.54 (mil~s ) 
(305) 888-6709 

6372 

Yes 

'1.59 (miles) 
(305) 885·6466 

5372 

Yes 

·1.67 (m iles) 
(305) 871·3 143 

Grade Range: 9th . 12th Supply Expense/Stvdem: 5372 
Enrollment 
Advanced Placement 
District: 

645 Total Expense/Student 
No Kindergarten: No 
MIAMI·DAOE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

THE GLORY OF GOD CHRISTIAN SCHOOL 
440 E 13TH ST FL 330·t 0 D1stance From Subject. 

Phone Nvmber: 
·t .67 (miles) 
(305) 884.4000 

School Type. 
Gr.ade R.:mge: 
Enrollment 
Advanced Placement 
District. 

Combined 
K • 12th 
50 
No 

Textbook Expens.e.'Student: 
Supply Expense!Stvdent: 
Total ExpenseJStudent 
Kindergarten: Yes 

EXCELSIOR CHARTER HIGH SCHOOL 
600 W 20TH ST FL 33010 Distance From Subject. 

Phone Number. 
1.8 (mites ) 
(305) 883·8359 

School Type: Senior High Textbook Expense!Studenl: 
Grade Range: 9th • 12th Supply ExpenseiS:~.odent: 5372 
Enrollment· 25 Total E• pense/Student · 
Advanced Placement No l<indergarten: No 
District: MIAMI·DAOE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

25 



Neighborhood Information 
Report Corc>l og •r. 
For Property Lo-=ated At Rea i Q~.;est Pr·otess1ona I 
650 CURTISS PKWY, MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166-5250 
LOCAL BUSINESS INFORMATION: 

ATTRACTIONS - RECREATION 

MIAMI SPRINGS GOLF & COUNTRY Otstance From Subjec t. 0 .02 (miles) 
650 CURTISS PKWY MIAMI SPRINGS Fl 33·166 Phone Number: (305) 805-5180 

BRYSON'S PU B Dtstanc"' From Subject: 0 .36 (miles) 
3790 CURTISS PK\'VY MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number: (305) 871-9534 

MIAMI SPRINGS TENNIS COURTS Distance From Subject. 0 .48 (miles) 
40·1 WESTWARD OR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 331 66 Phone Numb<:r. (305) 805-5080 

DOWNRITE POOLS & SPA INC Dostance From Subject 0.49 (miles) 
385 WESTWARD DR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number. (305) 887-2444 

MIAMI TICKET OFFICE D tStilnce Frorn Subject 0.54 (miles) 
400 SOUTH OR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number (305) 888-3030 

MIAMI SPRINGS HSTRCL MUSEUM Dostilnce Frorn Suoject 0.63 (miles) 
26 WESTWARD OR MIAMI SPRINGS Fl 33166 Phone Number: (305) 884-4406 

PRIME FITNESS INC Dtstilnce From Subject 0.7 (m iles) 
95 HOOK SQ MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone 11umber. (305) 885-8130 

MIAMI SPRINGS RECREATION DEPT Dostance From Suo.rect 0.78 (miles) 
1401 WESTWARD OR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number (305) 805-5076 

MIAMI SPRINGS SWIMMING POOL Dostance From Suojec1· 0.78 (miles) 
1401 WESTWARD OR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number. (305) 805-5078 

ROGER PIERMARINI PGA PRO Distance From Subject: 0.8 (miles) 
950 MORNINGSID E DR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33 166 Phone Number. (305) 807 -8575 

FIRST CHANCE POOL & SPA SUPLS Distance From Subject· 0.81 (miles) 
101 E OKE ECHOBEE RO HIALEAH Fl 33010 Phone Number. (305) 883-9004 

UNIVERSAL STAR VIDEO Dostance From Subject 0.86 (m iles) 
114 HIALEAH OR HIALEAH FL 33010 Phone Number. (305) 887-9861 

PHANTON VIDEO CTR Dostilnce From Subject 0.87 (m iles) 
33·1 PALM AVE HIALEAH FL 33010 Phone Number. (305) 884-3495 

RECREATION DEPT D•stance From Suoject· 0.9 (miles) 
6498 NW 38TH TER VIRGINIA GARDENS Fl 33166 Phone Number. (305) 871 - 11 20 

GREATER MIAMI TENNIS PATRON Dtst.lnce From Suoject 0.96 (miles) 
6501 NW 36TH ST 11300 VIRGINIA GARDENS FL 33166 Phone Number. (305) 365 -6346 

STAFFORD PARK Otstance From Subject. 1 (miles) 
50 I EAST OR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number (305) 805-5081 

26 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



GOVERNMENT - PUBLIC 
MIAMI SPRINGS LIBRARY D>stance From Subject 0.48 (miles) 
40'1 WES TWARD DR MIAMI SPRINGS Fl 331 66 Phone Number. (305) 805 -38 11 

MIAMI SPRING S POLICING OFFICE Ots!ance From Subject· 0.51 (miles) 
274 WESTWA RD DR MIAMI SPRINGS Fl 33166 Phone Number. (305) 888-5286 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY LIBRARY Distance From Subject: 0.51 (m iles) 
274 WESTWARD DR MIAMI SPRINGS Fl 33 166 Phone Number. (305) 883-8738 

MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE DEPT Distance From Subject: 0.56 (miles) 
201 WESTWARD DR MIAMI SPRINGS Fl 33166 Phone Number. (305) 888-9711 

MIAMI SPRINGS POLICE DETECTIVE Distance From Subje~t· 0.56 (miles) 
201 WESTWARD DR MIAMI SPRINGS Fl33166 Phone Number. (305) 88 7 -'1444 

MIAMI SPRINGS CITY HAll Distance From Subject: 0.56 (m iles) 
20·1 WESTWARD DR MIAMI SPRINGS Fl33166 Phone Number: (305) 805-5000 

US POST OFFICE Distano:e From Subject: 0.57 (m iles) 
107 WESTWARD DR MIAMI Fl 33266 Phone Number (305) 882-'1042 

VIRGINIA GARDENS VILLAGE ADMIN Otstance From Subject: 0.9 (m iles) 
6498 NW 38TH TER VIRGINIA GARDENS F l 33'166 Phone Number: (305) 871-6"104 

US POST OFFICE Distance From Subject: 0.94 (miles) 
325 E 1ST AVE HIALEAH FL 33010 Phone Number. (305) 889-54 21 

HIALEAH CITY ATTORNEY Dtstance From Suoject: 0.96 (miles) 
501 PALM AVE HIALEAH Fl 33010 Phone Number: (305) 883-5854 

HIALEAH CITY CLERK Dtstance From Subject: 0.96 (m iles) 
50·1 PALM AVE HIALEAH FL 33010 Phone Number· (305) 883-5820 

HIALEAH MAYOR'S OFFICE Dtstance From Subject. 0.96 (miles) 
501 PALM AVE HIALEAH FL 330 10 Phone Number: (305) 883-5800 

HOSPITALITY 
PARKWAY INN-AIRPORT Distance From Suoject: 0.36 (miles) 
777 CURTISS PKWY MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33'166 Phone Number: (305) 887-2621 

SLEEP INN-MIAMI AIRPORT Distance From Subject: 0 .52 (m iles) 
105 FAIRWAY DR MIAMI SPRINGS Fl 33166 Phone Number. (305) 871 -7553 

HOMESTEAD-STUDIO SUITES Distance From Subject· 0.54 (m iles) 
10 '1 FAIRWAY DR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Numbo;r. (305) 870-0448 

COMFORT INN-MIAMI AIRPORT Dtstance From Subje<:.t 0 .63 (miles) 
5301 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33·166 Phone Number · (305) 871-6000 

HOLIDAY INN EXPRESS-MIAMI Distance From Subjecl. 0.73 (miles) 
5 125 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number. (305) 887 -2153 

PAT HOTELS & TRAVEL C NSLNTS Dtstance From Subject 0.79 tmiles) 
5011 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS Fl 33·166 Phone Number· (305) 888-8003 

AIRWAYS INN & SUITES MIAMI Disto1nce From Subject 0.79 (miles) 
5001 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33"166 Phone Number. (305) 883-4700 

SELF SERVICE INNS OF A MERICA D•stanc.e From Subject 0.79 (miles) 
5001 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33'166 Phone Number. (305) 885-5304 

L A FUENTE HOTEL Oistanc.e From Subject· 0.81 tmiles) 
15'1 E OKEECHOBEE RO HIAL EAH FL 3301 0 Phone Number. (305) 805-7720 

HIALEAH EXEC UTIVE MOTEL Distance From Subjec-t : 0.84 (miles) 
13·1 W OKEECHOBEE RO HIALEAH FL 33010 Phone Number. (305) 884-·1 060 

COMFORT SUITES-MIAMIINTL Distanc.e From Subje•:t. 0.9 (miles) 
657 MINOLA OR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33 166 Phone Number. (305) 888-8404 

ROYAL INN APARTMENTS Dtstance From Subject· 0.9 1 (miles) 
168 HIALEAH OR HIALEAH FL 33010 Phone Number: (305) 885-8 398 

DAYS INN Distance From Subject · 0.94 (miles) 
4767 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33·166 Phone Number· (305) 888 -3661 

27 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



SHOPPING 
VILLAGE HARDWARE Dtstanc.: From Subject· 0.27jmiles) 
3966 CURTISS PKWY MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number. (305) 871·6268 

ALUEDPHARMACYINC Dtstance From Subject 0.27 (m iles) 
3964 CURTISS PK\'I'Y MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number: (305) 871-6241 

VIRGINIA GARDENS DRUG LLC Dtstance From Subject 0.27 (m iles) 
3964 CURTISS PKWY MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Numb"'r. (305) 874·5059 

JAA UQUORS INC Dtstance From Subject 0.27 (m iles) 
3942 CURTISS PKWY MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Numb.,r: (305) 871·51 05 

TIGER AIRCRAFT TRADING LLC D1stance From Subject· 0 .29 (m iles) 
3814 CURTISS PKWY MIAMI SPRINGS FL33166 Phone Number. (305) 526·4584 

CARPETS & TILES OF CORAL WAY Dtstance From Subject: 0.4 (miles) 
350 NAVARRE DR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number: (305) 882·9363 

AVIATION INTERNATIONAL CORP D1stance From Subject: 0.44 (miles) 
5555 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33·166 Phone Number: (305) 898·6486 

GSE PART & SUPPLY D,st~nce From Subject · 0.45 (miles) 
5439 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33"166 Phone Number: (305) 885·4995 

SINAPSIS TRADING USA LLC Distance From Subject · 0.46 (miles) 
5600 NW 36TH ST MIAMI FL 33166 Phone Number: (305) 876··1225 

AMERICAN DOLLAR PHARMACY D1stance From Subject· 0.49 (miles) 
5399 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number. (305) 870·0118 

DOWNRITE POOLS & SPA INC Distance From Subject 0.49 (miles) 
385 WESTWARD DR MIAMI SPRINGS FL33166 Phone Number. (305) 897 ·2444 

IDEAS BY ODYS Distance From Subject 0.49 (miles) 
36·1 WESTWARD DR MIAMI SPRINGS FL 33166 Phone Number. (305) 897-5662 

TALLY-HO TAILORS INC Distance From Subject: 0.5 (miles) 
5391 NW 36TH ST MIAMI SPRINGS FL 331 G6 Phone Number: (305) 871-6200 

PETS KINGDOM CORP D1stance From Subject 0.51 (miles) 

I 

28 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



Neighborhood Information 
Report Core l ogi r 
For Property Loc.ned Ai Rea iQ uest Pl"of·esSIOna l 
650 CURTISS PKWY, MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166·5250 

CRIME INFORMATION: 

County Sheriff lnfornl 3ti on: Year: 2008 

County : State: National: 
Populat on Total 2,373,744 1'8,306, 1 94 293,863,591 

V iolent Crimes (Ratio): 
Hom•oide 

Total. I : 10,411 1 : 15,673 1 : 18,302 
Mans laughter: 1 : 791 ,248 1 : 164,921 1 : 403,659 

Rape 
Tot.JI 1 : 3,608 1 : 3,070 1 : 3,524 
Foroiblo: R.Jpes: I : 3,872 1 : 3,265 1 : 3,890 
Attempted Rapo:s. 1 : 52,750 1 : 51 ,422 1 : 47,853 

Robbery 
Tot.JI 1 : 303 1 : 505 1 : 673 
Gvn: 1 : 613 1 : 1,082 1 : 1,758 
Knifo:: 1 : 5,287 1 : 8,072 1 : 9,965 
Other Weapon 1 : 3,692 1 : 5,951 1 : 8,727 
Strong Arm: 1 : 828 1 : 1,3·10 1 : 1,900 

A5S3UII 
Total· 1 : 70 1 : 64 1 : 79 
Gvn: 1 : 874 1 : 1,096 1 : 1,830 
Kni'o:: 1 : 1,'146 1 : 1,254 1 : 2,073 
Other Weapon 1 : 469 1 : 568 1 : 1, 167 
Strong Arm: 1 : 814 1 : 955 1 : 1,446 
Simple: 1 : 113 1 : 89 1 : 10 I 

Non-Vio lent Crimes (Ratio): 
Burg,ary 

Total 1 : 95 1 : 97 1 : 136 
Forced Entry 1 : 134 1 : 161 1 : 233 
Non-Forcible· 1 : 459 1 : 302 1 : 442 
Attempted· 1 : 1,099 1 : 1,346 1 : 2 ,249 

Larceny 
Total 1 : 27 1 : 36 1 : 47 

Motor Vehicle Theft 
Total 1 : 149 1 : 289 1 : 310 
Auto: 1 : 220 1 : 483 1 : 456 
Truok:Bus: 1 : 623 1 : 1,125 1 : 1,863 
Other 1 : 1,761 1 : 1,977 1 : 3,39 1 

29 
APPRA ISAL ZONE 



NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION 

DEFINITION: 

A neighborhood is defined in The Appraisal or Real Estate, Eleventh Edition, copyright 1996, by the 
Appraisal Institute, as follows: 

A neighborhood is defined as a group of complementary land uses. The relative uniformity of a 
neighborhood may result from similarities in: 

• Physical features, and physical barriers created by either the terrain or the 

• Location of major arteries 

• Transportation. 

• Population characteristics 

• Factors affecting land use and income-producing potential 

Neighborhood analysis focuses on the four forces that influence value: social, economic, governmental, 
and environmental considerations. 

• Social characteristics relate to the occupant;" reasons for living or working in a given neighborhood 

• Economic characteristics refer to the occupant 's financial abil ity to on or rent property and maintain or 
rehabi litate it. 

• Governmental characteristics pertain to the regulations and taxes imposed on property and the 
administrative machinery needed to enforce compliance. 

• Environmental characteristics identifY any natural or mamnade features that are contained in, or exert and 
effect on a neighborhood. 

Neighborhoods may be devoted to such uses as residential, commercial, industrial, agricul tural, cultural 
and civic activities, or a mixture of these uses. Analysis of the neighborhood in which a particular 
property is located is important due to the various economic, social, political, and physical forces which 
affect the neighborhood and also directly influence the individual properties within it. An analysis of 
these various factor as they affect the value of the subject property is presented in the following 
discussion. The analysis of the neighborhood provides a bridge between the analysis of general influences 
on all property values and the study of a particular subject property. 

The goal of a neighborhood analysis is to determine how the operations of social, government, economic, 
and environmental forces influence the property value in the specific area in which the property is 
located. Neighborhood analysis also provides a framework or context in which property value is 
estimated. It identifies and limits the area available for analysis and establishes potential limits or search 
for data to be utilized in applying the appropriate methods of valuation. 

30 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION (Contin ued) 

Identification of the Subject neighborhood enables the appraiser to determine whether comparable 
properties to be used in the valuation process are located insider or outside of the neighborhood. The 
comparable properties located in the neighborhood usually require little or no adjustment for location . 
Furthermore the analysis should assist the appraiser in determining levels of change or stabi lity in a 
neighborhood or district. This analysis provides a basis for study of the effect of change on the stage of 
the life cycle evident in a neighborhood; thus helping an appraiser more accurately predict future values 
and land uses. 

According to the Appraisal of Real Estate, 11th addition published by the American Institute of Real 
Estate Appraisers; a neighborhood is a group of complementary land uses as was stated earl ier. A 
residential neighborhood for example may contain many single-family homes and commercial properties 
that provide services for local residents. A clear distinction can be drawn between a neighborhood and a 
district. 

A district is a type of neighborhood that is characterized by homogeneous land use. Districts are 
commonly composed of apartments, commercial, industrial or agricultural properties. Neighborhood 
occupants usually have an observable commonality of interest. Usually a neighborhood grouping of 
inhabitants, buildings or business enterprises posses similar features or attributes. Therefore a 
neighborhood is relatively uniform. 

That is, a neighborhood exhibits a greater commonali ty than the larger area. Consequently a specific 
definition of a neighborhood or a district is a grouping of complementary land uses affected by simi lar 
operations of the four forces that affect property value. 

Neighborhood or district boundaries delineate the physical area that exerts relevant influence on a subject 
property's market value. The boundaries may coincide with changes in prevailing uses, occupant 
characteristics, or physical characteristics, such as structures, street patterns, terrain, vegetation and lot 
sizes. Because changes in natural or physical features often coincide with the change from one 
neighborhood area to another, features s uch as transportation arteries, bodies of water and changes in 
elevation often constitute neighborhood boundaries. 

NEIGHBORHOOD ANALYSIS 

The neighborhood is located in the City of Miami Springs, Miami-Dade County, Florida and is 
surrounded primarily by mixed residential, and neighborhood commercial usage. 

Subject is located on Eldron Drive, which is a minor North/South thoroughfare. Access to the area is 
good. Major roads and expressways are nearby and provide excellent access to other pa1is of the county. 
The City is bound to the North by Okeechobee canal, to the East by NW 42 A venue, to the South by NW 
36th St., and to the West by the NW 67 Avenue. The subject has frontage along the West parcel 
boundaries. 

31 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



NEIGHBORHOOD MAP 

To the North: 
To the East: 
To the South: 
To the West: 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

Deer Run 
Deer Run 
Fainvay Drive 
Curtiss Parkway 

32 



SITE INFORMATION: 

ACCESS/FRONTAGE: 

Access to subject property is via Eldron Drive, which is minor North/South thoroughfare. The access 
roadway also provides ingress and egress to the subject property, and has primarily local mixed 
residential and neighborhood commercial traffic. 

Aerial Map 

33 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



SITE DATA: 

The site is level and at approximate street level. Utilities available to the site are: 

Electric: 
Telephone: 
Water: 
Sewage Disposal: 

Florida Power and Light 
Multiple Carriers 
Miami Dade County 
Miami Dade County 

No adverse easements or encroachments are note 

TOPOGRAPHY/SOIL CONTENT: The subject site is generally level, and appears to be lying just 
above the road grade with no observed drainage problems or adverse easements that would restrict or 
limit the use of the site. We have not been provided with soi l surveys or subsurface analysis. However 
from our observations of the subject site, the surrounding developments, and Miami-Dade County 
geological survey maps, prepared by the Department of Environmental Protection, we have assumed that 
there would pose no developmental adversities. 

ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS: Unless otherwise stated in this report, the existence of hazardous 
substances, including without limitation, asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyls, petroleum leakage, or 
agricultural chemicals which may or may not be present on the property, or other environmental 
conditions, were not called to the attention of, nor did the appraiser become aware of such during the 
appraisers inspection. Furthermore, the appraisers are not qualified to test for such substances or 
conditions. We attempt to note, during our inspection of the subject property, any visual evidence of 
dumping, or potentially hazardous waste asbestos in improvements or underground storage tanks. We saw 
no such evidence during our inspection however, if additional environmental hazards are discovered at a 
later time, we reserve the right to amend our value estimate. 

PARKING: Adequate for the purpose of a vacant parcel land, and is typical of comparable sales if based 
upon granted usage by the City of Miami Springs. 

34 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



ZONING 

The zoning for the subject property is P 1 Public Property. The present use appears to be confonning and 
legal. 

Zoning is the division of a jurisdiction into zones or districts. Zoning regulates land uses and related 
matters. Between districts regulations vary but within each district they apply unifonnly to each class or 
kind of property. The districts separate agricultural, residential, commercial, and industrial uses so that 
there is a minimum of trouble caused by mixed uses. 

Zoning has a direct effect on traffic and parking, congestion, s lum prevention, general community and 
neighborhood appearance, community revenues and expenditures and property values. The kind of zoning 
we have in our democratic society is of recent origin, but effective zoning is indeed necessary. It is also 
necessary that it be well done, fully protecting appropriate public interest without unnecessarily restricting 
the use of property. There must be a reasonable relationship between the objectives of regulation and the 
regulation themselves. The purpose of planning and zoning include the following: 

• To preserve and enhance present advantages, overcome present handicap and pr·event or minimize futu r·e 
problems. 

• To promote, protect and improve public health, safety, comfort, good order·, appearance, convenience, morals, 
and the general welfare. 

• To conserve the value of land, buildings, and resources. To protect the char·acter and maintain the stability of 
residential, agricultural, business and industrial areas, and to promote the orderly de\•elopment of such areas. 

• To guide and accomplish a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development, which, in addit ion to the 
purposed set forth above, will contribute to efficiency and economy in the process of development. 

• To lessen congestion in the streets. 

• To secure safety fr·om fires, panic, and other dangers. 

• To provide adequate light, and air. 

• To prevent overcrowding of land and undue concentration of population. 

• To facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewage, schools and other public requirements 

35 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



ZONING DESCRIPTION AS PER MIAMI SPRINGS CODE OF ORDINANCE: 

Sec. 150-090. P-1 district. •.. ,'" 

(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

(G) 

APPRAISAL Z ONE 

District purpose. The P-1 district is intended to provide for public recreational facilities as well as 
public uses of the federal, state, county, and municipal governments. Recreational activities in the 
P-1 district will normally be conducted in the open air; however, related accessory uses may be 
located on the same plot in structures or buildings. The functional characteristics of a P-1 district 
may require its location within, or in close proximity to , residential areas or areas of natural beauty 
and scenic qualities. 

Uses permitted. No land, water, or structure may be used, in whole or in part, except for one or 
more of the following uses, or similar uses approved by the City Council. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

Public: 

(a) 

Country club. 

(b) 

Golf course. 

(c) 

Shuffleboard courts. 

(d) 

Swimming pool. 

(e) 

Tennis courts. 

(f) 

Recreation or community centers. 

(g) 
Public parks and open spaces. 

Public preschool, elementary, junior high, or high schools. 

Libraries, museums, community centers. 

City hall and other municipal governmental buildings necessary to the provision of 
municipal services. 

Publicly owned and operated facilities of the federal, state, county, or special purpose 
governmental unit necessary to the provision of services and facilities to residents of the 
community and surrounding areas. 

Minimum lot area. The minimum lot area for uses which shall include a building in the P-1 district 
shall be 10,000 square feet. 

Minimum lot width. None. 

Minimum yards. None. 

Maximum building height. The maximum allowable building height in the P-1 district shall be 40 
feet. 

Signs. See Signs, § 150-030 

36 



(H) 

(I) 

Parking. See Off-Street Parking, § 150-016 

Limitations and special requirements. 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

The operation of any recreation area shall, regardless of anything else in this section, be 
subject to the reasonable control and direction of the City. 

All yards and open spaces adjacent to streets and contiguous to residential areas shall be 
planted and properly maintained with suitable planting in the form of grass, shrubs, 
hedges, and trees to present an attractive appearance to the neighborhood. 

Any site upon which a golf course is developed shall be landscaped and maintained in a 
neat and clean, live, healthy, and growing condition, properly watered and trimmed, free of 
any refuse, structure, or debris, for a distance of not less than 100 feet from any abutting 
property zoned for residential use. 

All uses in the P-1 district shall provide the required parking as outlined in this Zoning 
Code for such use. 

The site development plan for a plot in the P-1 district shall provide for an arrangement 
and location of uses and facilities on the plot as to give maximum possible separation 
from, and protection to, contiguous and nearby residential property. Where the nature of 
the activities or facilities on the plot presents any potential hazard or detriment to 
contiguous residential properties from noise, glare, odors, smoke, vibration, flying objects, 
or traffic, protection to the contiguous residential properties shall be provided in the form of 
open space, fences, walls, hedges, enclosures, or by such other means as may be 
appropriate and effective to prevent or minimize the hazards. 

(Ord. 599-77, passed 3-28-77) 

Sec. 150-091. P-2 church use only. 4' 
(A) 

(B) 

(C) 

(D) 

(E) 

(F) 

Uses permitted. Any building used for church services, Sunday school instruction, or other activities 
directly connected with the normal operation of a church. 

Building height limits. The maximum building height shall be 40 feet. 

Site. The minimum building site shall be governed by the number of off-street parking spaces which 
the site will accommodate, in proportion to the size of the building, as provided by this chapter, and 
subject to the limitations as herein provided for front, rear, and side yard requirements. 

Front, side, and rear yard requirements. No structure in this area shall be built closer than 30 feet to 
the exterior property lines of the minimum building site as herein required. 

Signs. See Signs, § 150-030 

Parking standards and requirements. See § 150-016 

(Code 1962, § 25-18; amend. Ord. 184.24, passed 9-8-58; amend. Ord. 599-77, passed 3-28-77; amend. Ord. 760-90, 
passed 3-26-90) 

Sec. 150-092. Nonconforming uses . .? 
(A) 

A nonconforming use of a building, or portion thereof, or of land , which use existed lawfully at the 

37 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



(B) 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

time of adoption or subsequent amendment of this chapter, may be continued, provided that: 

(1) 

(2) 

(3) 

(4) 

(5) 

(6) 

(7) 

No building which has been damaged by fire, explosions, act of God, or the public enemy, 
to the extent of more than 50 percent of the replacement value of the building immediately 
prior to the damage, shall be restored, except in conformity with the requirements of this 
chapter. 

No building or portion thereof, or land used in whole or in part for nonconforming purposes 
according to the provisions of this chapter, which hereafter becomes and remains vacant 
for a continuous period of three months, shall again be used except in conformity with the 
regulations for the district in which the building or land is situated. 

A nonconforming use of a building or land shall not be extended or enlarged. 

A nonconforming structure that was e rected, converted, or structurally altered in violation 
of the provisions of the ordinance which this chapter supersedes, shall not be validated by 
the adoption of this chapter, and the violations or any violations of this chapter may be 
ordered removed or corrected by the proper officials at any time. 

The lawful use of land for storage purposes, or for advertising signs and billboards, which 
does not conform to the provisions of this chapter, shall be discontinued within three years 
from the date of the adoption of this chapter, and the uses of land which become 
nonconforming by reason of a subsequent change in this chapter shall also be 
discontinued within three years from the date of the change. 

Whenever a nonconforming use of a building has been changed to a conforming use, the 
use shall not thereafter be changed to a nonconforming or less restricted use. 

Once a nonconforming use is abandoned for a continuous period of three months, it 
cannot be reestablished until it conforms to the provisions of this chapter. 

Nonconforming residential homes. multiple-family dwellings and commercial buildings that meet the 
following listed qualifications shall be exempt from the platting requirement of § 150-019 as 
provided herein: 

(1) 

Qualifications. Each property seeking to qualify for exemption pursuant to this section 
must meet all of the following conditions and requirements: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

The property was initially platted as a separate lot or lots and was subsequently 
replatted as part of a tract of land, or the property was originally platted as a tract 
of land without individual lots. 

The City issued a building permit for the construction of a single-family residential 
home, multiple-family dwelling or commercial building on the property while it 
remained part of a tract or land without being replatted. 

The property has since remained part of a tract of land since the construction of 
the existing structure on the property. 

The structure built on the property presently exists on the same portion of the 
tract upon which it was originally constructed. 

The property conforms, in all other respects, to the City Code of Ordinances. If 
not, the property may still qualify for the exemption provided herein, if the 
property owner secures a variance from the City for whatever other violation or 
nonconformity may exist on the property. 

38 



SUBJECT'S NEIGHBORHOOD ZONING MAP 

APPRA ISAL ZONE 

City ol Miami Springs l and Uso 
l_]1~~t r •• ,,, "••llt11~1 
-.V,.~It.._rr~ Pn\lu.-111 
lll 11tlt1_. 1111uft u lllJ 

.. (tlt'~l lu lttu0u\u1 

l2'Z'.a ' vt Jl:tl .Jl ttl ~l.U1d 
~J,:;, ,,.,(), f Di·w·,, 

~ Mtt\ lta Tu~t Di•\t~1t 
.. "•>Jt 'o.~ t CI' J~, tt.,.tt Ohl1hl 

.. 

PL" lt I.UtUtlt ·u l OPI* Spuc 

~p,,l ltf •llflnt 

r:=Jr..t tlt p d ' ' " ' '' U uuLth 
lhl~ln ' lt~llJtf.UI 

- M IC Uoll thltlt t 

.ftltt11 

.. w,;rO•fyud\\\~'W•y 

39 



GENERAL AREA MAP 

40 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



FLOOD MAP 

Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) 

Out 

Within 250ft. of multiple flood 
zones? 

Yes (AH,X) 

Flood Zone Descript ion: 

Community Name 

MIAMI SPRINGS 

Zone X-An area that is determined to be outside the 100- and 500-year floodplains. 

~-------------------------------V 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

41 



PLAT MAP 

P-1 

~ 
0050 
·~)"1 £.: 

'-

[ 
I 
I 

I 

f"' :u 

42 
APPRAISAL Z ONE 



TAX & ASSESSMENT ANALYSES 

In arriving at just valuation as required under Section 4, Atticle VII of the State Constitution, the Property 
appraiser is required to consider eight criteria, which are outlined below: 

I. The present cash value of the property, which is the amount a willing purchaser would pay a willing seller, exclusive or reasonable 
fees and cost of purchase, in cash or the immediate equivalent thereof in a transaction at arms length; 

2. The highest and best use to which the property can be expected to be put in the immediate future and the present use of the property, 
taking into consideration any applicable local or state land use regulation and law, ordinance, regulation, resolution, or proclamation 
adopted by any governmental body or agency of the Governor when the moratorium prohibits or restricts the or improvements of 
property as otherwise authorized by applicable law; 

3. The location of said property; 

4. The quantity or size of said property; 

5. The cost of said property and the present replacement value of any improvement thereon; 

6. The condition of said property ; 

7. The income from said property; 

8. The net proceeds of the sale of property; is received by the seller, after deduction of all the usual and reasonable fees and costs of the 
sale, including the costs and expenses of financing and allowance from unconventional or typical terms of financing and 
arrangements. When the net proceeds of the sale of any property are utilized, directly or indirectly, in the determination of just 
valuation of realty of the sold parcel or any other parcel under the provision of this section, the property appraiser, for the purposes of 
such detennination, shall exclude any portion of such net proceeds attributable to payments for household fumishings or other items of 
personal property. 

NOTE: As amended by Section 6, Ch 79-334 applies to assessment rolls and taxes levied thereon for the year 
1980 and each year thereafter. 

It is mistakenly believed assessments are supposed to be at 100% of Market Value. In actuality, assessments 
should reflect net proceeds of sale to a seller subtracting selling expenses and allowances for typical financing. 
Therefore, a property could be over assessed even if it sells for an amount greater than the assessment. 

Depending upon the specific property type, assessment to sale ratios should typically range from 80% to 95%. 
However, terms of the sale, selling expenses, and financing involved could dictate a lower or even higher 
assessed to sale ration . 

Most properties are accessed via the Cost Approach with additional support from the Direct Sales Comparison 
and Income approaches (if available). Sometimes, because of the process of Mass Appraisal, relevant 
approaches were not relied upon primarily due to the absence of pertinent information such as an income 
statement or recent physical inspection of the property. 

Consequently, the assessment is generally not representative of true 100% market value. The subject property 
is identified and subject of Miami-Dade County Ad Valorem Taxes on Real and Personal Property. Taxes are 
payable in November with a 4% discount and become delinquent on Apri I 1st of the following year. fn our 
research of the subject property, we noted the property taxes were current. 

The tax assessment is not relative to the market value. 

According to the Miami-Dade County Tax Rolls, the subject propetties are assessed as follows: 

Assessment Year2012: 

Land 
Exempt 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

Building Total Value Taxes 

43 



HIGHEST & 'BEST USE 

Highest and Best use is defined by the Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 3rd edition as: "The 
reasonably probable and legal use of vacant land or an improved property, which is physically possible, 
appropriately supported, financially feasible, that results in the highest value". 

In a case where a s ite has existing improvements, the highest and best use may well be different from the 
existing use. The existing use however, will continue until the land value represents the majority of the 
property value, and there is justification for the removal or renovation of the existing improvements. 

Additionally, it is implicit in the definiti.on that the determination of highest and best use is a logical and 
well-supported conclusion resulting from the appraiser's judgment and analytical skill. Furthermore the 
term highest and best use does not refer exclusively to the size of the structure that might be built and is 
not a lways measured in terms of money. The return or yie ld of a property can also be construed as the 
benefits derived from amenities such as historic significance or natural beauty. 

Also implied within this definition of highest and best use is the contribution of a patticular use to the 
community, and community development goals along with the benefits of that use to the individual 
property owner. With these underlying premises in mind, there are essentially for four tests, which are 
applied to the use or uses being considered. These four tests are: 

I. The s ite's legally permissible use, which is pern1iHed by zoning and deed restrictions on the site in question, along with 
any approval processes as pern1itted by various government agencies. 

2. The physically possible uses for the site in question. Simply stated, that is, what can be constructed on the site, for 
example, an odd shaped parcel of land might have a total square foot size, which, under a g·iven zoning would allow a 
certain size stmcture to be constructed. However, because of the sites configuration only a smaller slnlcture would be 
possible. 

3. Its probable use. This is simply what use will be compatible with other current and likely uses in the area. 

4. The most profitable uses amongst the most feasible uses; that use which will produce the highest return or the highest 
present worth. 

Highest and Best Use is further defined as that reasonable and probable use that wil l suppo1t the highest 
present value, as defined, as of the effective date of the appraisal. 

Alternatively, that use, from among reasonably probable and legal a lternative uses, found to be physically 
feasible, and which results in the highest land value. The definition immediately above applies 
specifically to the Highest and Best Use of land. It is to be recognized that in cases where a site has 
existing improvements on it, the Highest and Best Use may very well be determined to be different from 
the existing use. The existing use will continue, however, unless and until land value in its Highest and 
Best Use exceeds the total value of the property in its existing commercial use. 

44 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



HIGHEST & BEST USE AS IF VA CANT 

Highest and Best Use is defined in the I I th Edition of the Appraisal of Real Estate, published by the 
Appraisal Institute follows: 

I. Highest and Best Use of land is the most profitable likely use at the time of appraisal. It also may be defined as the 
available use and program of future utilization that produces the highest present land value. 

2. Existing use may or may not confom1 to Highest and Best Use. 

3. Highest and Best Use may compromise a combination of a profitable interim (transitional) use and a deferred, more 
profitable potential use. 

4. Highest and Best Use may be limited by zoning or deed restriction. 

5. The principal of increasing and decreasing return aflim1s the proper apportionment of land and improvements to 
achieve maximum land value. 

6. The ooncept of Highest and Best Use may be extended to improved real estate for various decisions making situations 
but such application should not be oonfused with the underlying concept of Highest and Best Use of land only. 

7. Balance and consistent use are important collateral consideration in the selection of Highest and Best use. 

The preceding definition is specifically applied to the highest and best use of land as though it were 
vacant. When a site is improved, the improvement typically remains in use over its economic life. The 
discussion of highest and best use under the assumption of a vacant site should analyze what type and size 
improvements should be constructed when considering the basic definition and criteria. The factors that 
underline the highest and best use criteria wi ll be discussed. 

I. The subject sits on a parcel of land zoned P I Public Property. The present/existing use is legal confom1ing use, 
currently under use as an automotive repair building. 

2. As to possible uses or what could be constmcted on the site, the site offers no developmental adversities. Moreover, 
based on our observation of surrounding development, there does not appear to be any adverse topographical condition 
that would preclude development with standard construction techniques. As a benefit, all utilities are to the site. 

3. Probable use oonsiderations include those uses that are oompatible with surrounding development. Due to the nature of 
the area as outlined in the Neighborhood Analysis, the most likely use would be predicated upon a zoning that would 
reflect the intended use of a developer looking to develop the site. Due to the size of U1e tract, it is believed that a 
oommercially oriented use would be the most probable use. 

4. In order to identifY a specific use that would result in the highest return to the land, a feasibility analysis would have to 
be conducted. This however, is beyond the scope of the appraisal assignment. Therefore from the preceding factors 
considered, the highest and best use of the subject "as if vacant" would be oriented toward usages as permitted by 
zoning codes. 

CONCLUSION 

We have concluded that the highest and best use of the subject property as though vacant would be for 
development of a use commensurate with those activities permitted by the current adjacent commercial 
zoning. 

45 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



HIGHEST AND BEST USE AS IMPROVED 

Once a parcel of land is substantially improved, the two pat1s from an integrated unit, and from all 
practical purposes, they are inseparable. However, when the market value of the land alone if vacant and 
available for its highest and best use exceeds the value of the property as improved, the improvements are 
no longer a viable contribution to the property and a new use must be adopted. In analyzing the Highest 
and Best use of the subject property "as improved", several principles of real estate value must be 
considered. They include conformity, supply and demand, change, and balance. 

• Conformity - The subject's improvements continue to confonn to the general developmental pallem and architectural 
homogeneity of the district. 

• Supply and Demand - Our analysis of the subject's surrounding neighborhoods tends to indicate that there is demand 
for warehousing oriented space. Although it may have to upgraded or modified to suit the new users needs. 

• Change - This is the law of cause and effect at work. We note no changes occurring in the subjects' use or 
improvements obsolete. 

• Balance - Value is created and sustained when contrasting, or interacting elements are in a state of equilibrium. At 
present, the economic mix in the immediate area appears to be relatively ham10nious. The subject, as improved, offers 
basically a large open shell structure that can be modified to suit a user's need and is potentially capable of competing 
in the current envirorunent. Thus, balance is sustained 

CONCLUSION 

We have concluded that the highest and best use of the subject property as though vacant would be for 
development of a use commensurate with those activities permitted by the current adjacent commercial 
zoning. 

46 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



ESTJMA TION OF LAND VALUE 

In land valuations, the following elements in value are equated between the individual properties under 
comparison and the subj ect property: 

I. Sale data including price, date/time of sale; 

2. Lot size and topographical features; 

3. Location appeal relating to land pattern, corner influence, proximity to favorable or unfavorable 
features, and accessibility; 

4. Availability of utilities, street surfacing, municipal services; 

5. Zoning and deed restrictions, probability of rezoning or the intrusion of inharmonious land uses; 

6. Any other pertinent comparison factors. 

Provided that market data used in comparison has been sufficient, properly qualified and interpreted, then 
the results drawn from the Market Data Approach to land value will provide the most logical, easily 
understood evidence of value. If strict and objective translation of the definition of "Market Value" and 
the meaning of "optimum use" has been made, there can then be little cause for wide value differences 
which sometimes occur. 

The objective of the Market Data Approach to land value is to deduce from data of actual sales and 
current offerings to buy or sell, the amount at which the subject property would sell if it were put on the 
market. The the01y is that by comparing data an exact duplicate of the subject will be found, and thus the 
price that the subject would bring in the market can be correctly estimated. Of course, in actual practice it 
is rare, indeed, to find another property exactly like the subject. 

In order to be properly considered, all market data must be accurate and reliable. The factors of 
motivation should be clearly understood so that the data can be accepted freely, and assumed to be from 
the standpoint of all parties involved. Land sales follow on the next page. 

47 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



COMPARABLE LAND SALE 1 

Parcel ID #: 26-3025-001-0244 

Address: 6301 NW 36TH ST, VIRGINIA GARDENS, FL 33166 

Grantor: LAND 1 LTD 

Grantee: SPACE COAST CREDIT UNION 
25 53 40 1.69 AC M/L FLA FRUIT LAND CO SUB PB 2-17 TR 21 L YG NL Y OF N R/W/L 

Legal Description: 36TH ST EXTN LESS W600FT & LESS E310FT LOT SIZE 65186 SQUARE FEET OR 
20563-4505 0702 1 coc 25571-4048 04 2007 1 

ORB/Page: 28020-3459 
Sale Date: Ol/2012 

Zoning: BU-3 

Land Size: 65,186SF 
Sales Price: $1,300,000 

Price Per SF: $19.94 PSF 

Prior Sales: None in the prior year. 

COMPARABLE# I AERIAL 

48 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



COMPARABLE LAND SALE 2 

Parcel ID #: 01-3123-019-0050 

Address: 1601 NW 37TH ST, MIAMI, FL 33142 

Grantor: LIGHT DONALD F 

Grantee: YURI ORELLANA INC 

Lega l Description: ALLAPATTAH CTR PB 12-74 LOT 4 BLK 1 

ORB/Page: 28633-616 

Sale Date: 05/2013 

Zoning: T6-8-0 Urban Core 
Land Size: 5,047 SF 

Sales Price: $58,000 

Price Per SF: $1 1.49PSF 
Prior Sales: None in the prior year. 

COMPARABLE# 2 AERIAL 

49 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



COMPARABLE LAND SALE 3 

ParceiiD #: 30-3116-009-3950 

Address: 3000 NW 62ND ST, MIAMI , FL 33147 

Grantor: YAP PATRICK J TRUST 

Grantee: 3000 NW 62 STREET INC 

Legal Description: HIALEAH HGTS PB 28-24 LOT 13 LESS N20FT & ALL LOTS 14 THRU 16 BLK 16 LOT 
SIZE 14381 SQ FT COC 23611-2332 06 2005 5 

ORB/Page: 28147-4169 

Sale Date: 06/2012 

Zoning: BU-1 Business 

Land Size: 14,381 SF 

Sales Price: $120,000 

Price Per SF: $8.34 PSF 

Prior Sales: None in the prior year. 

COMPARABLE# 3 AERIAL 

50 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



SALES COMPARISON GRID- LAND VALUATION 

Subject SALE 1 SALE 2 SALE 3 
650 Curtiss 630 1 NW 36 1601 NW 37 3000 NW 62 

Location : Parkway, Miami 
ST, Miami, FL AVE, Miami, FL ST, Miami, FL Springs FL 

Folio# : Pending 
01- 3025-001- 01-3123-019- 30-3116-009-

0244 0050 3950 
Sale Date : N/A 01/2012 05/2013 05/ 2012 

Zoning : P1 BU-3 T6-8-0 BU -1 
Land Size: 10,299SF 65,186 SF 5,047 SF 14,381 SF 

Sales Price: N/A $1,300,000 $58,000 $120,000 
Price/SF: N/A $19.94 $11.49 $8.34 

Financial Adjustments 
Financing 0% 0% 0% 

Conditions of Sale: 0% 0% 0% 
Time of Sale : 0% 0% 0% 

Market Condition : 0% 0% 0% 
Adjusted Price/SF: $19.94 $11.49 $8.34 

Physical Adjustments 
Location : 0% 0% 0% 

Corner Lot: 0% 0% 0% 
Zoning: 0% 0% + 

Land Size: - + 0% 
Net Adj. Vai./SF $19.94 $11.49 $8.34 

Based upon an average of the prices per square foot seen, the market reflects a value estimated at: $11 .00 /SF. 

10,299 SF+!- x $ 11.00 PSF = $113,289 

ESTI MATED V ALUE FOR THE SUBJECT PARCEL AS UN IN PROVED: 

(SAY) O NE H UNDRED F IFTEEN THOUSAND ($11 5,000) DOLLARS 

51 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



COMMENTS ON SALES & ADJUSTMENTS 

Comparable Sale # I is a vacant commercial property located .69 miles SW of the subject. This property 
was chosen for its location and overall similarity to the subject. This property also sold within the similar 
current market conditions, therefore no time adjustment was warranted. 

Comparable Sale #2 is a vacant commercial property located 2.79 miles SE of the subject. This property 
was chosen for its location and overall similarity to the subject. This property also sold within the similar 
current market conditions, therefore no time adjustment was warranted. 

Comparable Sale #3 is a vacant commercial property located 3.02 miles NE of the subject. This property 
was chosen for its location and overall similarity to the subject. This property also sold within the similar 
current market conditions, therefore no time adjustment was warranted. 

Our investigation has also identified listings of simi lar comparable properties. The lowest asking price psf 
for similar listings was about$ I 5.00 psf. Presuming that a final negotiated sale price will be perhaps I 0% 
to 15% lower than the asking price, these listings would seem to verifY that the above price range is 
appropriate. While the present market conditions will not be known for several months when current data 
becomes available, there are some s igns that the real estate market has reached bottom or nearly so. Even 
so, it is believed that the recent market conditions reflected in the above grid are reasonable 

Reconciliation: The comparables are representative of the competitive market place therefore; equal 
reliance was given to the sales in regards to final price per square foot. No time of sale adjustments was 
warranted since the comparables were negotiated in similar current times. The appraiser made a diligent 
effort to secure similar lot sizes. Note, At the time of inspection, there were limited similar recent sales 
within the subject's immediate area. Therefore, the appraiser expanded the search for comparables outside 
of the subject's immediate area. The appraiser studied the neighborhoods and municipalities in the area to 
determine which areas have characteristics or trends similar to the subject's and looked for those areas 
that are subjected to the same influences as the subject. All of the comparable sales utilized were among 
the best available at the time of inspection and are considered good indicators of the subject's current 
estimate of market value. 

52 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



Comparable Map 

. r 25 J 

--.., 

N'W 41st St 

L h/g/1 
Lake 

El P tlADO 
(OUNTKY ( LUU 

Hialeah 
Ga[der)s 

N\'1 >Htll St 

Dora I 

NW 2511 St 

Sweetwater sw Bth st 

W 66th St 

PALM SPRI NGS 

~~ 
APPRAISAL ZONE 

~ 
FLAGLER 

SW 8th St SW 7th St 

(__!__) 

~ 
o. r-... ..,1 r:..,.L,I-,.. SW 22nd St 

North Mian 

Biscayne Park 

lrnl .. 

J 

Do 
lsi 

53 



COST APPROACH TO VALUE, N/A 

The Cost Approach is the process where the value of improved property is estimated on the basis of the 
cost to replace the structures, less applicable depreciation. 

The appraiser must first estimate the cost to replace the structure. All components of the structure are 
taken into account. Then the appraiser must estimate depreciation from all sources, including physical 
deterioration (curable and incurable), structural obsolescence (curable and incurable) and economic 
obsolescence. The sum of the depreciated value is the indicated value of the property via the Cost 
Approach for improvements. 

The following summary outlines the above process: 

REPLACEMENT COST OF ALL IMPROVEMENTS 

LESS DEPRECIATION 
PHYSICAL (CURABLE & INCURABLE) 
FUNCTIONAL OBSOLESCENCE (CURABLE 
& INCURABLE) 
ECONOMIC OBSOLESCENCE 

EQUALS DEPRECIATED VALUE OF IMPROVEMENTS 

PLUS SITE IMPORVEMENTS 
PLUS LAND VALUE 

RESULTS IN: INDICATED VALUE BY COST APPROACH 

APPRAISAL ZONE 
54 



DIRECT SALES COMPARISON APPROACH TO VALUE 

The Direct Sales Comparison, or Market Approach is the most commonly known and employed method of valuing 
Real Estate. The essence on this approach is based upon the principle of substitution i.e. that a prudent purchaser 
will pay a price for a particular piece of property, which is commensurate with the prices currently being paid for 
similar properties in similar locations. Thus, the appraiser assembles sales and offerings of properties containing 
generally similar uses, amenity and aesthetic features as are possessed by the subject property. 

Analysis of the real estate market realizes that there are no two properties exactly alike. An adjustment process 
therefore is required to compensate for differences between comparable date employed by the appraiser and the 
subject property under analysis. Adjusting for tangible differences between two properties, the cost to reproduce the 
various items is used as a guide in making adjustments. Market experience also demonstrates that purchaser tend to 
pay less for purely cosmetic features that contribute little to the utility of property. The price paid for such peripheral 
improvements is usually less than the cost of reproduction therefore; the judgment of the analyst should reflect the 
reaction of typical prudent purchasers. 

Other factors, besides structural detail, which bear upon the value of property, include the time of sale, zoning, terms 
and the circumstances of the sale and location. 

The appraiser analyzes the market data employed in relation to the subject property, and in so doing takes into 
account all items, which contribute to or detract from value. 

The Market Comparison Approach is a technique of finding sales of similar properties and carefully analyzing and 
comparing them by virtue of their differences and major similarities into an indication of value for the appraised 
property. 

The comparable properties were observed for their possibility of similar functional potential utility. Size, area, age 
and condition of improvements were also analyzed and considered. 

Comparable sales chosen were similarly located, similar use/purpose properties all located within the subject's 
competitive market area. 

The validity of this approach is dependent upon the availability, quantity, relevancy and quality of the data. 
Procedurally, the steps in the Direct Sales Comparison Approach are as follows: 

l. Research of the market to obtain infom1ation about transactions, listings and other offerings of properties similar to the 
subject. 

2. Verify the Information by considering whether the data obtained is factually accurate and the transactions reflect arms 
length market considerations. 

3. Detennine relevant units of comparison e.g., price per unit or multiplier, and develop a comparative analysis for each 
unit. The unit of comparison utilized in this analysis is the price per square foot of improvements to the land area. 

4. Compare the subject and the comparable sales according to the elements of comparison and adjust the sales price of 
each comparable as appropriate or eliminate the property from consideration. 

5. Reconcile the value indications that result from the comparable sales into a single value indication. 

In the case of the subject property, sufficient data was available in the area from which a meaningful Sales 
Comparison Approach could be developed. Primary emphasis was place on finding transactions involving propet1ies 
that were similar to the subject in use, location, access, and exposure factors. The sales cited offer a cross section of 
similar investments. Salient factors of the improved sales utilized in our analysis are presented on the following 
pages. 

55 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



INCOME APPROACH TO V ALUE,N/A 

Not applied, however explained. The Income Approach to Value deals with the present worth of future 
benefits. This is measured by the net income, which a fully informed purchaser is warranted in assuming 
the property will produce during its remaining useful life. After comparison with investments of similar 
ty pes and class, this net income is capitalized into a value estimate. Several analyses are necessary before 
a value estimate may be projected. Of prime importance is a careful scrutiny of the potential income 
stream. The appraiser must concern himself with three significant factors that pertain to the subject's 
income. These are the quantity, quality and durability of the income. 

In the first instance, it must be determined whether the actual rent is proper or is similar space currently 
being rented for a higher or lower amount. The prudent purchaser certainly would be dubious of a high 
rent, which had no justification and in the same light he would be apprehensive of a rent well below that 
received for comparable properties. This comparison will lead the appraiser to a final conclusion, which 
enables him to ascribe a proper economic rent to the property under appraisal. 

The quality of the subject's income stream is the second major item of concern to the typical purchaser. 
The more reliable and solvent the tenant, the less the risk involved. This factor has a direct relationship to 
the rate of return, which the investor requires. 

The third element, durability, requires that the appraiser analyze the terms of tenancy involved. He must 
determine how secure the income is . Is it of a short-term nature, or is it secured by a long- term lease? He 
must arrive at whether the income shall retain the characteristics of annuity or will it decline as the 
property and area decline. 

Once a proper economic rent is ascribed to the property under appraisal, careful weight must be given to 
the normal expenses incurred by the owner of similar properties. This requires an extensive market 
analysis and the execution of sound judgment on the part of the appraiser. Subtracting proper expense 
items from the Gross Income estimate results in a Net Income, which the property can be expected to 
produce. 

This net income may then be capitalized into a value estimate by applying a capitalization rate, which 
expresses the normal return requirements of the typical prudent buyer. This rate or factor is directly 
related to the quality and durability of the income stream. 

Briefly, it varies up or down based on the tenant's responsibility and the length of time during which the 
income flow is considered reasonably certain. The above analytical process has been applied to the 
subject property with the following resulting market comparisons, analyses and conclusion. 

The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, published by the Appraisal Institute, third edition defines the 
income approach as follows: "A set of procedures through which an appraiser derives a value indication 
for an income-producing property by converting its anticipated benefits (cash flows and reversion) into a 
property value. This conversion can be accomplished in two ways. 

~~ 
APPRAISAL ZONE 

56 



INCOME APPROACH TO VALUE (Continued) 

One year's income expectancy can be capitalized at market-derived capitalization rate or at a 
capitalization rate, which reflects a specified income pattern, return on investment and change in the value 
of the investment. Alternatively, the annual cash flows for the holding period can be discounted at a 
specified yield rate. 

The subject, at present is designed for single tenant occupancy, as of the date of valuation. The prope1ty is 
unknown to be tenant or owner occupied at this time. The value estimate is based on the capitalization of 
a stabilized Net Operating Income as estimated for the improvements. 

The approach in each section is comprised of four steps: 

I. Estimate the gross potential income that can be expected based on market rent levels. 

2. Estimate the vacancy and expense deduction that can be expected. 

3. Derive a stabilized net operating income estimate. 

4. Capitalize the net operating income into a value indication. 

The final estimates of income and expenses represent stabilized estimates that are based on mature or 
stabilized operations of the subject over reasonable periods of anticipated ownership. Stabilized income 
and expense figures are used for the following reasons: 

• The property is expected to have experienced management, whereby eamings will be stabilized. 

• A short - term projection of income tends to be more accurate, due to the greater degree of uncertainty 
typically involved with longer-term projections. 

• Projection of income over a short term will produce the same total value as a longer projection, regardless 
of capitalization technique provided the assumptions involve the same income stream, the same rate of 
change in property value and the same rate of interest. Stated differently, any loss in value due to the 
shorter income stream will be offset by a gain in the present value of the reversion. 

• Under normal circumstances, net cash flow fluctuates, irregularly, up and down, from year to year. A 
reasonable reliable (stabilized) net income over a short projection period can be termed as a level annuity. 
To stabilize income, when the projection is presumed to cover the total useful life of a structure is virtually 
impossible. 

Two methods of capitalization are available to the appraiser in the analysis of income producing property; 
direct and yield capitalization. Direct capitalization is used to convert an estimate of a single year's 
income expectancy into an indication of value in one direct step. 

Yield capitalization, on the other hand, uses the discounting procedure to convert specified annual income 
and future reversionary benefits to a present value on the premise of a required rate of return. 

Direct capitalization assumes no allocation between the return on and of capital invested. Due to the 
proposed single tenant viabi lity of leasing this one unit, we have relied on the direct capitalization of 
income as the preferred method. The income approach, along with supporting documentation, is 
developed and explained on the following pages for the 'as proposed' valuation. 

57 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



PARAMETERS OF VALUE CONCLUSION 

An appraisal of real estate is an opinion of value cer1ified by an individual representing himself to be an 
expert. 

Due to the many influences that affect supply and demand and the imperfections that exist in the market, 
the appraisal of real estate remains an inexact science. 

The appraiser's cl ient must recognize that at any given moment in time before or after the effective date 
of value, the property value may be different from what the appraiser has estimated. Real estate 
investment has a high degree of risk and performance and success is dependent upon management, market 
liquidity, and all sorts of outside influences. Remember that if for any reason subsequent events (after the 
effective date) worldwide, nationa l, regional, and local or neighborhood occur, the value of the property 
wi ll change. 

The developer, the lender, and subsequent property owners must each analyze and measure the risk as 
they see it, at any moment in time. The appraisal, therefore, is a judgment tool offering only a supported 
opinion of the present worth of anticipated benefits subject to the investment risks, measured mainly by 
such market data as are available at the effective date of appraisal. 

The appraiser's client must further recognize that the market data, which are present in this report, are 
past sales that took place in a market place where tax shelter rules may have been substantially different 
from future rules and those probable changes could render conclusions of a comparable sales study 
invalid. 

In conclusion, however, while an appraisal cannot be guaranteed or absolutely proven, if the opinion of 
value, as expressed and demonstrated, is not influenced by sentiment, sympathy, bias, personal interest, or 
lack of understanding, and is, in fact, a sincere effor1 by a competent impar1ial valuator, then the 
conclusions so developed may properly be considered as a basis of negotiation between owner and 
prospective purchaser, or between lender and bon·ower or between condemner and condemned. 

The Direct Sales Comparison approach to value have been pursued with only the Direct Sales 
Comparison Approach given most weight in regards to the final opinion of market value. The detailed 
analysis of all the pertinent facts and data which were considered to influence the value of the subject 
property have led to following value estimates: 

COST APPROACH 
INCOME APPROACH 

SALES APPROACH 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

$ NIA 
$ N/A 
$ 11 5,000 

58 



RECONCILIATION AND CONCLUSION OF VALUE 

It can be observed that all approaches to value indicate that the property appraised is worth as was 
indicated above. Some approaches worked in conjunction with others. 

It is appropriate first to recapitulate the procedures and conclusion of each of the approaches, and then 
reconcile them into final estimate of market value for the subject property. 

The Direct Sales Comparison Approach identifies and measures the market reaction of typical buyers and 
sellers of similar and/or competitive properties. 

This approach reflects the buyers' judgments about adverse economic influences, which when analyzed 
with adequate sales data left a natTow margin of error in estimating the market value of the subject 
property. 

Since no two properties are exactly alike, adjustments for differences are typically necessary. As the 
magnitude of the adjustments increases the reliability ofthis approach tends to diminish. 

All comparable sales were considered similar to the subject in use & marketability attributes. The 
prospects for error in this approach have been reduced to a minimum. 

The Direct Capitalization Approach was not considered. The overall capitalization was not developed. 
The quantity and quality ofthe available data were considered to be very appropriate. 

Conclusion: 

All the sales indicate that the value estimate reflected by one approach can be considered reliable. The 
estimate from the Direct Sales Comparison Approach provides most accurate approach. 

The market value of the subject pro petty, as defined herein, as of the date of the exterior inspection which 
was completed on November 25, 20 13 is estimated to be: 

ONE H UNDRED FIFTEEN THOUSAND ($115,000) DOLLARS 

59 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



QUALIFICATIONS OF THE APPRAISER 

Jorge Luis Canellas 

LICENSES 

State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser No. RZ 3065 
Real Estate Broker, State of Florida 

APPRAISAL & REAL ESTATE EXPERIENCE 

• May 2005 to Present: Appraisal Zone Corp.- Owner 
• May 2005 to Present: Canellas Realty Group - Owner 
• January 2001 to May 2005: MAC Appraisal Corp, Miami, F lorida - Owner 
• January 1999-200 I: Residential Appraisers, Miami, Florida- Review Appraiser 

Types of Appraisal Assignments 
• Commercial 
• Single Family Residence 
• Condominium 
• Multi-Family(l-4 Units) 
• Vacant Land 
• FHA Financed Properties 
• REO Properties 

SPECIALIZED E DUCATION 

• Real Estate Sales Person : 1996 
• Sales Performance Systems : 1996 
• Real Estate M01tgage : 200 I 
• Real Estate Sales Person Continued Education : 1998 
• Real Estate Sales Person Continued Education : 2000 
• Real Estate Sales Person Continued Education : 2002 
• Course 520 Highest and Best Use and Market Analysi s :2000 
• Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice : 200 I :2004:2007:2010 
• Investment Analysis for Appraisers:2004 
• Valuation Analysis for Home Mortgage Insurance :2004 
• Residential Appraiser (AB-2) 200 I 
• Residential Appraiser (AB2-B)2001 
• Home Inspector : 2003 :20 I 0 
• Appraisal Board III: 2007 
• Marshall & Swift trained Appraiser:2006 
• Techniques of Income Property 2006 

MEMBERSHIP IN PROFFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS 

• The foundation ofReal Estate Appraisers 
• The Realtor Association of Miami 
• Residential Associate of the Appraisal Institute 
• E & 0 Insurance up to $1 ,000,000.00 

APPRAISAL ZONE 
60 



APPRAISER'S LICENSE 

1 AC#6b18 53 
'U11mans«fii:Fij.i*"·i +.JrF•Jn~ meosM'i?N\i%0tJfQUU'Ma"!'"'"'h3i 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

DBPA~~£NT OP DU91~8SS AND PROP~6S IONAL REGULATl ON 
FWIUJ).\ ll.IIIL UTIITII Ml'FAI~AL DO SEOi LU l Olln181 

CANE[ol..A S, JORGE LUl S 
~~~t NW 871'11 COtrnT Pl. B otS I . 

l! tCK 3COTr 
OOVI!!\NO!t 

APPRAISAL ZONE 

KEN LAWSON 
SECRlilrARY 

61 



EXPLANA TIO ' OF T ERMINOLOGY 

AN APPRAISAL is an indication of Market Value result ing from an analysis and evaluation of a ll 
avai lable data found to relate to the appraised property directly or indirectly, with attention directed to 
those influences found to affect the property's use or appeal to persons who might constitute the market 
for the appraised property. 

REAL ESTATE is the land and that which is permanently attached thereto by man or nature and would, 
in a normal arm's length transaction, be exchanged with the land without specification or separate and 
individual evaluation. 

BUNDLE OF RIGHTS IS THE LEGALLY ENFORCEABLE rights of Ownership in real estate. 

A MARKET exists when a choice of properties are offered for sale which are able to satisfy the needs of 
a number of willing buyers who are free of pressure and financially able to pay as much for a property as 
the benefits resulting from its use would appear to justify. 

MARKET VALUE is defined as the most probable price, in terms of money, which a property should 
bring in a competitive and open market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, with the buyer and 
seller each acting prudently and knowledgeably and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus. 

Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and passing of title from 
seller to buyer under conditions whereby: 

I . Buyer and seller are typically motivated. 

2. Both parties are well infonned or well advised, and each acting in what he considers his own best interest. 

3. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market. 

4. Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements comparable thereto; and the 
price represents the normal consideration for the property sold w1affected by special or creative financing of sales 
concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale. 

ASSESSED VALUE is the amount assigned to taxable property by an assessor. 

APPROACH TO VALUE is one method or technique of appraising. 

VACANT LAND, RAW LAND OR BARE LAND is land without improvement by man or by nature 
(such as timber). 

HIGHEST AND BEST USE is the use to which the appraiser' s research indicated the property can 
legally be put in the reasonably near future, which will most likely produce the greatest return over a 
period of time. It is applied to vacant land as well as to fully improved real estate. 

• A. Highest and Best Use of Vacant land results when it is improved in a manner which may reasonably be 
expected to produce the greatest net return to the land over a g iven period of time. 

• B. Highest and Best Use of Improved property is that use made by existing physical improvements, altered 
or remodeled, as indicated, which will produce the greatest net return on the required investment over a 
g iven period oftime. 

MARKET INTEREST RATE is that rate of return on capital invested by prudent buyers in a given type 
of Real Property at a specified time and place. 

62 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



CAPITAL RECAPTURE RATE is that rate which will return to the investor that portion of a real 
property's cost represented by its improvements during their anticipated future economic life. 

CAPITALIZA T!ON RATE is the sum of market Interest Rate and Capital Recapture Rate, which prudent 
investors are expecting, and receiving, from competitive properties. 

SELL- OUT VALUE is the anticipated amount of the total of the selling prices of all individual units in a 
property. It is based on market-oriented surveys and feasibility studies including sales of comparable 
properties. 

PROBABLE SELLING PRICE is that at which a property would most probably sell if exposed to the 
market for a reasonable time, under market conditions prevailing as of the date of the appraisal. 

LEASE is a written document by which the rights of use and occupancy of land and/or structures are 
transferred by the owner another person of entity for a specified period of time in return for a specified 
rental. 

63 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



SUBJECT PHOTOS 

64 
APPRAISAL ZONE 



65 



Street 

66 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5010 
Fax: (305) 805-5040 

Ron Garland, City Manag r 

November 7, 2013 

SUBJECT: Consideration of request by Springs On The Green LLC, principals 
Mr./Ms. Manuel Perez-Vichot, to purchase a very small parcel of City property 
adjacent to 627 Eldron Drive in the amount of one hundred five thousand 
dollars ($105,000). 

Recommendation: 

Consideration be given to proposed purchase by Springs On The Green, LLC 
(Attach. "A") in the amount of the appraised value of $105,000 (Attach. "B"). 

Discussion : 

Council needs to discuss and determine the following : 
1. Is Council satisfied with the purchase price? 
2. If not, does Council want an independent appraisal secured? 
3. Upon agreement of a purchase price the buyer must submit an 

appropriate contract for purchase 
4. Upon conditional agreement of contract for purchase, purchaser must 

submit and secure M-DC approval of referendum dates 
5. Upon securing an approved date for a referendum from M-DC, City will 

prepare an appropriate resolution for Council consideration and submit 
contract for sale for conditional -authorization for execution 

The property in question is a very small parcel of property which is part of golf 
course and currently under lease by the owners of 627 Eldron Drive and is 
currently. being used as a supplemental parking lot. The City is in favor of this 
transaction because it is virtually a useless piece part by the golf course that 
costs the City to maintain (same reason for the City currently leasing it to the 
adjacent property owners). 



November 6, 2013 

City of Miami Springs 
Mr. Ron Garland 
City Manager 
201 Westward Dr. 
Miami Springs, Fl 33166 

Dear Mr. Garland, 

SPRINGS ON THE GREEN, LLC 
627 ELDRON DRIVE, SUITE #1 01 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 33166 

TEL. 305·87 f ·1648 
FAX. 305-871·1734 

Attachanent 11A, 

Pursuant to the City's Instructions at the September 9, 2013 Council Meeting, we are pleased to present 
the requested appraisal for the subject property adjacent to 627 Eldron Dr. 

Please consider this letter as our offer to purchase the subject property at the appraised value of ONE 
HUNDRED AND FIVE THOUSAND DOlLARS{$ 105,000.00). We acknowledge that for this transaction to 
be finalized the resolutions stipulated In the minutes of the meeting of September gth must be satisfied. 

Since we have learned that possibly the second November Council Meeting may · be canceled, we 
appreciate that this matter be discussed at next Tuesday's Council Meeting. 

Please call me If you have any questions. 

Manny 

Manuel Perez-VIchot 
Springs on the Green, LLC 



A RESTRICTED USE APPRAISAL REPORT 
OF 

VACANT COMMERCIAL LAND 
LOCATED AT 

650 CURTISS PARKWAY(SW PORTION OF TRACT "B") 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166 

Appraisal No. 10-13-444 

FOR 

Springs ofthe Green, LLC 
c/o Mr. Manuel Perez-Vichot 

1056 Hunting Lodge Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 

BY 

APPRAISALFIRST 
REAL ESTATE APPRAISERS LLC 

1444 Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 211 
Miami, Florida 33132 

llttachanent "B" 



AppraisalFirst 

L__ __ ____J Real Estate Appraisers LLC 

1444 Biscayne Boulevard, Suite 211 
Miaml, Florida 33 I 32 
Phone: 305-470-2100 
Fax: 305-381-8047 

E-mail: ~@appraisalfirst.net 

Springs of the Green, LLC 
c/o Mr. Manuel Perez-Vichot 
1056 Hunting Lodge Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 

November 4, 2013 

Re: A 10,299.12 square foot parcel ofvacant land located at 650 Curtiss Parkway(SW Portion 
ofTract "B"), Miami Springs, Florida 33166. 

Dear Mr. Perez-Vichot: 

As requested, we have prepared this restricted use appraisal report in order to estimate the market 
value of the above referenced property, in fee simple interest, as of the last date of inspection or 
October 23, 2013. This is a Restricted Use Appraisal Report which is intended to comply with 
reporting requirements set forth under Standards Rule 2-2© of the Uniform Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice for a Restricted Use Appraisal Report. As such, it presents no 
discussions of data, reasoning, and analyses that were used in the appraisal process to develop the 
appraiser's opinion of value. Supporting documentation concerning the data, reasoning, and analysis 
is retained in the appraiser's file. The depth of discussion contained in this report is specific to the 
needs of the client and for the intended use stated below. The appraisers are not responsible for 
unauthorized use of this report. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Frank Hornstein, MAl 
State Certified General Real Estate 
Appraiser No. RZ 1376 

Jorge E. Santin 
State Certified General Real Estate 

Appraiser No. RZ 3274 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Executive Summary and Conclusions 
Purpose of the Appraisal 
Intended User of the Appraisal 
Location of Subject Property 
Legal Description 
Plat Map 
Owner of Record 
Subjects Sales History 
Property Rights Appraised 
Definition of Market Value 
Aerial Photograph 
Site Description 
Assessed Value and Tax Bill Information 
Scope ofWork 
Neighborhood Description 
Neighborhood Map 
Zoning 
Highest and Best Use 
Sales Comparison Approach to Value 
Land Sales Map 
Reconciliation and Final Market Value Conclusion 
Personal Property 
Marketing/Exposure Time 
Certification 
Assumptions and Limiting Conditions 

Addendum 

Subject Property Photographs 
Property Tax Card 
Tax Bi11 
Aerial Map 
Flood Map 
Property Survey 
Zoning Description 
Engagement Letter 
Qualifications of the Appraisers 

1 
2 
2 
3 
3 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 
10 
14 
15 
15 
17 
21 
22 
22 
23 
25 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS 

Property Type: 

Location: 

Date of Value: 

Date ofReport: 

Report Type: 

Property Rights Appraised: 

Land Description: 

Site Size: 

Zoning: 

Flood Zone: 

Folio Number: 

Census Tract: 

Valuation Parameters: 

Highest and Best Use: 

Marketing/Exposure Time: 

Cost Approach 

Sales Comparison Approach 

Income Capitalization Approach 

Final Market Value 

Vacant Land 

650 Curtiss Parkway 
Miami Springs, Florida 33166 

October 23, 2013 

November 4, 2013 

Restricted Use 

Fee Simple Interest 

10,299 square foot 

Airport, Marine and Highway Business District 
(AMHBP) Sub-District-Airport Golf, 

X (See Addenda) 

05-3119-000-0050 

47.02 (See Addenda) 

The highest and best use of the subject property is to 
land bank the site until development in accordance 
.with current zoning district is once again a financially 
feasible option for subject to be assembled with other 
lands for development. 

Within 12 months 

Market Value 

Not Applicable 

$105,000 

Not Applicable 

$105,000 



PURPOSE OF THE APPRAISAL 

The purpose of the report was to determine the market value of the subject property, in fee simple 
interest, as of the last date of inspection or October 23, 2013. 

INTENDED USE OF THE APPRAISAL 

The appraisal report is for the sole use of Springs of the Green, LLC, the client and intended user, 
for asset valuation purposes. "Readdressing an appraisal report to another party that was completed 
and delivered to a client is prohibited by USP AP. Once the assignment is completed, jt is misleading 
to try to add a new party as client or intended user who was not the original client or identified 
intended user." Any requests for updating or re-certification would constitute a new assignment and 
a potential additional fee. 

INTENDED USER OF APPRAISAL 

The intended user of this report is Springs of the Green, LLC. 

LOCATION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY 

The subject property is located in the southwest corner portion of tract "B"of the "Miami Springs 
Country Club Golf Course", just east of Eldron Drive lying within the City of Miami Springs, 
Florida. 

The property address is as follows: 

650 Curtiss Parkway(SW portion ofTract "B" that abuts the adjacent property on 627 Eldron Drive) 
Miami Springs, Florida 33166 

Source: www.miamidade.gov 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

A Portion of Tract B, Block 140 of".REVISED PLAT OF SEC 2, COUNTRY CLUB ESTATES" 
, according to the Plat thereof as recorded in Plat Book 34, Page 40, of the public records of Miami 
Dade County, Florida: Commence at the Southwest comer of said tract·"B", thence North along the 
west line of said tract"B" A distance of256.1 0 fee; Thence N 77 .08'52"E A distance of95.00 Feet; 
Thence 40.01 '26''E, A distance of79.77 Feet to a point on curve concave to the Northeasterly having 
radios of 400.78 Feet; Thence Northwesterly along said curve a distance of266.92 Feet, and through 
a central angle of38.09'3811,To the intersection of the west of said tract "B"; Thence 889.051 1 411E 
for a distance of 66.63 Feet to a point; Thence S 00.49'51 11W for a distance of75.44 Feet to a point; 
Thence S33.063611E for a distance of155.10 feet to a point'; thence S39.5 1' 3911W for a distance of 
23.5 1 Feet to the point of the beginning and contains 10299.12 Square feet or 0.23644 acres 

Source: www.miamidade.gov & Special Warranty Deed (17843/4410) 

The subject's plat map is shown on the following page. 

1 



PLAT MAP 

OWNER OF RECORD 

The owner of record as per Miami Dade County Public Records is: 

City of Miami Springs 
201 Westward Drive 
City of Miami Springs, FL 33166 

Source: www.miamidade.gov 

2 



SUBJECT'S SALES HISTORY 

The subject property was acquired by the city of Miami Springs from the city of Miami on October 
23, 1997. 

PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED 

The client has requested that the property rights appraised be the fee simple estate. Fee Simple 
Estate is defmed as follows: (The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th Edition, Appraisal 
Institute 201 0): 

Fee Simple Estate: Absolute ownership subject on1y to limitations imposed by the State; also called 
a freehold. 

The subject is encumbered by a license agreement with the adjacent property owner to utilize land 
as part of property's parking area. The license agreement has slightly less than two and half years 
remaining, but the agreement could be canceled with a two month notice to property owners. 
Therefore, the subject property is being appraised as a fee simple estate. 

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE 

According to the agencies that regulate federal fmancial institutions in the United States of Amedca 
(FIRREA), Market Value is defined as "the most probable selling price in terms of money which a 
property should bring in a competitive and open market under all conditions requisite to be fair sale, 
the buyer and seller, each acting prudently, knowledgeably, and assuming the price is not affected 
by undue stimulus". 

Implicit in this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title 
from seller to buyer under conditions whereby: 

1. Buyer and seller are typically motivated; 
2. Both parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he considers 

his own best interest; 
3. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market; 
4. Payment is made in cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements 

comparable thereto; and 
5. The price represents a normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by 

special fmancing or creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone 
associated with the sale. 

Source: Department of the Treasury, Office of Comptroller of the Currency, Board of Governors of 
the Federal Reserve System, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, Office of Thrift Supervision 
and National Credit Union Administration under 12CFR Part 34, Real Estate Appraisals and Title 
XI of the Financial Institutions, Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 ("FIRREA"), and 
the Interagency Appraisal and Evaluation Guidelines, Federal Register, Volume 75, No. 237, 
December 10,2010. 

3 



AERIAL PHOTOGRAPH 

4 



SITE DESCRIPTION 

Site Size: 

Shape: 

Soil & Environmental Conditions: 

Utilities: 

Police & Fire Rescue: 

Access: 

Concurrency: 

Easements Or License Agreement 

Flood Zone: 

10,299 square foot or .23644 acres (Public 
Records) 

Irregular (See Plat Map) 

No adverse conditions are presume to be on 
the subject's land. See assumptions and 
limiting conditions. 

FPL 

City of Miami Spdngs 

Municipal Golf Course 

The subject property is in the ''Miami Springs 
Country Club Golf Course". Thus concurrency 
is not an issue. 

The subject property is currently utilized by 
adjacent subject owner as part of existing 
parking area via a license agreement issued by 
city of Miami Springs for use on March 26, 
2012.The tenn of the lease continues until 
March 31, 2016 

X, Community 0653, Map Number 
12086C0291L, Effective Date September 11, 
2009. (See Addenda for designation). 

5 



ASSESSED VALUE AND TAX BILL INFORMATION 

The following information was obtained via the Miami Dade County Property Appraiser's Website 
(www.miamidade/gov). 

~R"~~r:-~~·n·r.~· ~:it"'-~ .. !{! "·~(r~:rn ·w·, .,._.= ~~i"~'l ·~~f;ffi''~'""ffiflf~!I."T .. -... ~;-,; ':f ··. ""''1'~!;"'' -·.·· r '" . f"'·'"'~1 
/ :::;i1~~t .. : t( ~<:t 1 :··~%U\~ ;~f~~; ~~~~i.:?f~ n~·~~~~k-~£~~!.1~~-~:~~ ~f:t.~\ttti ~ i:o~-~'f!~M ~fft:-~fi1fat~~~~r::, .!J J,r,~·"' ~~··.'·\" t ) .1. (',,, :'i: ~ :., .t:~.\ J~·l :~-~~~~ .~. • ... ~ .. .: • V..L .._w.J~ .J r ·~.t .. ,..,. • ' ~ ~bll'l....h "-~~~- IJ ~ &-• "' ~ot< • if.'t ~ 

Year 2013 2012 

Folio Number 05-3119-000-0050 05-3119-000-0050 

Building Assessment $888,579 $864,537 

Building Size (SF) 27,319 27,319 

Building AssessmenUSF $32.53 $31.65 

Land Assessment $1,276,086 $1,276,086 

Land Size (SF) 7,940,552 7,940,552 

Land Assessment/SF $0.16 $0.1 6 

Total Assessment $2,164,665 $2,140,623 

Tax Assessment Value Per SF of Land $0.27 $0.27 

Millage Rate $24 .5778/$1,000 $24.5778/$1 ,000 

Taxes $0.00 $0.00 

Taxes/SF (Bid) $0.00 $0.00 

The subject is a portion of the a municipal golf course and is exempt from municipal and state taxes. 

6 



SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of work includes providing the client with an estimate of the market value of the subject 
property. The identified intended user is Springs on the Green, LLC., is restricted to the use stated 
herein. This report was prepared in accordance with Standard 2-2 (c) ofUSPAP as it pertains to a 
Restricted Use Appraisal Report. The results of this report are subject to the attached assumptions 
and limiting conditions. This report is not subject to any hypothetical condition or extraordinary 
assumptions. 

The property rights appraised will be the fee simple interest. The conclusion of market value is 
premised upon the definition stated herein. The appraisers completed an inspection of the subject 
property on October 23, 2013. 

The subject property represents vacant land. As such, only the Sales Comparison Approach, the 
most appropriate method of valuation for vacant land properties, will be performed. 

The comparable sales were extracted from local market sources and participants. The sales were 
provided via Co-Star Comps, Loopnet and MLS. The market data was extracted from discussions 
with market participants including but not limited to property owners, brokers, recent investor 
surveys, and property managers. 

7 



NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION 

According to The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th Edition, Appraisal Institute 2010, a 
neighborhood is defined as: "a group of complementary land uses; a congruous grouping of 
inhabitants, buildings, or business enterprises." 

The subject property is located in an area north of the Miami International Airport within the 
incorporated city of Miami Springs on the southwest portion of tract "B" on the municipal golf 
course. The areas to the immediate north of the airport encompasses both the village of Virginia 
Gardens, a .6 square mile predominantly residential area and the city ofMiarni Springs, a 4 .25 square 
mile predominantly residential area. The neighborhood boundaries are as follows: 

North Okeechobee Road (US-27) 
South NW 36 Street (Miami International Airport) 
East NW 42 Avenue (LeJeune Road) 
West FEC Railway Track (approximately NW 69 Avenue) 

Boundaries/ Access: The above boundaries encompass the entire City ofMiami Springs and Village 
ofVirginia Gardens. The City ofMiami Springs is primarily made up of single-family homes. Miami 
Springs is a small triangular community bounded on two sides by canals and to the south by l\TW 36 
Street. 

The Village ofVirginia Gardens is a small city sandwiched between Miami Springs to the immediate 
north and east, City ofDoral to the west and the Miami International Airport to the south. The city 
is bounded by Curtiss Parkway (NW 57 Avenue) to the east, NW 67 Avenue to the west, Hunting 
Lodge Drive to the north and NW 36 Street to the south. 

The major roadways in the neighborhood include Okeechobee Road, LeJeune Road (NW 42 
A venue) and NW 36 Street. These roadways are lined with various commercial uses. 

NW 36 Street is the main thoroughfare through the southern boundary of Virginia Gardens and 
Miami Springs. This six lane roadway links the Palmetto Expressway (SR 826) at about NW 77 
Avenue to SR-112 at about NW 42 Avenue. SR-112 provides access to the I-95 in the eastern 
portion of the county about 5 miles east of the neighborhood. 

Okeechobee Road (US-27) is located along the northern side of the neighborhood. This roadway acts 
as a east/west transportation artery that links the Palmetto Expressway and NW 42 Avenue. This 
six lane roadway continues westward and ultimately provides access throughout-the center of the 
state. 

Le Juene Road (NW 42 Avenue) is a six lane road way that extends north to Opa Locka and and 
southward to South Dixie Highway (US-1) in Coral Gables. The roadway links Miami International 
Airport to various municipalities in the county including Hialeah to the north and Coral Gables to 
the south. 

8 



NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION (Continued) 

Boundaries/Access: (Continued) 

The following are the distance and directions to nearby transportation and employment centers. 

Downtown Miami: 
Miami International Airport: 
Port of Miami: 
Ft Lauderdale: 

6 miles east 
1 mile south 
7 miles east 
19 miles northeast 

Neighborhood Demographics and Statistics: The immediate area of the subject neighborhood's 
demographic data, per the FFIEC Census Report is as follows. 

Year 

MSA 

Census Tract 

State 

County 

Population 

Income Level 

Median Family Income 

Total Housing Units 

l to 4 Family Units 

Owner Occupied Units 

Renter Occupied Units 

Median Age ofHousing Stock (Years) 

2012 

5000 

47.03 

12 (FL) 

086 (Miami-Dade) 

4,855 

Upper 

$64,761 

1,897 

1,046 

694 

1,014 

53 

9 



NEIGHBORHOOD MAP 

10 



NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION (Continued) 

Land Uses: 

The neighborhood land uses generally service the MIA. The land uses include: a mix of aviation 
related office and service uses; industrial cargo and/or shipping facilities; offices; retail; and hotels. 
The following is a brief discussion of each of the neighborhood uses. 

Office Market 

The office uses in the MIA neighborhood are classified by CBRE as Airport West. The local office 
market has strengthened over the past year with slightly lower vacancy rates and positive absorption. 
Little new construction has occurred, but 80,000 square feet in Dora! Park is underway. The 
following table illustrates the office market statistics for the neighborhood. 

r~:.~;:;t,·Y·~t:-'fr,.;•.:-l ,vil;.;:-·~-,~~.f~'tt""'::'L:W'Jj'."'t~·;.J:.~"'"~ ·~··:yT· . ·;~ ,. i : •··:: .;·.• ,, -._.~~ ~·-• , .. ·""?.j 
<\-~~JIM1(M~:t.<A,~···"-}'.·,Ip;;,.5;1·~}'r~l :I:[J ·~~~ >l.J"r\••:~:\''· 'lV-8' .,'N·:· L f; I,·. : "> ·~: ~-f:,r~·,~ 
~~ U . .: .;.'J! ~~\!~ ~ o-; '.~.:11:~fi~ll ... :'J~.i l,; .. ,,:..J .. l_ 1·'f.:!.' '~"" • •. '·.'ttl~-~ .:,.:1 'l'.'.t "'-o~- .. -.:..-''\,• ... _.:l~,t~~:~ 

Market Building A vallablllty Vacancy Annual Net Under Avg Asking 
SF Rateo/o Rate Absorption Constr Lease Rate IG 

Airport West 9,869,759 17.4% 18.6% 86,945 80,000 $25.31 

Source: CB Richard Ellis Miami Office Marketview, 2"" Quarter 2013. 

The highest concentration of office space is located in the Waterford Office Park in the Blue Lagoon 
Center immediately south of the airport and SR 836. This 250 acre park includes corporate office 
buildings and hotels surrounding a lake. The park contains about 2 million square feet of class A 
office space. The park is home to Fed.Ex, Avaya, Caterpillar, Hewlett-Packard; Procter & Gamble, 
etc. 

Industrial Market 

MIA is located within one of the premier industrial sub-markets in the County and South Florida 
region. The Airport/Dorallocation has exhibited declining vacancy rates and increasing rental rates 
over the past year. This market sector has appeared to fully recover from the recessionary conditions 
that plagued the economy in 2009/2010. The following table illustrates the industrial market 
statistics. 

------------------- ---~-------· . - -::" ·1 ',>·!! .. /' ·.· ... :·· -!j~~ . !-:.-:\· r· ;'l f\, ·~-'6~ .. ;.:-..~~ : .. ':.(·•:i\-..~ ; .. -T~i,:-~'J ~··;· .... ;.~~~t~~~-::~q·:-,.·.Y'·.:·r/.r~;: ,·· .. ,· I··(' . ·. · ., . ,.·: ··•·\·.·.· .. ·h)t)) ..... ! •. ,f.'>~•r~:·' •. ,~,~ H ···~·J.\.t.,, .. -·· ...... ,· ... ~ ,j ,,_:"i., . . "t. · ,•',' ~.·. .:· ' •• ).~ ... '..--' '. : ,.·.,J· 1'\: .• k'1 'l.!., 1 .. ~ • .:. ;:-•. 1 .~ .,·) ' ·· ~·. \ .• • ·,}vJ:14.•', .. .. 

Market Building Availability Vacancy Annu11l Net Under Avg Asking 
SF Rate% Rate Absorption Constr Lease Rate IG 

Airport/ Dural 55,338,616 7.0% 11.0% 128,845 225,364 $9.45 

Source: CB Richard Ellis Miami Industrial Market Overview, I" Quarter 201 3. 

11 



NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION (Continued) 

Land Uses: (Continued) 

Hotel Market: 

After several years of stagnation the Airport Hotel market has once again entered into a new phase 
of expansion. Increasing demand coupled with the loss of rooms, due to airport construction 
projects, such as the Intermodal facility, have made it viable to construct new hotels. Currently the 
Airport Hotel market consists of 43 hotels with 7,555 rooms. The sub-market indicated the 
following hotel market statistics over the past few years. 

iami-Dadc County Hotel Market Statistics 

Airport/Civic Center 

2012 84.10% 
2011 82.10% 
2010 78.60% 
2009 69.80% 
2008 78.10% 
2007 79.80% 
2006 76.80% 

verage Daily Rate 
2012 $99.37 
2011 $98.67 
2010 $94.44 
2009 $95.36 
2008 $113.75 
2007 $115.25 
2006 $98.95 

evPAR 
2012 $83.57 
2011 $81.01 
2010 $74.22 
2009 $66.56 
2008 $88.84 
2007 $91.97 
2006 $75.99 

Source: Smith Travel Research. 

The occupancy rate, ADR and RevPAR for tlus sub-market as of May 2013 was 1.4%, 7.8% and 
9.2% ahead of20 12 respectively. The year to date occupancy rate and ADR were 88.1% and $119.93 
respectively. 

12 



NEIGHBORHOOD DESCRIPTION (Continued) 

Land Uses: (Continued) 

Hotel Market: (Continued) 

The new supply within in this sub-market is listed as follows: 

Hotel Location No. Room Planned Completion 

Cambria Suites 6700 NW 7th Street 122 10/2013 

EB Hotel Miami 4299 NW 36th Street 133 06/2013 

Holiday Inn Express 2601 LeJeune Road 102 2014 

Hyatt Place MIA 3549 LeJeune Road 135 10/2014 

Total 492 

The MIA hotel market is poised to show siginificant gains in room demand and Rev PAR over the 
next year. The new hotels set to enter the market include a mix of midscale and lower scale 
economy hotels. A complete Hotel Market Analysis is located later in this appraisal report. 

Coclusion 

The immediate neighborhood south of subject site has experienced a large amount of growth in the 
hotel, office and industrial sectors over the past decade. The demand for for this market can be 
attributed to the close proximity of the Miami International Airport and excellent network of 
expressways. Future growth is constrained due to a lack of available land. The neighborhood is 
currently 97% developed. 

Overall, the various land uses in the neighborhood remain strong with signs of stabilization occuring 
in both the industrial and hotel markets. The office market will continue to lag behind until excess 
available supply is absorbed. 

The subject property is surrounded by hotels, motels, multifamily and commercial uses. Other than 
static economic conditions, there are no other neighborhood factors that would negatively affect the 
marketability of the subject property,as a potential assembledge for redevelopment other than 
subject's lack of utility. 

13 



ZONING 

The subject property is located in the Airport, Marine and Highway Business District (AMHBD), 
by the City of Miami Springs, Florida. The intent of this district is to promote large-scale 
commercial uses. The district is divided into three smaller districts due to the diverse nature and 
location of each sub-district. The sub-district include: Airport Golf; NW 36lh Street; and Abraham 
Tract Districts. 

The subject property is located in the Airport Golf sub-district. The area comprising this district is 
located north of NW 36th Street on Eldron Drive on the City of Miami Springs golf course. This 
district is intended to encourage large-scale development of a wide range of compatible and 
complimentary uses, along with appropriately approved industrial and adult uses, such as, to-wit: 

1) Office and commercial businesses, 
2) Restaurants, 
3) Hotels, 
4) Retail service operations, 
5) Residential development in accordance with the City Charter, 
6) Mixed-use projects, 
7) Adult-related business activity or use, 
8) Industrial enterprises which are in conformity with the restrictions and limitations for such 

businesses to be provided in the District Boundary Regulations, 
9) Other enterprises not inconsistent with the intent of this district that may be provided in The 

effectuating District Boundary Regulations. 

Developments within this district shall be permitted to utilize a Floor Area Ratio (FAR.) of a 
maximum of 1.0. However, the determination of the approved and authorized FAR for any proposed 
project shall remain with the City Council and be directly dependent upon the meeting of certain 
criteria or incentive provisions to be set forth in the District Boundary Regulations approved and 
established for this district. 

The minimum setback for all yards shall be not less than 20 feet specifically for the property on 
Eldron Drive adjacent to subject. Hotels and motels could be built, but subject's size and irregular 
shape is not conducive to development without assembledge or other lands being replatted with site. 
Parking would also limit development on irregular site. One space for each room or suite up to 20, 
and one space for every two rooms or suites in excess of20, would need to be provided for parking 
therefore, further limiting site limitations for redevelopment by itself. 

Summary 

The subject property is currently utilized by adjacent subject owner as part of existing parking area 
via a license agreement issued by city of Miami Springs for use. This agreement runs up to March 
2016. The subject site utilized for parking area is a legally permissible use under the current zonmg 
code. 

14 



HIGHEST AND BEST USE 

New development is considered to be financially feasible, but only on larger sites. Thus the highest 
and best use for the subject property is to land bank the site, until new development is once again 
a fmancially feasible option for subject to be assembled or replatted for hotel development. 

SALES COMPARISON APPROACH TO VALUE 

The Sales Comparison Approach is a comparative approach to value that considers the sales of 
similar or substitute properties and related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes 
involving comparison. In general, a property being valued (a subject property) is compared with sales 
of similar properties that have been transacted in the open market. Listings and offerings may also 
be considered. A general way of estimating a value indication for personal property or an ownership 
interest in personal property, using one or more methods that compare the subject to similar 
properties or to ownership interests in similar properties. This approach to the valuation of personal 
property is dependent upon the Valuers market know ledge and experience as well as recorded data 
on comparable items. 

Source: The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th Edition (Chicago: Appraisal Institute), 2010. 

The subject of this appraisal represents an irregular shaped site containing 10,299 square foot or 
.23644 acres of vacant land located in the southwest portion of Tract "B" of the "Miami Springs 
Country Club Golf Course" lying within the City of Miami Springs, Florida. The site is zoned 
Airport, Marine and Highway Business District (AMHBD Airport Golf District, and can be 
developed with a hotel development at a maximum floor area ratio of I .0. 

A search of the subject's neighborhood revealed few land sales and listings over the past year. Land 
sale activity has been limited because of a declining supply of available land and difficulty in 
obtaining adequate financing for purchase or new development. Three land sales were found in the 
immediate market. The land sales provide a range ofland values within which the subject value is 
determined. The comparable land sales are outlined on the following table. A location map will 
follow this section. 

15 



Sale# 2 3 Subject 

Address 3549 LeJeune 6301 NW 36th 627 Eldron Drive 650 Curtiss 
Road Street Parkway(SW Portion of 

Tract B) 

City, State Miami Springs, Fl. Virginia Gardens, Miami Sp rings, F l. Miami Springs, Fl. 
Fl. 

Date of Sale 08/2012 01/2012 02/2012 N/A 

Sale Price $2,000,000 $1,300,000 $305,000 N/A 

OR Book/Page 28254/2056 28020/3459 28574/0704 N/A 

Folio# 05-3129-02 I -00 I 0 26-3025-001-0244 05-3119-0 13-4640 05-3 129-021-0010 

Grantor Le Jeune Airport Churchloans Com 627 Eldron Drive Inc City of Miami Springs 
Holdings LLC LLC 

Grantee MIA Le Jeune Space Coast Credit Springs of the Green, LLC N/A 
LLC Union 

Terms Cash Cash F inancing N/A 

Size/SF 48,787 65,186 21 ,344 10,299 

Zoning Abraham Tract Restricted Airport Golf Airport Golf 
Commercial 

$/Per SF Land $40.99 $19.94 $ 14.29 NIA 

Listing Price N/A $ 1,600,000 $599,000 N/A 

Discount From Asking NIA 19% 49% NIA 
Price 

on the Market NIA > 12 months 18 months N/A 

16 



LAND SALES MAP 

17 



LAND VALUATION (Continued) 

Land Sale 1 is a hotel development site in the city of Miami Springs. The site is located in the same 
zoning as subject, but in the higher density sub district of the Abraham Tract. 

Land Sale 2 was the purchase of commercial site along NW 36 street. This property was recently 
developed for a bank branch. The location is more visible and fronts a high traffic street, but subject's 
golf view could be as desirable location to potential developer. Land Sale 3 zoning also restricts 
multifamily and residential as does subject's zoning. 

Land Sale 3 is the adjacent property. It's only land sale within the close boundaries and zoning to 
subject that was purchased in February 2012. 

Analysis 

The sales indicated a range in unadjusted selling prices from $14.29 to $40.99 per square foot. 
The sales will be adjusted for various attributes based on a quantitative or percentage basis, as it 
pertains to the wh.ole dollar amounts. The adjustment factors will include transactional attributes such 
as adjustments to sale price, property rights transferred; conditions of sale, financing and market 
conditions.· These adjustments are not cumulative. The remaining physical and location aspects are 
cumulative and include zoning, site size and location. 

Adjustment to Selling Price (i.e. Improvements & Approvals) 

The sales included casb·transactions solely based on land value. Each of the sales, like the subject 
property, was in a ready to build condition. 

18 



LAND VALUATION (Continued) 

Analysis (Continued) 

Conditions ofSale 

The sales were all arm's length transactions and did not include any atypical considerations such as 
a 1031 Tax Exchange. Land Sale 2 indicated a discount of 19% when compared to the actual selling 
prices. Land Sale 3 included a larger discount, but it was a sale by an estate that was originally listed 
much higher than market price in order to satisfy all family members of estate and the differences 
in opinion. Thus an adjustment for this factor will not be applied to the listings. 

Financing 

The sales indicated either cash or cash equivalent terms. An adjustment for this factor will not be 
applied. 

Market Conditions (Time) 

The Land Sales closed from January 2012 through August 2012. All sales are considered to be 
recent and reflective of current market conditions. 

The sales, and the subject property include various zoning codes. Sale one has the higher density than 
sales 2 & 3 and the most liberal uses of the three. When sale one is compared to sales 2 & 3 it 
appears that a 50% adjustment for this factor is warrranted and will be applied. The subject 
allowable uses and development standards were most similar to sales 2 & 3. 

Site Size/Utility 

The subject property contains a total of 10,299 square feet. Subject irregular lot is not conducive for 
development due to the site's lack of utility. Access and irregular shape makes site not conducive for 
development. The sales ranged in size from 21,344 to 65, 186square feet. All sales have utility and 
could be developed on their own. A comparison of the sales indicated a difference in pricing for 
utility. A twenty five reduction will be applied to sales . 

Location 

The subject property abuts along the adjacent property on Eldron Drive and is directly on Municipal 
Golf Course of the ciy of Miami Springs. Land Sale 1 is property purchased for hotel development 
with visible and central location as well as Land sale 2. Land sale 3 is adjacent to subject. When 
compared to the remaining sales it does appear that the subject is similar in location. 

19 



LAND VALUATION (Continued) 

Analysis (Continued) 

The following table illustrate the adjustments applied to the comparable sales. 

1 2 3 
$2,000,000 $1,300,000 $305,000 

ite Improvements $0 $0 $0 
roperty Rights $0 $0 $0 
onditions of Sale $0 $0 $0 

$2,000,000 $1,300,000 $305,000 
inancing $0 $0 $0 
arket Conditions so $0 $0 
dj. Price $2,000,000 $1,300,000 $305,000 

($1,000;000) $0 $0 
($500,000) (S325,000) ($76,250) 

ocation $0 $0 $0 
ulative Adj. ($1,500,000) (8325,000) ($76,250) 

dj. Price $500,000 $975,000 $228,750 
nd Size SF 48,787 65,186 21,344 

dj. $Per SF Land $10.25 $14.96 $10.71 

The sales indicated an adjusted range in prices from $10.25 to $14.96 per square foot. Sale 1 is 
located in the city of Miami Springs, but in a higher density zoned district and Sale 2 is supportive 
with restrictions in zoning for residential use just as subject. Sale 3 includes same zoning and is the 
adjacent property to subject Therefore, considering the location of the subject property and it's 
zoning use the greatest emphasis is placed on Land Sale 3 with consideration and support from the 
remaining sales. Subject is limited to development because of size and shape. Therefore, no other 
sales have similar physical limitations for development as subject and most emphasis should be put 
on the lower end of the range for this factor. The market value of the subject site is estimated as 
follows: 

Site Size (SF) 

10,299 

x Value Per SF = Concluded Market Value 

$10.25 

Round To: 

$105,565 

$105,000 

20 



RECONCILIATION AA'D FINAL MARKET VALUE CONCLUSION 

The market value indications as derived from the various approaches to value are as follows: 

·~.,~~rr·>··· • ·;,x;-·<.--.~ ·-'·f.~·:···~XT··~"·-~"'1· 'ft',.l1'"'1f':'l·~ ~rr:r; · 1•: ... IT!1~·, ": · .,,,,:. ·"'~'···,.- "• ;:-;.;..,.,~i·ff .. tw'•'ll''rr~:0·~,;~\f '·l 
tf&ii\1ii4~i~i; w &~'i\~:z~~\JftJttW.~~, t~l0!~ '\'4( ~·r~ fi·fK :;y.· .. :~ ~11 .:: Y-l·}~~~\,;~~~~:~;~11~~1U~k;:~~-1~~~~~~~~~~~ ·~:.! 1 ~:}~U..:i\:~~-.!. t'.:..\,1 !:.· x•i.-~ ~ 4 :rr~.B!.-·.·.L~ .. ~!_:.;j~.w::~c.A.:~'!ih\'t..~~ ~ll·~"''\'.""' 4.!!!• 2ii ,u v~b.·~~; 

Cost Approach Not Applicable 

Sales Comparison Approach $105,000 

Income Capitalization Approach Not Applicable 

The Cost Approach and the Income Capitalization Approach are not applicable and/or relevant to the 
valuation of the subject property type. Therefore, the Cost Approach and the Income Capitalization 
Approach were not performed as part of this appraisaL 

The Sales Comparison Approach represents the alternate investment choice of purchasing 
improvements that offer similar utility value as the subject. In this appraisal, the price per square foot, 
price per acre, and price per unit were used. The Sales Comparison Approach is considered a reliable 
value indicator when sufficient market information is available. A total of three recent sales were 
used. The sales were considered to be among the most similar and best available sales of similar type 
properties in the city of Miami Springs or neighboring village of Virginia Gardens. Therefore, the 
Sales Comparison Approach has been solely relied upon in the estimate of market value for the 
subject. 

By virtue of our investigation and analyses, it is the opinion of the appraisers, that the market value, 
of the subject property, as a fee simple estate, as of October 23, 2013, is: 

ONE HUNDRED FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($105,000) 

21 



PERSONAL PROPERTY 

The market value conclusions include no personal property. 

MARKETING/EXPOSURE TIME 

Exposure time is defmed as: 

1. The time a property remains on the market. 

2. The estimated length of time the property interest being appraised would have been offered on the 
market prior to the hypothetical consummation of a sale at market value on the effective date of the 
appraisal; a retrospective estimate based on an analysis of past events assuming a competitive and 
open market. 

Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th edition (Chicago: Appraisal 
Institute), 2010. 

Marketing Time is defined as: 

An opinion of the amount of time it might take to sell a real or personal property interest at the 
concluded market value level during the period immediately after the effective date of an appraisal. 

· Mark~ting time differs from exposure time, which is always presumed to precede the effective date 
of an appraisal. 

Source: Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 5th edition (Chicago: Appraisal 
Institute), 2010. 

Based on the comparable sales and as per our conversation with local market participants, a marketing 
time of 12 months is considered to be reasonable for the subject property considering it's limitations 
for development. 

22 



CERTIFICATION 

We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

* 

The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct. 

The reported analysis, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions 
and limiting conditions, and are our personal, impartial and unbiased professional analysis, 
opinions, and conclusions. 

We have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report and 
no personal interest with respect to the parties involved. 

We have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties 
involved with this assignment. 

Our engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 
predetermined results. 

We have not appraised nor provided any professional services as it relates to the subject 
property over the past three years. 

Our compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or 
repot1ing of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the 
amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a 
subsequent event clirectly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 

The reported analysis, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 
prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and the 
Standards of Professional Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

The reported analysis, opinions and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 
prepared, in conformity with the Uniform Standards of Professional Practice. 

The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to 
review by its duly authorized representatives. 

We made a personal inspection of the interior and exterior of the property that is the subject 
of this report. 

No one provided significant professional assistance to the persons signing this report. 

23 



C E R T I F I C A T I 0 N (Continued) 

We currently hold an appropriate state license or certification allowing the performance of real 
estate appraisals in connection with federally related transactions. 

* As ofthe date ofthis appraisal, Frank Hornstein, MAl has completed the continuing education 
program of the Appraisal Institute. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Frank Hornstein, MAI 
State- Certified General Real Estate 
Appraiser No. RZ 1376 

November 4, 2013 
Date ofReport 

Jorge E. Santin 
State- Certified General Real Estate 

Appraiser No. RZ 3274 

November 4, 2013 
Date of Report 

24 



ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS 

The value conclusion and certification within this report are made expressly subject to the following 
assumptions and limiting conditions as well as any further reservations or conditions stated within 
the text of the report. 

l) No responsibility is assumed for the legal description or for matters including legal or title 
considerations. Title to the property is assumed to be good and marketable. 

2) All existing liens and encumbrances, (except the existing leases if any) have been disregarded, 
and the property is appraised as though free and clear. 

3) Responsible ownership and competent property management are assumed. 

4) The information furnished by others is believed to be reliable. However, no warranty is given 
for its accuracy. 

5) All engineering is assumed to be correct. The plot plans and illustrative material in this report 
are included only to assist the reader in visualizing the property. 

6) It is assumed that there are no hidden or unapparent conditions of the property, subsoil, or 
structures that render it more or less valuable. No responsibility is assumed for such 
conditions or for arranging for engineering studies that may be required to discover them. 

7) It is assumed that there is full compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local 
environmental regulations and laws unless non-compliance, is stated, defmed, and considered 
in the appraisal report. 

8) It is assumed that all applicable zoning and use regulations and restrictions have been 
complied with, except where non- conformity has been stated, defined, and considered in the 
appraisal report. 

9) It is assumed that all reqwred licenses, certificates of occupancy, consents, or other legislative 
or administrative authority from any local, state, or national government or private entity.or 
orgaruzation have been or can be obtained or renewed for any use on which the value estimate 
contained in this report is based. 

25 



ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS (Continued) 

1 0) It is assumed that the utilization of the land and improvements is within the boundaries of 
property lines or the property described and that there is no encroachment or trespass unless 
noted in thls report. 

11) Subsurface rights were not considered in making this appraisal. 

12) The distribution, if any, of the total valuation of this report between land and improvements 
applies only under the stated program of utilization. The separate allocations for land and 
buildings must not be used in conjunction with any other appraisal and are invalid if so used. 

13) Possession of this report, or a copy thereof, does not carry with it the right of publication. It 
may not be used for any purpose by any person other than the party to whom it is addressed 
without the written consent of the appraiser, and in any event only with proper written 
qualification and only in its entirety. 

14) The appraiser herein by reason of this appraisal is not required to give further consultation, 
testimony, or be in attendance in court with reference to the property in question unless 
arrangements have been previously made. 

-
15) Neither all nor any part of the contents ofthis report (especially any conclusions as to value, 

the identity of the appraiser, or any reference to the MAI or SRA designations) shall be 
disseminated to the public through advertising, public relations, news, sales, or other media 
without the prior written consent and approval of the appraiser. 

16) The existence of potentially hazardous material used in the construction or maintenance of 
the building and/or the existence oftoxic waste which may or may not be present on or under 
the site was not observed during our inspection. However, we are not qualified to detect such 
substances. These substances, if they exist, could have a negative effect on the estimated 
value of the property. The user of this report is urged to retain an expert in this field if 
desired. 

26 



ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING CONDITIONS (Continued) 

17) Unless specifically stated to the contrary in the report, no independent evaluation of 
concurrency matters were made for the subject or any sales comparables. In the event 
concurrency is found to affect subject property or any of the sales comparables, we reserve 
the right to reconsider the value conclusion. 

l 8) This appraisal was not based on a requested minimum valuation, a specific valuation, or the 
approval of a loan. 

19) The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) became effective January 26, 1992. The 
appraiser has not made a specific compliance survey and analysis of this property to determine 
whether or not it is in confonnity with the various detailed requirements of the ADA. It is 
possible that a compliance survey of the property together with a detailed analysis of the 
requirements of the ADA could reveal that the property is not in compliance with one or more 
of the requirements of the act. If so, this fact could have a negative effect upon the value of 
the property. Since the appraiser has no direct evidence relating to this issue, be did not 
consider possible noncompliance with the requirements of the ADA in estimating the value 
of the property. 

27 



AI>DENDA 



SUBJECT~SITE 



NORTHWESTERLY VIEW OF SITE 

SUBJECT-SITE-SOUTHEASTERLY VIEW 



ELDRON DRIVE-SOUTHERLY STREET VIEW 

ELDRON DRIVE-NORTHERLY STREET VIEW 



627 ELDRON DRIVE PROPERTY 



'y out 1nterFlood !Jl~p 

1 
'I 

- .-: · ·· .. :· .· ... -: ·, .. .-· 
~= 

~ ~,....,. .. , , ...... ' ._...., .. _ .... '- ..._-"-'.• · ··~ • ·• ,_, • • ..; r,; . • - • • -~ · · ..,..,..,J -"'" :. n.o::.,. 

Prtpared.for~ 
.Appnitsar First 

:~l· , ......... · 

.... ,_ .. • . - ":" 

Page 2 of~ 



r 
I 
I 
I 

i 

InterFiood - List Fiood Maps 

Flood data 

USPS Addre·ss: 65U;Curtlss ?kwy 
Miami Sprlrigs F.t.:.33166-5250 

Communlt,y Name: MlAMI SPR1Nd$,t:m'/MiAMI-DADE 
.. ', .c ... 

Com~unltV #: '06S3 
Countv: ' Miarrif·Oad~ 

Census Tr.act: i2086-0I:i4'7.02 
Flood Zone: X 

. Here's your·flood map(s~. 

.: .. ; . ':,. - , ,;_,:. : ... ·, ~ . 

·:Flood m·ap--c:folor 'optio·ns 
.. . . 

Interflood has access to over 111-,006 current fEMA flood 
maps:. Af,ld with fllO~ (nm.rul),_ you .cim ~.ustoi)llz.r,:th~.lr 
color( whief'l)l'lakes them more appeallng and ·highlights 
thelfzone~ •. 

turrent.Cofdr: 

To tustotrrrze colors, ·m·ai<e sure·Yoi/re using cf1rome or 
int~ni'i!e· ttipl?Jref.,rattler tll-3-'n 'F(tif6x or,.Satatt 

Since :It's possible for:a property. to be.Jocated on morethan one ilood map (tEili mewhy),you may see .more t'ila'n one 
link below; In rj'Jost cases, 'the fir{;t-UQk w)lJ be th'e _best ri)ap; When YOLJ cU~)_{ !i' linK.; -:ihe f Qrresponding fl!:iOJ.\ map will b~ 
dispJnect:· · - · · 

~· ,flOod· Map tfi for 650 curtiss· Pkwy 
Map Panel: l2<iB6C0283L·- Map ·oate' 09/1;/2009 

.follow_·a ra·'alooe po r~:~jc:w, -B~~ori!e'l)!f$mq([~• 

-~{1il , rnode and~tfpro~uds are'tri!demar~'or::rel)'!Ste~~·.traciema&s .of a ·ra'motle, Inc, 
6th~riir~ncfM9 prodil~~~rri.e:i a~ tr~~~rn~rlis ~;>r.ri~i~_ifire.d-tr~ilemorks, ~t;~,ei~ respective owners; 

q,pyrlght 1;'i-:2013:a la::!nocJe, Inc. ltllOO-ALii.MCDE)_252·66~3) ~~~~~:. 

"'f ' 'I 



' } 

l 
I 
l 
j 

1 

j 
·I 
i 
I·. 

,... 
-~ 

i 
I ,, 
r 
; 
i 

l 
l r 
·t 
! 

. -~ · ............. · - .; .. ~ .. ..:..--. ." .. ~: :._ .. ·· ·\••1 .. .~· • .. ..:."· ~-·.:). !..;; ':-' 1, 1 .... • ;.,{ .;·.~~·."'".1 _- · ··~·~--=- : :'l.' 

Property"Intorn!'atkm Map Pagel ofl 

. ' .. 

. . .M.yHo'm~· · .. 
. r!llam)~·o~~~. c'oi.A.oty, .Ftoridl.·.'. 
-~-{ iJ . ::"- ;~~., ": .. . -~ ·~·:. ;:;··p •. J~'t ·~-:.~ ·: 

• .? ., 

• -,·1, 

• . 

.. 
A&tlal pti§tpguiiPh..Y 

r~\~~ap was a'i}ir~~g~ 1~0/20f3):;~·i1t~BM.for~~~n;nce'p~[pglW:s~o~y.: · 
. J- ·,_ 'r ' • :-· '• ·of.:~ :., . ··;• ,.•j '· 

- ~b sne'~ ~oo2' Mf;al!!l.-!'ilt~ ~uilly.11!1'i1oh{!l •r9serve~,.· 
· .. · . '- ". :·::·· -~ · ... ' ',. .v :~~~;-~:J--~ ~.· ·~: 

.. '•' . ~ 

·,_ ~ 

.. . , 

, "' .. •.', ;r~ ,• . \ ,· · ·_:·::, ··~ · 0• · ·;.:f· . ; t'., '· 

·http1:f/g1~inis2~1niatniti{t'de.g~:>v/inyhome/ptintntap.a5p1maplii1=http:/.Ygisi~2,.fm~mid~;g.,. J:oJio,b.OlJ 
• • .... . , t ."':. - ·• 

I .I 
I 

I 
! 



' ; 
I 

'i 
I 

· .. t , ~I, ... • • . .:,.: . ... I ~:-:-;-, -.;,., • • ., • ·• • , . .. •• .... :.-~·.:....-- .. ·;· . ..... 

2012.rolJ de.tails- Real Estate Account at 6so·cVRTrSS PKWY ~ Ta."{Sys·- Miami-Dade... Page 1 of ·( 

Ass&ii_sed villue: 2,24o,623 
Scht>olllssessed ve'lu$: 2,24.0,623. 

Exemptions 

2012 ~nn~:~al bill 

Aovalorem: 
·., .• -~J -_, • • 

f':Jon:a'd v!ll.ore~ 
Totai .Oisco\Jntable~ 

No Oi$Cou111. NAVA:1 

t otal tat.' 

No'taxes due 

·"-:-

~: v1ew 

$6:00 
Legal description to·ca'iion 

•' :.'' . .:_."';: -~ - ·,..; ~ ; \ ·! ~ ~· :. ~~-

https:J/~1ll,lj~mldad~~9.9.~nty~t~}fes.c·om/pl1blic/r~al_~state/parcels70~:n j~<f.001l050 

Property AJ>pralser 

Use ~c_~o": -8940 
TOII!IIicies~ O.po 

,-,, . 

I 
) 

l 
I : 
i I 

l 

I 
I 
! 

I I 

. I I . 
! 



,..·,t ... . ~· ".\ _. .......... _._ ........ .:. .. ..... ,._ ,,_,..:...· • ..L:..~';"_: -...::~;.. ;.;,; .• !.;.=. ~--·-·-·--• ...:....... ... ... ,.;...~ ..... - ••. _ . ; • .,~.;.· -1 •"'":. ... ' . ...;. . ..... -=W.-·~/ 

Pl·operty Information Map :page I on 

·: . ~· : 

A-~ia~~~oioi~~~~~-:2?12 ;::·\;:- ~ . 
00

0 o

0 

'· • _ '-A .
0 

° 
0 0 

'

0

• 

: Thli-m~ wat~~lt&il.'orro1cii2ol:io13 'a:.2.~:3~PM·to,;"~(er~~ w~.&·ol\ti. ·;'.; 0 

Web ~)te ~ 200.2 ~lariii-Da~e c~\M1ty: AJI.rlilh~~ser:Ved. 
0 0 0 

.f . 

! 
jo 

! 

., ... '-~·~· . ··~ .... 

·; . 



,I 

~·•- • - - .. - -. •A-T~'-~ ,.,_ ,, __ - - . .. • ..,,.-, ,-~·~ T". •,:__ .. ~_. t · ~ • - • 

Ll.CE~§E .. AGREEMENiT . 
. . - . . . " ,· 4 ·. . . 

THIS LJCEN'SE' AGREEM~NT Is entered into this . _tl~ day of 

~Ma,•t a-A .1 201:2; by anQ between the CITY .GF MIAMI SPRINGS, a Florida Municipal 

Corporation, hereinafter ref~rred to as ''City", and SPRINGS ON tHE G.R'EEN, LLC:.1 a 

Florida Limite·d Liabiiity ·carporation, hereinafter re(erred to as•''Springs"; 

W I T N E S ·S E T H ~ 

WHEREAS, .sprll,gs ·on the 'Green, LLC~·; has app·r.oached the City to sollcil 

authorization tQ utlllze.a sm~ll parkiQ~. Iot ar~a own~d bY,.'the City-which.adjoin·s the parking 

,lot of a pr()perty tec~J)t)y purchase.d; by .Sp!ings ~t 627 Eldron Drive, a site plan of the 

parkin9 !qtJ~·atta~hed h~ref~ ·as Exhfbil "A"i and I 

WHEREAS,-it has been represented to lhe OffY·1hat Sprlngs vJill.fmprcve1 IIJumlnate, 

lan9scap,e and malhtaln).the proposed lic'ensed parl<il)g area; a.rn:J • 

. W!"fE_REAS, Sprff"\g.s.nas also agre·e.d to fullj'l~~sum the e]ltire parking area'adfacent 

to its, new office building, thdudlngthe.prpp·osep l lc~nsed ·p·~rklng ~reai ~nd fo Indemnify 
! . . . i 

and hold the Cit¥. haimless auring Its us:e.~ofthe parking ·are_@; andr 

WH.ERI;AS, the City. c<:~@cll of. t.h~ Cl.ty· of Mls\r.n~ : ~prlng·~ has ·tevlewad .and 

dis~WS'et{ me P.~<?PP~~~ 0~ Spring$ . and. ha's determined that, s~bjed- tti}tffe terfT)_$ ·and . '' 

'CM.dltlon's oi:tfl1~!6.bens.~.Ag~e.~m~nt~· it'is in tbeJ)es(ihte'res\snHhe Gily and' its citlz~ns tQ, 

autborlze the usage' Of the sm);lll city bwn-ed pa'rkhi.f) ·ar~t{by Spr'iDge ·for the lbnlt~d 

p~rpP.s.~~ r~pr~·~oie_Q_·t~_tqe :eitY.: 

LJcense Agreement Spiings on· the G'reen·~ · LLG 

' I 

!. 
t 1 

( 
I 
\ 

~ I-



1( 
t 

I 

!I_; 

k 
' 

I 

- - • " .•_- ·· 'l; .. •• 1 ·-' · ,• • . ;;. .. -;:.::- -:- r ~ .. ...-.-..-

NOW, TH~~EFORe~.in c0nslderatibn 6fthe mutual c'o~.Y~nants contained herein, the 

mutual s'ufficiericy of which' is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby·agree·as fellows: 

RECITALS .. 

·The partie~ .het~tQ acknowfedge and agree that The· recifals0'preVious!y sedorth 

. herein are·true and corredt ~!'nd · may be relied upon by either party. 

. : 

GRANT OF LICENSE 

TheCitYofMfarni'$prings hereby;grant$ t6·SpMg-s Qrft.he Gre~i1, LLO., a licerfse·to 

utilfzerthe sm_aH p~r.Kin~ !of area, owned .bY th¢' City 'and .identltied on Exhibit "A" attached 

hereto;; as: part qf. the: p~rkinB. 'Iot to be p'roVide~ ·r~r u~e ~n the ·OP!31'atiorf ·o·f f~ adJacent 

business office, 

ACCEPTANeE OF tiCENSE. 
' · I • • • '• ,• • ' , ~ 

s'prlngs:on<~the me.en, t.Ld·. · he'reby~acc~pts the'll~en~e.· gt.~ht~~ by·th.e GilY tor .the 

'(1se.ofthe CTtyfs smallparklhg lot ldehtlfieo on Exlilbit 0A" ·atiachE~d her~tQ . 

tti.ls Llc<:(r)'$(l· A9¥~¢m.en'1 $hali begin ori .J\.prfi 1; ·2o j~ a~~ :confin'UMhroug h Match 

81,20\6. 

2 

:_~ 



1..' 

... ' - .,... ~, . 

ReNEW ALOE UCENSE 

This License Agreement.:may be renewed upon the termination cif th!s Agre~:fment 

upon the mutual :consent. and ~greemarit of the-parties ~erato. 

TERMIN:A. TION OF LICENSE 
• ·- t • 

. ' 

This License Agreement may be{erminated oY:eilheq:iarty.Mretq,.wi(hout cause. bY. 
·' 

providing the· other party written notice thereof by cerfi·fi·ed mail, return receipt req'uest'ed ~ or 

tiy Mtid ~l:ilivety-, tq pe effective hinety (9"0) days from receipt of said written notic.!l: 

Notwithstandlng;lhe foretl¢ing, the terms and ·conditions of th.ls provfsron ·shal'l not oe · 

effectiv~ until ·atter--"the;initial.eighteeh -(f8rmontns dthis Agr.eement 

·springs on theTGre.en, J..LC> agrees t~ improve, il_lutt'lii.'r~te, l.~nd{)ciap~ ahq 'rrla1nta'ii) 

the licensed t>arJ<Jng·lot area during the term hereof. In addltiqn to ther for~goii'l!}, $prlngs 

furtb~r .agree.s .to'ailow~e. Oily-the unres~r\cted use of the·~HJ.~ject _ar:e~Hor -~~~ ~EJpprQpr,laje 

,·. 

LICENse'S ·r:E'E 
s·prlngs ;shalli.notbe required fo pay the :cfty ani(ees .for this agreem~nt;, which· 

requires Springs to:fuii}' m-B'fnl~rh !ana ,) nsur~:'fheliiq~~~M prei~fs·es~s_,c9m·p:en~atiorr·~ ~e 

91ty. 



I 
11 ASS.!GNMENT/SUB~ICE.NSE 

This License Agreement is not assignable and Spt.lngs.shalf not be permitted to· 

su~license -or tran"$fer the u.se-of the' City's sm·atf' parking lot area .authorized-~y this ., 

Agr.e.em~nt. 

Sprlhgs shalt be req·uifed to·obtair'rgenetalliabiUty insiir'flrtc$ b6_\let~g~;l n the'amount 

of dna· Million ($1 100-0;000) Dollar~ priof to the oommenceiirent of ·any usage·,-et the 

!Jcenseci _pre'mlse·s. ·The insurance cove"fage n·(ust'be pt<~Vic.fed J>.y a carrier ~ppr0ved by the 

City, auftrorfzed'to lssue·'coverage in ttre· State ofF lorida, and ratM ~+by the late~t A.M .. 

Best Key Ratlhg Gulde o'f ·insurance cqfnp'~riies. The· 'City ·sh~J.I ~e provlded-,w-~h an 

insurance eertlflcate specifying it as an addlti6hal ih$!ltM Wifh :r,especl to the operation of 

Sprfrigs artCI its use o·t the lic¢.ns·ed·-premises·Mreof. 

,~Q~Qfi~~M~.5S3.~R!~J?~r:n~tf.AC,ATIQ_N .. 
In a_d<;lit.ipn to ~h~· ln~l!r:~h.c~. c·owrage provid~d .fo. the Ctty, 'sprlng_s 'shaii:hold: fhe 

City, including It~ offiQlal&, 'employees an'd ~epres·entatives·, .harmless and' ind~mnify :it 

agalnst·'all ol~if:Qa,i ~erp:ands, qamag!3S, action~;> cat:fses of acllons, !lability; ·costs\· .. ~ . . 

or dam~ge.lo o.r·lo:Sa.oJ'p.rqpertyi susiained ·.on .or about fhe licensed. pr'eifiis·&e:, ati~inglrom 

The :m anagemeni:se!Vlc-es).actS) ~clf(lH'{s~ 3milssJ~h.$ or failur~s ·t0-act of.S,P'r(ngs or o(any·of 

. lt~ emp l(;yee·s,· a~e_nts, repres·entati\J.es, iilvitaes_, or gue$t~. AdditibntiTIY{. th~ prote~li{}ns 

L.:tcarraei.Agre:ement 
4 

.-



.. 
r 

·:.--. 

t 

., . 

- -· ' .. ..... -.-... .... ~ " - -· 

provided by this p~ovlslon sh~lt also.include any costs, expenses, or'legal1ees the Cltyrr\ay ... ··'' 

incur In estabiJshirig that ~he Spri.OQs or its insurer are .. .responslbl~ to provide 'protection, 

coverage, ~Dd reP.r&Set,tation to '~h~ City, its officla!s, ,empto~ees, and representatives for 

any incident th~t may occur during the term hereof. 

RELATfONSfne OF PARTIES-

The parties hereto mutua.liy ·acknowJ~dg:E! and agree that there Is no business 

relafionship' bewk~n the .. City and Springs. lt is further acknow.!edged that the operation 

of Sprlngs rs within tha S0fe:·and e~cllJslv~ (iJsct~'tiori orsprln.Q~ and thai.Sprlngs is not an 

·agent, t~presentatlve, partner, empfdyee or assooiat~ .of the City. 

fROHIBITED. ACTIViTIES : 

iSprihgs .. shaJI nCl~ li$e ttie prem.i~~sJC>.r any unlawful purpo~e~and shall compl~twith 

.afllaws.~nd permitfihg requirements applicable now, .or In the fLifure .• to tne opet~tion of the 

!icensed., ~remises~ .~Prin·gs qhall no(pert'nlt.a.ny offens1ve, ofaangeroi.is ~ct!Vi!y, nor any 

nufsance-ot:'other~_on_dj.lot ·io vlpiEJti9lH>f. th~.public p.olic.Y of th.e Ci(y),coi.u1ty Gr·sta:\e ·:qnJh~ 

·ueens'&d .prei:nise.s: 

. .NQ~i~p~~~R!~!N-\]J~8Y. ,PMQli~'Ji§•. 
In the operation o'f'fhe Hcensecfprell'i~e~f'alfman~gero~.nt·anei o):>-er:atidnal seflifGes .• 

--\ . ' --

inCluding ·those activities reiat~d·'to direct cori'fa"Chvith the·pobQQ;:and .those invofvlng, the· 

·hiring, ·treatment and advaricer.nenf of ·emploY,ees, s.p'ilngS' sh'l:ilfhot :dis&i'minate in ~ny 

fSpflt>gs~rtthe Green, LLC· 



manner b_ased lil:pQrl" raee, coJor, _creed, reli~ion', an_cesfry; national origin, gender; ~ge, 

physical/mental handicap or in any other trian'ner. 

CORPORATE STATUS 

Prlofto the co'mmencement ot:any usage ofthe licensed premises, Springs shall 

-p"r.ovide the City<With-a copy ofits ArtlG!es of lncorporatlon·'and a current Corporate Status 

Certificate. 

ATTORNEY'$ F.EES 

ThG ~~rties ht;lreto ackno~ledge and. agree-tnat shoulcf'lt ·o.eoome ·n:eceesary to~ 

e·ither:partylo 1his Agreement to brfng sult:to .enforce anV provisions hereof, bt'fordatffages 

· oh acco\,lnt of any breach of this a·greemenl the pre'va.ilh,1g party on ·aoyisslre· in El,ny Sl::ICh 

litigation, and ahy-app.eals.ther.elrom, shall J:>e entitled to recover 1roni th& othef. party, ln 

addition to·any darrmges o·~ .. other r_eilef grar)led as a resuff of such lltl~fllioni ~II costs~nd 

e.xp~ns"es'. Qf s~.cb lrtlg~tloh ~n·d a reasonable aftotney's ·fe~· as· may b-e -awar(led by the 

col:lrt', 

.tJOtlCES TO PARTIES' 

All notices required (:)r desirecl. to ~.tH!JJ~e~: ~nqer thi~ ~g'reemeryt shal{'be lf.i ·writing. 

ana deuverem in person or transm_ittad 15y cert)n~d 'M~ir, r~t9rn recelptte.quested1• postage· 

prepaia, addressed to .the ~rty'to B~ noti¢'ed, a·nd shall b·~;~:aem'ed'to:have.beeli delivered' 

lhree·:(3}·8ay~· ~ftercdepo~iUn a PCi5St offic~ ·.<:>r letU3r bo~· ln t~e ~t:>Ve man"e·r. 
~ .. 

liGCri$~ Agreement ·Springe on the·Green, .LL:C 
6 

... 



.. ,,.. ____ , __ ._ ~ .. .._ •• ~.,;. --";- - '1~· 

NOTICES TO BE GIVEN TO e·ITY SHALL BE ADDRESSED A'S FOLLOWS~ 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Attentio11:. Sonal.d K. Gor.land, C.ity 'Manager 
20'1 Westward Drive · 
Miami Spritlgs, FL '33166 

'NOTICES TO 13E GIVEN TO SPRINGS SAALL af; -ADDRESSED' AS FOLbOWS: 

SQrings· on the:·~fe$fll, LLC. 
Attention: Manuel Perez-Vicho't 
1'05_6 Hllfl~ng Lodg~ DriVe 
Miami -Springs, FL 33166 

CAPTIONS. 

All captions In Jhis Agr.een"'eiit"are ·rr;cluded 'for conv~ni~nce .only ·and are not to be .. 

taken into cons'ideration in any cbnstr,uction or interpretaliqn· pf"this Agreement or any·of Its 

provisions, 

TIM~ 

Time is of th'e;essence as to -each term of4hls Agreement. 

GOVERNING LAW 

'Thl.~ Agt~e,Ment a~.th~'rlght·s an9 ![~b1.11ties·qf'~ne p~rties tq \hls:Agreeli~hH~.all b..e 

gott~.rned by th:~ law~ -o( th? St~te o'f F19riq!i, ~lf;~~y ~rO:vislo.n of thl~ Ag~e~b'lent is 

ihvalidated by ju~icial'declsion or statulo.):y ahactment ~ the tnvalldlty of any such,provlslon 

will not a_ffect the validity_ of ·~ny other provision -~f the~reemant 

UcGnse,~greemeo'f Spiings dn the Ghsen, LLC. 
7 

,, 



.· 

-=- _ .. - ... ~- --.-

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreem'ent, together with· any'fxlilolts hereto~ constitUte the entire Agreement 

betw.e~n the paJiles relating to tlie suojacr m~~er ~h~teof. Thia:Agre~ment Js Uie final 

expression of agteeme·Mbetweeri ti\e parti~s he~tcr. N~fther party. shall be entitled to re.ly 

upon ·any confllcfing. oral·representations, as$llf11r\ce~. claims ·or disclaimers, made eHher 

prior to, or simUltaneous With, the execution ofthis Agreement. 

IN WITN~.ss·wHEREbF, Springs and the .City have\set fheir hand·s ano sear~ 011:' 

the day and year first above written, 

THIS· SPAc:e. INTENTIONALlY LEFT 'BLANK. 

License Agreement :Sprihgs-t>n tl)e Green, I..I.C 
8 

... 



1 

-~ 

WITNESSES.: 

s·r ATE 6F flQR!bA 

COUNTY OF. MIAMI-DADE 

• · •· · • · \ '. ' ' I -l 

se~IN~S QN .TH~_.GRJ;i;N~ tLc. 
A Flor{ · liinlted Uablllty Corporation 

The foregoing lnstr~msr'l't was ackn0wleqge~ .betorer h1& t.h1s __ ~_ .. :.J..'f_ :day of 

Green, LLC, a Florida Llmi'ted LlabltltY·Corpor~tlon, 011 beN~Ifolihe Qorp·orat101,1. He'is 

- ~ . . ., '~ ... ~ . • .. :· '"' - (type 

SP.Tin~s on the Green, LLC· 
9 



WITNESSES: 
As.to both signatories) 

·STATE O.F ·FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF MIAMI·DADE 

-·-.,.,.,.. __.._ .... ---- ·-- .. ,, ' •. ·.-·. ·:~ · ---:. ··· -·- 'C.,.._- - " 

CITY OF MIAMI S~RfNGs,, 
a t::torld~ MUnJ~i.p.a) •.. nrnnr;anMtt~~ltf~lf.G~ 

' 

(:,~' 
• J 

'· 

Tne foregoing Instrument was ack.nowled9ed before me this 

?'Jt~;b.fi:'. _., . .... 201~1-by ~Ronald K,(3orland;.City.Managerand Magali 

Valls, City Clerk·of.the City of Miami Sprh1gs, a florida.Munlcipal :oorporatron, They are 

personally ~known to .me or have produce'd .,----~,....,......._ __ __,..,.._ __ ~ypa of 

identific~tion) a~ id~ntlfi~.tion and did·(dlct not) iaken·an ·o·ath. 

License Agreeme~ti 
io: 



. 
,( 

··1 
I 

'J 

~ . 
K' •" 

. ·~ 1: ~! . 

--

.. 

I 
< .• • ; 

·' 

_ ; __ 
·..: ·, -·,· 



I 
I' 
i 

D 

,@ 
· 1£ 
= 

" •• • • .. •t~ .. . ... ... 

_., . .-.. 

..._:. 

J . : i t ·I ·- • ··g· 1 ~ 1~ Ill ~J t : J 1 Jl . t I~ f ..{ ! 
,,..... • ( ... ' tJI d H.l.l r1 i I 

f 
I 

I 
" I 
l I . 

I 

I 
I 

.. 

I ,, 
I 

1 
I 

~1 · 
l 
/ 
I 
I 

I 
I . I 



-\1 

;sa .. ca- o1ri 

I 
I 
,I 

I 
1 
I 
1 

tEGAL,DESC.Rii?TioN: 

A Pd~tio.N. OF'tAACT .oif3• , BLQCK ,14,6 Of "REviSED. ro\T OF' 
SECTib~ 2, ,.C0UNTRY cW~ ESTATES' AOCORDING rb·i11E PLAT. 
i'Hfl'(~g~ -~ RJ:coRq~P)N ' f'iAr ·eqo~ :3A,· AT ~AGt 10, oF · 
PUBtfG-~CO'RDs· Of.'MIAMI·OADE c:;ouNJ?j', FLO&JbA: 
c~iiXEN~t At·i:.HE 55llTHWEsT:CGRNER oF'·9AIQ TRA'CT~
THENCE-NJDR.liH,ALONG ~t:fE'WE5T LINE Of 5AID TR:Avfue~. A 
DIS.TANcE:C>'F 2S'G.-10 FEET; tMf_:NGE N '77°0B~SZ1E- A D'I5TANCE-. 
OF ;95 .. 00 FEEf;· lJ1E~C'E N4ooo·I~2-G~E;A 015TANCEibt" 7.9. 77 
ru:El'. TO A PO(NT 'O_N E:UR.V~ uONGAVe TO Tl"lE 'NORTHEASTERLY '· 
WNft{G .-A..&AtiiO~~ lbr ~00.:7b'fffT~.TH~GE NO~THWESTERLY 
~LQ~_~:~AjO~¢~~~e~~ J;)l.~:r~~-QF 2:¢td~~iEEITi_AND THROYJ.GH 
A tCfii·~~·'AtJ'Gte;,~(~:366QfJ1p_6~-TCYJflE. il~~~19N -~f. THE 
W§~f·:~J"::?;tJg,?~O"t.,*t?•; iH~¢t:' ?~9t~~ l ·4•c:r~~ ~ -w~r ANC~ 
or -~;~'~- . T.O ~ .. PQrNr: 'tHEt-JCf. -~ ()06~15·1_ W f.OR 'A 
'DI:?l'Al'Jql;, Qf J5 A4"FEet~t~· ~- f1~(f-m_1r1ENC!: -S33°0b3G!'f FOR 
A DI~T-A,NC~Of 1{55, I.G>:,F.EeyTO AfOlFlr :·. 
Tt,"I~NGE _53~"$. 1.~39~y~t~QI{~ [;)!5ifAN~E. qi !23.5 l_'·fECf jo ·rH,; 
fiOIII.IX OF pcG.t~,NI_NG!Af~'H~-~~TA]Ns I ~a9.1 ~ $0qAR1! :reet~CR: 
0.2~~44' ~Rt!? ~ 

--- !'-_~ 

y &V 

--~. 

·c : -

, .. . - ·- - . . ' 

! 
. j 
l 
J I 



ibTES: 
,, 

: IE W.De TO ~RMINE RECotUlED INSTRUME!fl11, 

fU;'BtfO'IItl fl.l~AcCOR~~~ ~ PL(f: 
•' ...... : . .. .. .... - . 

- - -
~OSI!!~TO FkBRIZUEt-A & ASSOCIATES 

· · 'Lanc{S'urve1or4 
' 

I 
l 
I 

~ I 
I 

... . .1. 

....... 

' .. ; 



· :AppraisalFirst 

·.Real Estate Appra.isers LLG 

1444 Bb~o)'AA ~~u_rp,·•ru, S>~li;, 2 r J 
M\3til1: !¥rida·Hf32 
i>ilon~· :;o5:470:ido 
'Fax: '30S·i~J,sW . 
ll·tniil: , .. ;~mual@~pii'isirlfll'~t.nc t 
E-moir:.eo~nniti'ci~lji!l~PI!fui >i lfigt.riet 

O'ctober 3, 2013 

Springs oftb<: Green.p:o~ 
c:\0. Mi:: E!iriqud. Aguen'evere 
1 Q5~ 'Hun tin~ .Lo.~~e~i?,fi~~~ 
M'J·nmi Spriugs,·[<L .33 1{)6 

._,>loo~.~ ·~.:.·- - ... _ .. , •• • I; ' . ... ~· : ·-~ ; : :::::· :·:.::: • -::: 

R ,C{ .!;.. parc~l];pf _II~M.-;;q~WJlc~: gy ~i.~it]i;. Sptip_g~; , abu(ttlg Jbe. ~aifs(8e of'a ,p'Hitrel'ry 
1oa~ieii ·a~62~ F:ttil'dJr: bn~~;· Mlathtsp(ln·gs; Frondh: .. 3.'?n66. · 



-::· ·-·~--=.~-.... -·--~~·_..· ~· ·· ··· -·· .. ·-. -· . .., . . .,....,._,,. •.. . -·.. - ... . • =-=--- ~-... _,. - -=- ~ :-. . . - -~ -

I 
I 

i 
I 

.! 

f 

i 
l 

~ 
1: 
j 
; 

; 
I 
:·· 
1 

"·-·~ · ~ ·- ·-··- ·- • ··--·-·--..... ---·"""···-......... ,,_,...,-;;; .. , .. -....,_..._,. __ ., ______ ,,:---"'\ __ . __ .. ... • ---.,---· ·-~·-·-·------.,.... .......... n..____·-·----.-.·-·---··· , .. ,...,._ ,, 

S~tings - oft~~-Gr_eeil LLC 
-c\o' Mr: Ennqu·e). Ag\i~rtevere 
Page Two. 

It is ~~~~:t~~~l!~Ji:ot.~_Wa~}Jf.~~,!~~-e (eport~ ~~e l'!.f£~i:'J!.~~~;~~},C1-l~~-~~-~a ~t:!r:~illlttd~-~ ~~~¥are 
on~y-. m __ fompJl~~-~-~-_:W 1t~-:~b~ .0~1~ ~~: ~,th1_cs --?r: tY-~3»-~-~!.•~:~!::'{~~~!ut:~-~-~:.,tb~ ~~m!~umt· 
~tanjlllr.d.~ ·yf t_J(~tZOl2~_20 M: UplfQJm Stand_ar;~s qfJ~rofe~slon.a_l~p_eh~i-~),)IJ~f~Cti~.~ ,(Qs.'P A:P.). 
Tne. rep,9cts{nuiy t1qt-be"in. ~oli(o:nrhi;)'ce~,.;,n~ ih~ ~~eP,:~·'"' ··rt ~@1e.11ea~\1f'Y,_ -C5f.fi'Ce 6f<?6rnptroller 
'o,f. the Cu!Tency,A~ar.tJ .. or:~g}temprs: gfitht3 'F4d~rv .•. -)'\.l~ i§y$~#it~E~1l~tfil .Oepcs)t:·Tfi~Q)]_nce 
Gorror~t!op, om~e Qf'T~iit~jfJi!!fYisiQn, Nation~! C1~§:~1ti!Jt1l~IFA;d!'t{ihist:i-~t\opWild§i) 2CFR Part 

-~-~~ :.Rea:L ~stat.e -Ap'W~is~ls:: ~i)t 'title! XI _?f 1'~~c fj~~)~lj!,fiS~d~,d~».s~ .·~:e.t?J.~~::~~~-o\:c.i}'.1 and 
Enforc5.~~en!:Act·of-1,989 '(.'-'f;~~:~; a_n4 t_~e Jpt~Hl&~!1~Y :1\ppralsa, an_4 Ev.~loabon CM9eJ!lres. 
Federal Register, Volume 75, No. n1, DetemberJO; 2010,_ 

.Once C.Oll)ple,(~:'an,4 del~v~~~d~rr.e~ddresshJ_g' the aepr~\S.a.j_.t:eP.()}i$ tl'l: a.p .. oitl~!,1 :pl!PY OF ~~t~!lt• JS 
pro~ibit'td.15y-~~P,AP.• 0ii.~¢!aiiJ1s'sigi(menr is c:-oinP.J.e:}¢d; imln)i~l~il#i~J~Wl~t.o~d~'~new party 
·~s pli_~_r.or-;Ii1t~~-4~d1-J~e~l\l) wa~~t:t0(ihe:'Q}iSi.ri!!: I rcH~_t}.t· 6r: f~i{(i'tifi~p-@r~t\':~~1-i~t~er .';':· R:b~cidfessing 
th.~ appf~$.{\l.:wjJl!'Q~ ~onsjqeied.. <fJ1!';W'<lSsignment Wit_!J a po~~ntial - ndaitiqi'ii'Pfe~. · 

O.irr ·-£?~~~#s'a~~n~rQ.·t: ~]iP,I~·tqfi: illif~~)i~~~r \s !10_~::~9~!~~$_e~t~ -~~~-':~~ · d,~v.e:i~pt~nt ::Q!. 
reP:ort_Tg;pf:~ :pz;~~te~~-~M~;~=~·vaw.~. -~.t~d~~cl'~JY¥J.~vaJ~r __ tn:~l!av?!;~>J~~~~u~~: QJ:·~~e.~~,{~~~~;t~e. 
~.rno:Y.nf;:Qf,tne :Y~l~~ptn.!Qfi~~~e:_~n~~~~~tp.f a.;s.~P»~~~#l·~sWJ,IltJ_iS?,r.J~gs~,<:~~en.ce_ pf:a:s.u~s~q~teJ.It·. 
o·v~nt:i.dW~tJY. r~}~fed'(t~':Ulif;ii'ftea:d~ :\)~e: of t11i~· ~p-pr•M~L tlt1: fue"iliat i~ · beihg -p';ti4 t'or' this 
.np·pr~is'~f\s a: nqn~refuh:d'~bfe.'depo~if; . 

·Etifth<!t;~A~~.1~~tst~.~rsM~s~j'a!)~-~.,rep,!~sent~~io~~r,·:<.Vtfl~'1!1.~tiat,~9-e 'apppj~s,~d.y_alties-of ' 
th~<Sut>Ject:j)t.~p'elities v{~JJ'li~ilefifiO'r assisOhe cliefit in S(\~(:j!jnfeil"de4'u~e q(the l$Prai~th~pOrt~:.-

Jtran~·'lJo ~' , _ , ''·'(:·.Mi\Ji'-
·- -~;te «tfti. ·~-- ~jiri - i{e,al ' ·.' 
~E~~-ate-:A'pprih _ ._s:NQ'. :R:Z 1316-

i:j(efel?y a~lioriZei7)!9U~to ,Pto~efJ,with: tli.e ~.Pwatsai. · 



EXPERIENCE: 

QUALIFICATIONS OF FRANK A. HORNSTEIN, MAI 
State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser No. RZ 1376 

frank@appraisalfirst.net 

Owner/ Appraiser • AppraisalFirst - 2010 to present 
Officer/ Appraiser - Appraisalfirst, Inc. - 2005 to 2010 
Commercial Appraiser- AppraisalFirst, Inc. - 1993 to 2005 
Commercial Appraiser -Ames Appraisal Services - 1989 to 1993 

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS: 
Member of the Appraisal Institute, MAI 

STATE OF FLORIDA LICENSES: 

EDUCATION: 

State-Certified General Appraiser, No. RZ 0001376 
Real Estate Broker, No. 0534448 

B.S., Florida State University, Tallahassee, FL- 1989 
Major: Real Estate and Finance 

RECENT CONTINUING EDUCATION: 
- USP AP Updated, Appraisal Institute, 20 I 0 
-Hotel Valuation, Appraisal Institute, 2010 
-Effective Appraisal Writing, Appraisal Institute, 2010 
- Business Practice & Ethics, Appraisal Institute, 2009 
-Hotel/Motel Valuation, Appraisal Institute, 2008 
- USP AP Update, Appraisal Institute, 2008 
- Supervisor Trainee Roles & Rules, Appraisal Institute, 2008 
- Spotlight on USPAP: Hypothetical & Extraordinary, Appraisal Institute, 2008 
- Litigation Skills for the Appraiser, Appraisal Institute, 2008 

APPLICATIONS OF APPRAISALS: 
Mortgage Loan 
Securities Lending 
Foreclosure Proceedings 
Bankruptcy 

TYPES OF PROPERTIES APPRAISED: 
Industrial Buildings 
Office Buildings 
Rental Apartments 
Rental Townhouses 
Shopping Centers 
Leasehold Interest 
Hotels & Motels 
Restaurants 
Vacant residential Land 

Geoeraphical Areas Served: 
Miami-Dade 
Monroe 

litigation (Expert Witness) 
Purchase or Sale 
Estate 

Single Family Subdivisions 
Vacant Commercial Land 
Retail/Showroom 
Manufacturing Buildings 
Vacant Industrial Land 
Religious Facilities 
Gas Stations 
Townhouse Subdivisions · 
Condominium Projects 

Broward 
Palm Beach 





QUALIFICATIONS OF EFRAIN JORGE SANTIN 
State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser No. 0003274 

EDUCATION 

Florida International University, Miami, Florida 
B.A. Degree-Finance-1997 

PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION 

Florida International University 
Course: FIN 4343-Real Estate Analysis-1996 

Gold Coast-Florida 
Real Estate Appraiser-2002 
ABIII Mastering Real Estate Appraisal-2007 

Appraisal Institute 
API 31 0-Basic Income Approach-2003 
API 510-Advance Income Approach-2003 
API 520-Higbest & Best Use Market Analysis-2003 
USP AP Updated-2008 
Supervisor Trainee Roles and Rules-2008 

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 

Member of the Appraisal Institute-2003 

LICENSES 

State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser-RZ #0003274 
Licensed Real Estate Sales Person SL #703744 

EXPERIENCE 

Assistant ResidentiaUCommercial Fee Appraiser-2002 

TYPES OF PROPERTIES APPRAISED 

Single Family Residential 
Vacant Land 
Office Building 

2-4 Family Dwellings 
Individual Condominiums 
Multi-Family 

GEOGRAPHICALAREASSERVED 

Miami-Dade Broward- Palm Beach 

Hotels & Motels 

30 



±tit 
.;. 

.,, 

., 

. ; 
\' 

.. 

·~!. ·. ,. :·:·· . 
KEN .LAWSON 
<SECRE'rAJ}Y 

' < 

'• 

·---·--------· -·---·-..,..._.-= 

7 94 

I ' 



TO: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY 
CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33 166-5259 
Phone: 305.805 .5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

Agenda Item No. 

Olty Oountll Meeting of: 

I~ - 1,~ ¢!?..1.,3. 

The Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Suzanne S. Hitaffer, CMC, Acting City Clerk 

November 20, 2013 DATE: 

SUBJECT: Education Advisory Board Recommendations 

Based on their actions taken at their meeting of November 19, 2013, the Education Advisory 
Board members would like to bring the following recommendations to the attention of the City 
Council: 

1. "Board member Werner moved to recommend that the City of Miami Springs 
work together with the District to achieve the Anti-Defamation League's No 
Place for Hate status at Miami Springs Elementary School. Board member 
Hidalgo seconded the motion which was carried unanimously on voice vote. " 

2. "Chair Salomon moved to recommend that the City Council work with the 
District in establishing a partnership with Miami International Airport that 
specifically leads to student internships and part-time jobs for OJT students 
from Miami Springs Senior High School and to consult Dr. Sean Gallagan at 
George T. Baker Aviation if need be. Board member Hidalgo seconded the 
motion which carried unanimously on voice vote. II 

3. "Chair Salomon moved to recommend that the City Council work with the 
District in hosting an Art Show that showcases the work of senior citizens and 
students from the Miami Springs schools. Board member Werner seconded the 
motion which was carried unanimously on voice vote." 

4. "Chair Salomon moved to recommend that the City Council work with the 
District in establishing a partnership with the Miami Springs Historical Society so 
that students can benefit from innovative ways in sharing the history of the 
community. Board member Hidalgo seconded the motion which was carried 
unanimously on voice vote. II 

0:\3\Education\Memo to Council from the EAB- ll-20-2013 .doc 



Agenda Item No. 

City Council Meeting of: 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF MIAMI 
SPRINGS AND THE VILLAGE OF VIRGINIA GARDENS 
RELATING TO TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

;J... 9- ..Jti 1.3 ~ 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT entered into this day of 
---:----:-----::;-:::-:----:' 2013 by and between the CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, hereinafter 
referred to as "City", and the VILLAGE OF VIRGINIA GARDENS, hereinafter referred to 
as "Village"; 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, the City of Miami Springs has previously established and currently 
operates a bus within the corporate limits of City known as the "City Circulator" that 
provides limited transportation services to the City's citizens; and, 

WHEREAS, the Village of Virginia Gardens has requested that the City expand the 
route of the Circulator in order to include the Village; and, 

WHEREAS, that in order to establish the relationship contemplated by the City and 
Village for the expanded Circulator services, the parties have agreed to memorialize all 
terms and conditions within an lnterlocal Agreement; and, 

WHEREAS, that in consideration of the City expanding the route of its Circulator to 
include the Village, the City will receive the Village's twenty (20 %) percent C.I.T.T. transit 
funding from Miami-Dade County; and, 

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the parties to this Agreement to establish a mutually 
beneficial relationship in order to provide needed limited transportation services to the 
citizens of the City and the Village: 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations 
herein contained, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto 
mutually agree as follows: 

1. RECITALS. That the recitals previously set forth above are true and correct 
and accurately set forth the intent of the parties to this Agreement. 

2. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES. That the City of Miami Springs will 
provide "City Circulator" transportation services to the citizens of the Village of Virginia 
Gardens as set forth in the descriptive brochure and Circulator map attached hereto as 
Exhibit "A", which by this reference is made a part hereof. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge the right of the City to 
modify the existing operation of the Circulator, so long as the City maintains a reasonable 
schedule of transportation services to the Village and makes all reasonable efforts to notify 
the Village of all operational modifications. 

Interlocal Agreement 



3. COMPENSATION TO THE CITY. That in consideration of the City providing 
the aforesaid transportation services, the Village agrees to pay the City its twenty ( 20%) 
percent C.I.T.T. transit funding received from Miami-Dade County's People's Transportation 
Tax. 

4. TERM. That the term of this Agreement shall commence on the 101
h day of 

December, 2013 and terminate on the 3 P1 day of December 2016. 

5. RENEWALS. That this Agreement may be renewed by the mutual agreement 
of the parties hereto, which shall be evidenced in writing. 

6. INDEMNIFICATION. That to the extent permitted by law, and subject to the 
limitations included within Florida Statutes Section 7 68.2 8, the Village of Virginia Gardens 
shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Miami Springs from any and all claims, 
liability, losses and causes of action arising out of the Village's negligence or other 
wrongful acts in the performance of this Agreement. However, nothing herein shall be 
deemed to indemnify the City for any liability or claims arising out of the negligence, 
performance, or lack of performance of the City. In addition, to the extent permitted by law, 
and subject to the limitations included within Florida Statutes Section 768.28 , the City of 
Miami Springs shall indemnity and save harmless the Village of Virginia Gardens from any 
and all claims, liability, losses and causes of action arising out of the City's negligence or 
other wrongful acts in the performance of this Agreement. However, nothing herein shall 
be deemed to indemnify the Village for any liability or claims arising out of the negligence, 
performance, or lack of performance of the Village. 

7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. That the parties, in the operation and 
interpretation of this Agreement, agree to comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
codes, rules and regulations of the federal , state and local governments. 

8. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION. That the obl igations and duties of the parties, 
pursuant to this Agreement, shall not be delegated or assigned, in whole or in part, to any 
other person or entity without the prior written consent of the nondelegating party. 

9. NON-DISCRIMINATION. That the parties agree that they will not discriminate 
as to race, sex, color, creed, national origin, age or disability in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement. 

10. APPLICABLE LAW. That this Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. The parties agree to be subject to the 
jurisdiction of the courts of Miami-Dade County, Florida and subject to service of process 
therein. Venue for any litigation arising out of or in connection with this Agreement shall be 
in Miami-Dade County, Florida. 

11. TERMINATION. That the parties mutually agree that this Agreement may be 
terminated by either party by providing written notice to the other party of its intention to 
terminate at lease sixty ( 60) days prior to the effective date of such termination. 

2 Interlocal Agreement 



• ' 

12. NOTIFICATION OF PARTIES. That all notices or other communications 
which shall or may be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
delivered by personal service, or by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to 
the other party at the address indicated herein, or as the same may be changed from time 
to time. Such notice shall be deemed given on the day on which personally served, or, if 
by mail, on the fifth day after being posted, or the date of actual receipt, whichever is 
earlier. 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Attn: Ronald K. Garland, City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 3 31 6 6 

VILLAGE OF VIRGINIA GARDENS 
Attn: Fred "Spencer" Deno IV, Mayor 
6498 NW 38th Terrace 
Virginia Gardens FL 3 316 6 

13. WAIVER OF NON-PERFORMANCE. That the failure of either party hereto to 
insist on performance or observance of any one or more conditions or covenants of this 
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of the future performance 
of any such covenants or condition, and either party's obligation with respect to such future 
performance shall continue in full force and effect. 

14. NUMBER/GENDER OF PARTIES. That the terms herein, contained, shall 
include the singular and / or plural, the masculine, the feminine, and/ or the neuter, 
wherever and whenever, the context so requires or admits. 

15. SEVERABILITY. That should any provision, paragraph, sentence, word, or 
phrase contained in this Agreement be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to 
be invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable under the laws of the State of Florida or the 
United States, such provision, paragraph, sentence, word, or phrase shall be deemed 
modified to the extent necessary in order to conform to such laws, or, if nonmodifiable, 
then same shall be deemed severable, and, in either event, the remaining terms and 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect. 

16. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. That this Agreement shall be binding upon 
and inure to the benefit of the parties herein, their heirs, executors, legal representatives, 
successors and assigns. 

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. That is Agreement and its attachments constitute the 
sole and only Agreement of the parties hereto. Any prior agreements, promises, 
negotiations, or representations not expressly set forth in this Agreement with respect to 
the subject matter of this Agreement are of no force or effect. 

18. AMENDMENTS. No amendments to this Agreement shall be binding on 
either party unless in writing and signed by both parties. 

19. ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS. That in the event that any litigation is 
instituted in regard to the enforcement or interpretation of the terms and conditions hereof, 
the prevailing party in such litigation shall be entitled to an award of all appropriate court 
costs, reasonable trial attorney's fees, and reasonable attorney's fees. 

3 Interlocal Agreement 



.. 

20. MUTUAL PREPARATION. That the parties to this Agreement have participated 
fully in its negotiation and preparation. Accordingly, this Agreement shall not be more 
strictly construed against either of the parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement by their 
respective proper officers duly authorized thereunto, the day and year first above written. 

ATTEST: 

SUZANNE S. HITAFFER, CMC 
Acting City Clerk 

ATTEST: 

Maritza Fernandez 
Village Clerk 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166 

BY: 
~~~~--~~~~~~~-------
RONALD K. GORLAND, City Manager 

VILLAGE OF VIRGINIA GARDENS 
6498 NW 38th Terrace 
Virginia Gardens FL 33166 

BY: 
--~~~~~~~~~~--~--FRED "SPENCER" DENO IV, Mayor 

0:\3\Contracts\l nterlocal Agreement with Virginia Gardens- Transportation Services- 20 13.doc 

4 Interloca.l Agreement 



I ' 

'· 

~! 
. "·.:.1'1 
10 lo o 
r .,.')~ • 
! -~ . ,. . . 

. ' 

·~:~~~; ~~~/ .-
~-::.. :.: : 

•. 

... ..... 

: ~ 

\~· . · . ... .. ' .. 

r·---·~ ~I ... ' .. · .. : ;... I ·-· 

. ._ .. -. 
'' '';'' ... 

. ~·- :..,;-.;. 

·.-

' • .. 

r . . 

..... ,:',.. 
-" 

I . 

I 
I 

il 
' I 

___l j 



Agenda Item No. 

City Council Meeting of: 

INTERGOVERMENTAL AGENCY AGREEMENT /,;2-tf- ;;HJ I J_ 
TO PERFORM TRAFFIC ENGINEERING FUNCTION 

THIS INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGENCY AGREEMENT TO PERFORM TRAFFIC 
ENGINEERING FUNCTIONS (AGREEMENT) made and entered into this __ day of 
----~'' 2013, by and between the CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA, a municipal 
corporation of the STATE OF FLORIDA, hereinafter referred to as the CITY, and MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY (COUNTY), a political subdivision of the STATE OF FLORIDA, MIAMI-DADE 
County. 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-96.1 of the Miami-Dade County Code, all traffic 
control and traffic engineering services in Miami-Dade County are under the exclusive 
jurisdiction of the COUNTY; and, 

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to assume the installation and maintenance 
responsibilities of certain traffic engineering functions pertaining to its local municipal streets 
only; and, 

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has determined that the CITY is both equipped and able to 
perform the traffic engineering functions as herein specified on its local streets; and, 

WHEREAS, the CITY has, by proper resolution attached hereto and by reference made 
a part hereof, authorized its officer(s) to enter into this AGREEMENT. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the CITY and the COUNTY agree as follows: 

1. The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The CITY will only install and maintain the following designated types of traffic 
control devices and only on those local municipal streets operated and maintained by the CITY 
within its boundaries: 

SEE ATTACHED DIAGRAM OF PEDESTRIAN 
ENHANCERS TO BE INSTALLED 

Traffic calming devices may be installed on local municipal streets only after an appropriate 
traffic engineering study has been performed and sealed and signed plans have been 
submitted to the Public Works and Waste Management Department of the COUNTY for its 
review and approval. 

3. The CITY shall attach a decal to the back of the sign panels indicating 
ownership and date of installation. 

4. The CITY assumes sole and complete responsibility for the maintenance of all 
such signs that are installed by the CITY within its boundaries. 

1 



5. The CITY assumes sole and complete liability for any accidents and/or injuries 
which may or are alleged to occur or arise out of the installation, operation or maintenance of 
said traffic control devices, and hereby indemnifies and saves harmless the COUNTY from any 
and all claims of negligence as a result of the installation, operation or maintenance of said 
signs. 

6. All traffic control signs installed by the CITY in accordance with this 
AGREEMENT shall conform to the applicable requirements established by the following 
publications: 

Florida Department of Transportations' Standard Specifications for Road and 
Bridge Construction. 

Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways, U.S. 
Department of Transportation Federal Highway Administration (ANSI D6.1e-
1989), including latest revisions. 

Standard Highway Signs, U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal 
Highway Administration. 

Miami-Dade County Public Works Manual (available from the Public Works 
and Waste Management Department, Reproduction Services, 111 NW 1 
Street, Suite 1604, Miami, FL 33128) 

7. For installation of traffic control devices, the CITY shall hire a COUNTY 
licensed contractor or perform the work in-house by the CITY Public Works crew. 

8. Should the CITY install street name signs at the same site where a stop-top 
street name exists, then the CITY shall utilize the other corners of the intersection. 
Subsequently, the CITY shall remove the COUNTY'S stop-top street narne signs by an 
approved sign contractor. All signs and hardware removed shall be dismantled and 
returned to the Traffic Signals and Signs Division of the COUNTY'S public Works and 
Waste Management Department. 

9. The CITY shall be responsible for keeping records of any and all installations 
and repairs, and furnishing pertinent documents as and when said records may be 
requested. 

10. Failure to carry out any of the duties and responsibilities assumed herein by 
the CITY may result in termination of this AGREEMENT, at the sole discretion of the 
COUNTY. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and the COUNTY have set their hands the day and year 
above written. 

2 



Attest: 

HARVEY RUVIN, CLERK 

By: __ =-~~--~~~-
County Deputy Clerk 

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 

Assistant County Attorney 

Attest: 

By: 
Suzanne S. Hitaffer, CMC 
Acting City Clerk 

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency: 

Jan K. Seiden 
City Attorney 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 

By: ____ ~--~-------
Deputy Mayor 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

By: __ =-~77~~--~
Ronald K. Garland 
City Manager 

0:\3\Contracts\lntergovernmental Agency Agreement- Miami-Dade County- Traffic Engineering Functions.doc 

3 



«; 

;..:> D;;.:;E;.;,T;.;;AI:;;;L , __ 
\ 

\ 

2 

\ 
\ 
\ 

,_ __ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 

FOR 
PEDESTRIANS 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

EXIST. R1-1 
ADD R3-2 

EXIST. HANDICAP 
SIGN TO REMAIN 

685-1-65A 

18"WHITE 

6"WHITE 

HERE 
2 :a& FOR 

PEDESTRIANS 

R1-5c (R) 

2' TO PUSH BUTTON 

'-__ 60.0"' 

!':PI IT 1!':1 ANn nFTAII 

EXIST. HANDICAP 
SIGN TO REMAIN 

NOTES: 

1.- REMOVE PI 

2.- CONSTRUC 
(AS PER FC 



RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3607 

Agenda Item No. 

City Council Meeting of: 

... -~~- ·- :Z0!3 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS REQUESTING THAT MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE CO-DESIGNATION OF THE 
100 TO 300 BLOCK OF CURTISS PARKWAY FRONTING THE 
GRACE LUTHERAN CHURCH AT 245 CURTISS PARKWAY AS 
"PASTOR SCHMIDT WAY"; REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 
FOR THE PLACEMENT OF PROPER RECOGNITION 
SIGNAGE; EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, Reverend Dr. Albert Schmidt was a pioneer resident of Miami Springs who 
founded Grace Lutheran Church in 1951, and contributed in many ways to the City's recreation 
program and the youth of the community; and, 

WHEREAS, upon the occasion of his death, the City Memorial Committee and the City 
Council have determined that it is both proper and appropriate to memorialize his contributions 
to the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council has authorized the City Manager to request that Miami
Dade County co-designate the 100 to 300 block of Curtiss Parkway fronting the Grace 
Lutheran Church at 245 Curtiss Parkway as "Pastor Schmidt Way": 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 

Section 1: That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby requests that 
Miami-Dade County approve and authorize the official co-designation of the 100 to 300 Block 
of Curtiss Parkway fronting the Grace Lutheran Church at 245 Curtiss Parkway as "Pastor 
Schmidt Way". 

Section 2: That the City Council of the City of Miami Springs hereby further requests 
that Miami-Dade County approve and authorize the placement of appropriate signage along 
this roadway area to properly notify all persons of the official recognition and co-designation of 
"Pastor Schmidt Way". 

Section 3: That the provisions of this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon 
adoption by the City Council. 

(THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

Resolution No. 2013-3607 

1 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, this 

9'h day of December, 2013. 

ATTEST: 

The motion to adopt the foregoing resolution was offered by 

_______ , seconded by ________ , and on 

roll call the following vote ensued: 

Vice Mayor Bain 
Councilman Windrem 
Councilman Lob 
Councilman Petralanda 
Mayor Garcia 

" " 
" " 
" " 
" " 
" " 

Zavier M. Garcia 
Mayor 

Suzanne S. Hitaffer, CMC 
Acting City Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 

Jan K. Seiden, Esquire 
City Attorney 

Resolution No. 2013-3607 

2 



Suzanne S. Hitaffer 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Jan Seiden <JSeiden@olsrhh.com> 
Tuesday, November 26, 2013 4:48 PM 
Suzanne S. Hitaffer 

Subject: 
Ron Gorland; William Alonso; Tom Nash; Mayor Zavier Garcia; Elora Sakal 
Re: Pastor Schmidt Way 

Suzy, go ahead and prepare the same resolution again, but with the new suggested addresses and put it back on the 
next agenda ..... with the manager's authorization. JKS 

Sent from my iPhone--JKS 

On Nov 26, 2013, at 2:56PM, "Suzanne S. Hitaffer" <hitaffers@miamisprings-fl.gov> wrote: 

Good afternoon, 

I just spoke with Vivian Castro (305.375.4696), Deputy Chief of Staff for Chairwoman Sosa regarding the 
co-designation for Pastor Schmidt Way. The County has an agreement with FOOT and they cannot co
designate a portion of a street. She said that the signage must be on a "mast arm" at an intersection. 

Marie Martinez with the County Public Works Department also called me regarding the signage 
(305.592.0831 x 271). She further clarified that they could co-designate Curtiss Parkway from the 100 
block to the 300 block, but not the portion at 245; there must be a beginning and an end, not the middle 
of the street. Her email is mariem@miamidade.gov. I mentioned that there is a similar sign for John 
Stadnik Way and she said that it might not be a sign that was approved by the County Commission. 

Ms. Castro and Ms. Martinez indicated that Council would have to adopt another resolution for Pastor 
Schmidt Way. 

Thanks, 

Suzie 

The City of Miami Springs is on Twitter and has a website MiamiSprings-FL.Gov 
Please save a tree. Don't print this e-mail unless it's really necessary. 

1 



TO: 

VIA: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
Planning & Zoning Department 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5034 
Fax: (305) 805-5036 

Agenda Item No. I 06 

City Council Meeting of: 

l.l.-1- ~ 13t1Jf 

Honorable Mayor Garcia an~!Y'jmbers of the City Council 

Ronald Garland, City Mana ei~ 
James H. Holland, Planning Zoning Direc't""---'rll 

December 5, 2013 

Application Fees for Variance Requests to Board of Adjustment and 
Board of Appeals 

The aforesaid fees were included in a general Planning, Zoning and Building permitting fee schedule, which 
was approved by Council on August 21,2012, after two workshop meetings on the subject. Respectively, the 
fees were set at $350.00 and $500.00 for residential and 600.00 for commercial. The previous fee for the Board 
of Adjustment and Board of Appeals was $100.00 for residential and $200.00 for commercial requests. 

The amount of the fees considered for variance and appeal requests was based on cost recovery. Six cities and 
Miami-Dade County were canvassed to ascertain a reasonable and logical basis for all fees. The results of this 
effort are summarized on the attached spreadsheet. The average fee for residential variance requests was 
$1,262.00 and l ,800.00 for commercial. Only three other jurisdictions have an appeal process to the governing 
body, Miami-Dade County, the Village of Pinecrest and Town of Miami Lakes. The averages were $1,033.00 
for residential and $1,550.00 for residential. 

It is doubtful that the $350 fees covers the costs involved, which is primarily staff time. The Administrative 
Assistant performs 17 clerical steps. The Planning and Zoning Director meets with the applicants, reviews the 
application, conducts a site visit, discusses the case with the City Attorney, promulgates a recommendation to 
the Board and attends and testifies at the Hearing. The City Attorney reviews the case and the recommendation 
and attends the hearing and advises the Board on legal matters. 

It is recommended that the present fees for variance requests remain the same. 

attachment 



Excerpts: August 6, 2012 Workshop meeting 

Planning & Zoning 

Agenda Item No. 

City Council M'etin-tfof: 
/.J. - 'l- t!)-al3 

City Planner Holland explained that he was asked to review fees that are collected and he found that 

some fees do not cover the actual cost. For example, the Board of Adjustment variance application fee 

is $100.00 and the cost is actually $250.00 per application and he ~ecorrlmends an increase to $300.00. ~ 
He also recommends an increase in the Zoning and Planning Board fee from $350.00 to $700.00 for 

commercial projects. There are frequent requests for zoning confirmation letters and the current fee is 

$25.00, while other cities typically charge $50.00. He added that the review of liquor license 

applications is currently $25.00, while the typical fee is $50.00 or $100.00. 

Mayor Garcia requested a list of the City Planner's fee recommendations showing the current and 

proposed fees, compared to other similar municipalities, for presentation at the next meeting. 

City Manager Gorland stated that revenues would be discussed separately and he asked all Department 

Heads to look at their fee basis and provide recommendations for increases. 

Councilwoman A tor asked for a comparison of three cities that are similar to Miami Springs. 



Excerpts: August 21, 2012 Workshop Meeting 

3- II. Zoning and Planning- Revised 

Mr. Alonso explained that the next fee change proposal from Zoning and Planning Director Holland is a 

recommendation based on a revenue analysis. 

Planning and Zoning Director James Holland said that Council asked to be provided with some 

comparisons from other municipalities and a spreadsheet is included in the packet that is based on 

seven other municipalities and some of the information was available online. The three types of 

conditions are fees that are presently assessed, fees that are not likely to occur but do not have 

provisions in the fee structure and the new fees. 

Mr. Holland discussed the conditions that are highly unlikely to occur, explaining that there should be 

some provision by resolution to accommodate the rezoning request, zoning code amendments, 

comprehensive plan amendments, modification or release of a covenant and a street or alley vacation 

fee. The recommended amounts are shown in the third column on the spreadsheet and each of them 

are showing no anticipated revenue at the present time. 

Mr. Holland explained that the other fees on the spreadsheet are presently assessed or fees that are not 

charged for. He discussed the fee changes for zoning variance requests for residential, commercial and 

buildings that are greater than 10,000 square feet for both residential and commercial. The variance and 

site plan appeals are currently $100 for residential and $200 for commercial and he is proposing to ~ 
change the fee t().$500 for residential and $600 for commercial. 

Mr. Holland discussed the Zoning and Planning Board fees and stated that there is currently a provision 

for a $1,000 fee that only applies to plats and not site plans. The proposal is $2,000 for residential and 

$2,500 for commercial. The residential would come in the form of a subdivision development or a 

condominium project and he does not anticipate any ofthose within the next year. 

Mr. Holland said that he does anticipate a few site plans including AirBus with a site plan modification 

and one of the hotels proposed on the Abraham Tract. He reiterated that the proposal for the 

commercial properties is $2,500 which will generate $5,000 in revenue. 

There are currently two types of zoning verifications which are for liquor authorizations and zoning 

verifications and there is presently no charge for these services, according to Mr. Holland. The proposal 

for the liquor license is based on the type of license. The first license is the 2 APS license for no alcohol 

consumption on premises for a proposed fee of $160. 

Mr. Holland stated that the A 2 COP license for on site consumption has a proposed fee increase of $200 

and the 4 COP license for nightclubs has a proposed fee of $450. 

1 



Mr. Holland added that another type of verification that is sent out is a letter for zoning of the property 

and there is currently no charge. The proposed fee is $150 for residential and $200 for commercial. He 

commented that another service that is frequently requested for which the department does not charge 

is the determination of the FEMA flood elevation. 

Mr. Holland explained that the zoning review fee is charged by all other municipalities in the areas that 

he canvassed. The comparisons were based on information from Miami-Dade County, Coral Gables, 

South Miami, Pinecrest, Miami Lakes, Palmetto Bay and Doral. Based on an average, he made an 

assumption because most fees are based on a certain number of cents per square foot. 

Mr. Holland commented that Palmetto Bay charges a percentage of the total permit fee which is 6% 

with a minimum and a maximum for both residential and commercial properties. Dora I does not charge 

a zoning review fee and instead they charge a zoning inspection fee which is $75. Miami Lakes is one of 

the jurisdictions that have a flat fee of $100 for each plan review for both residential and commercial. 

His proposals for the zoning review fee for residential is $100 and $200 for commercial, which is 

expected to bring in revenue of approximately $80,000. 

Mr. Holland estimated that 1,200 building permits are processed per year and 60% of these permits 

require zoning approval and that is the basis to generate the total revenue. There is a plus item on the 

zoning fee and the proposal is that there be a rework fee in the amount of 50% of the original fee for 

plans that have been denied twice. 

Mr. Holland explained that another plus item is relative to the liquor licenses. In certain instances a 

covenant applies to the 2 COP and 4 COP licenses requiring that 51% of revenue be from food service. 

This covenant is required and there would be an optional fee of $250 for preparation of the covenant or 

the applicant could go to their attorney and have it prepared. The increases and new fees would total 

approximately a little less than $100,000 a year. 

Councilwoman Ator asked what the dates for the current revenue are based on and Mr. Holland replied 

that it is projected through this fiscal year. The revenue for last year was about the same as this fiscal 

year. 

Councilwoman Ator stated that she was surprised that in South Miami they charged $3,000 for 

residential zoning variances and she believes that the proposed $350 seems like a lot as well. 

Mr. Holland commented that $350 is approximately the present cost in order to offset the cost for staff 

time, printing, and the processing time. 

To answer Mayor Garcia's question, Mr. Holland responded that a rezoning request would be a present 

fee of $500, whether or not it is residential or commercial and proposals go to $3,000 and $6,000 which 

is in keeping with the communities that were canvassed in the County. 

2 



Councilwoman Ator asked how the other Counties handle their mailing and publication fees and Mr. 

Holland replied that most are based on cost recovery. He noted that in the Village of Pinecrest the 

applicant is responsible for the mailing charge to notify the people in the affected area of the zoning 

variance. 

Councilwoman Ator asked if Miami Springs requires that the letter go to the entire City or just the 

affected area and Mr. Holland responded that the letter goes to residents in the abutting property. 

There is a provision in the Charter relative to rezoning that he believes can be done by publication in the 

newspaper or it can be done by the electorate. 

Councilwoman Ator explained that the additional burden is being placed on the applicant because they 

are responsible for sending the notice to the entire City rather than sending it to the people who are in 

the affected area so the true cost is not actually reflected on the chart. 

Mr. Holland stated that there is a significant labor cost as well though the state law has been somewhat 

emasculated there is still a procedure that has to be followed that does require a lot of staff time. 

Councilwoman Ator asked when the last time was that the City had a rezoning request and Mr. Holland 

replied that he was uncertain but it may have been with the proposal from Mr. Pi no for the property 

along Curtiss Parkway. 

Mayor Garcia asked if Mr. Holland could have all of his recommendations for his fees red lined and 

brought to the next meeting for Council and Mr. Holland replied in agreement. 

3 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 

PLANNING AND ZONING 
DEPARTMENT 

201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5289 

Olty Council Meeting of: Phone: (305) 805-5034 

Agenda Item No. 3ll. 

(J --:tJ ~J<UJ., ' ' 

MEMORANDUM 
0 ·. ~- (J05)81J5.503<l 

To: 
Via: 
From: 

Date: 

Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
Ronald Gorland, City Manag r .. .../ 
James H. Holland, AICP 
Planning and Zoning Director 
August 17, 2012 

RECOMMENDATION: REVENUE ANALYSIS & FEE INCREASES 

The attached spreadsheet serves as an analysis of the Planning and Zoning fees 
assessed by the City of Miami Springs relative to other local jurisdictions. It also 
contains a recommendation of fee increases and new fees for the upcoming 
Fiscal Year. 

The fees which are presently assessed are limited to those fees for Board of 
Adjustment and Zoning and Planning Board (plats only) considerations, appeals 
to the decisions thereof, and rezoning requests. Recommended fee increases 
for these items are likely to generate an additional $11.350.00 of revenues within 
the next Fiscal Year. 

Certain proposed new fees are for services currently provided, but are not legally 
assessed. These include zoning Verification letters, zoning verification pursuant 
to liquor licenses, and Flood Zone determination letters. Recommended fees for 
these items are likely to generate an additional $5.200.00 of revenues during the 
next Fiscal Year. 

The greatest generator of new revenues is the recommended fee for the zoning 
review of plans submitted for building permits. The City issues approximately 
1200 building permits per year. Approximately 2/3 of these are reviewed by 
zoning; of these reviews, approximately 75% are for residential projects, while 
25% are for commercial projects. The recommended amount of zoning review 
fees is $100.00 for residential permits and $200.00 for commercial permits. 
These amounts are less than the mean amount assessed by the canvassed 
municipalities. This fee has the potential for generating $80,000.00 of new 
revenues per year. 



Other new fees are proposed which are unlikely to generate any new revenues 
within the next Fiscal Year, but may do so in the future. These include fees for 
Comprehensive Plan amendments, Zoning Code amendments, Modification or 
release of Covenants, and street or alley vacation. 

The total proposed fees within Fiscal Year 2012-2013 are likely to be just under 
$100,000.00 ($99,750). This represents an increase of Planning and Zoning 
fees of $97,350.00 

Attachment 



PLANNING AND ZONING FEES 

MIAMI SPRINGS CJ FEETYPE CURRENT OJRRENT PROPOSED PROPOSED REVENUE 
FEE REVENUE FEE REVENUE INCREASE 

STREET OR ALLEY VACATION 0 0 4000 0 0 

ZONING VERIFICATION {UQUOR UCENSE) 

2APS 0 0 160+ 800 0 
2COP 0 0 200. 1000 1000 
4COP 0 0 450. 450 450 

u 
TOTAL 2400 99,750.00 97,350.00 

OTHER JURISDICTIONS 
MIAMI- CORAL SOUTH PINECREST MIAMI 
DADE CO. GABLES MIAMI lAKES 

3000 5000 

81 200 125 
161 250 125 

388 1000 125 

P'MffiO DORAL 

BAY 

225 
225 

225 

AVERAGE 

4000 

158 
190 
435 

NOTES 

i j 

; I 



Excerpts: 9-10-2012 City Council Regular Meeting 

10F) Resolution No. 2012-3559- A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Miami Springs 
Amending the Current "Schedule of Charges" for Building, Plumbing, Electrical, Mechanical and Other 
Related Permit Charges or Fees; Effective Date 

City Attorney Jan K. Seiden read the resolution by title. 

Attorney Seiden stated that this item also has the Exhibit A and B attachments. 

Councilman Best moved to adopt the resolution. Vice Mayor Lob seconded the motion, which was 
carried 3-2 on roll call vote with Councilwoman A tor and Mayor Garcia casting the dissenting votes. 



PLANNING AND ZONING FEES 

(1) Zoning and Planning Board Application Fees 
(Sec. 150-103) Residential I ,000.00 <2,000.011*> 

Commercial <2500.110*> 
*Plus costs of recovery 

(2) Petition for Zoning Change (Sec. 150-104) ... 
Residential <3,111111.00*> 
Commercial <6,000.00*> 

*Plus actual accosts of mailing and publication 
(3) Applications for Variances (Sec. 150-112) 

Miniminn.Fee (Residential) ... 100.00 <350;00> .. 
Minimum Fee (Commercial) ... 200.00 <350.00> 
Building Projects under $10,000 ... 150.00 <400.00> 
Building Projects over $10,000 
in value (Residential) ... 250.00 <500.00> 

Building Projects over $10,000 
in value (Commercial) ... 500.00 <1,000.00> 

/"-..,.._ 

f \ 
\.._,) 

(4) Appeals from Denials of Variance Applications 

(Sec. 150-111) , Residential , .lOOcOO <500.00> 
Commercial 200.00 <600.00> 

(5) Zoning-Permit Review Fee Residential <100.011*> 
Commercial <200.00*> 

*Plus 50% of fee for rework after second disapproval 
(6) ·Zoning Code Ammendments Residential <4,2511.011> 

Commercial <4,250.011> 
(7) Comp Plan Ammendments <5,000.00*> 

*Plus cost recovery including consultants 
(8) Modification or Release of Covenant <500.00> 
(9) Street or Alley Vacation Application <4,000.00> 
(10) Zoning Verification (Liquor License) 

2APS <160.00*> 
2COP <200.00*> 
4COP <450.00*> 

/·--,\ 

(__j 13 FEE SCHEDULE 



*Plus $250.00 for preparation of covenant if applicalble (Optional) 
(H) Zoning Verification-Other Residential <150.00> 

· Commercial <200.00> 
(12) FIRM Rate Map Determination Ornrrent <50.00> 

. Historic <75.00> 

G> TREE RELATED FEES 

(1) TREE REMOVAL APPLICATION <$35.011> 

H> SERVICES NOT SPECIFIED IN FEE SCHEDULE 

The Building Department reserves the right to establish an appropriate fee for any service 
or item not otherwise provided for in this Schedule of Fees in accordance with the normal and 
customary charges and fees established by other jurisdictions for such services and items, but, 
however, subject to final determination by the City Building Official. All permits with a Market Value 
for the job in excess of $2,000 shall be charged at the percentage rate for New Constrnction or 
Alterations/Repairs and! not on the line item basis. 

14 FEE SCHEDULE 



CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
City Manager 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: (305) 805-5010 
Fax: (305) 805-5040 

Agenda ltem No. ICJF 

City Council Meeting of: 

/;A-?-~p tffJ 

TO: Honorable Mayor Garcia an mbers of the City Council 

FROM: Ron Garland, City Manage r 
DATE: December 4, 2013 

SUBJECT: Circle Closure Discussion 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Due to concerns voiced by Circle area business owners regarding the financial impact to 
their business of Circle closings, I arn recommending the following procedure for Council 
consideration: 

Circle Closing Guidelines 

1. No more than 5 full closures (ex. River Fest., Christmas at the Gazebo, 2 Car Shows, 
1 Optimist fund-raiser and 5 partial closings allowed annually 

2. Partial/Full Circle closings will be done for major events expecting attendance of 1,000 
or more 

3. Except for the annual 3 day River Fest and the Christmas at the Gazebo, no closing 
will last for more than 5 hours 

4. Circle area rentals and Circle area events will not normally include Circle closing 
5. Events such as the BBQ cook-off, Pumpkin Patch, Relay for Life and Farmer's market 

will be encouraged to move to Curtiss Pkwy median areas 

Any exceptions to the preceding must be approved by Council. 



To: 

Miami Springs 
Police Department . 

Memorandum 

From: 

Ronald K. Gorland, City Manager ~ 

Peter G. Baan, Chief of Police ~ P- ). 
Subject: Curtiss Circle Event Closures 

Date: 07/19/2013 

For the past several years, the number of Circle closures to accommodate special events has been 
increasing. Depending on several factors, the extent and duration of each closure is adjusted. 
The requirement for police service at these events is also adjusted to comply with the particulars 
of the event. 

Three basic types of closures have been utilized at special events on the Circle. They were 
designed to insure pedestrian safety, promote the smooth flow of traffic and minimize impact on 
surrounding businesses. They are: 

• Full Circle closure, including closure of the incoming bridge 
• Partial closure, with the incoming bridge and northbound Curtiss Pkwy remaining open 
• Circle inner lane closure 

The factors that affect the type of closure are as follows: 

• Type of event 
• Number of patrons/participants 
• Number of vendors/displays/attractions 
• Time of day and day of the week 
• Details of food/beverage service 

To date, the safety record at Circle events has been excellent. This can be attributed to the prior 
planning involved and the efforts of the event staff and police personnel at the various events. 
Since each event brings its own specific set of safety and security requirements, I recommend 
that the number of Police personnel required and the extent of the closure for each event be 
based on an evaluation by the Police Administrative Staff. The evaluation will be conducted 
upon the submission of an event application including the details of each event. 

Attachments 

1 



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Miami Springs Police Department 
201 Westward Drive 

Miami Springs, FL 33166 

Memorandum 

Peter G. Baan, Chief of Police 

Lieutenant Steve Carlisle ).C~ 
Circle Closures 

July 16, 2013 

Per your request, here is a list of dates and manpower requirements for events held on 
Curtiss -Circle that required any type of lane- closure: The iilfotD:J.atiort dates back
approximately three years and was obtained from files for past events and special event 
applications. The listed events may not be all inclusive and some events such as the 
River Cities Festival have been taking place for decades. 

Explanation of types of closures: 

Full Closure: All roads leading to the circle area are closed to vehicular traffic and 
diverted to perimeter streets. This includes the incoming bridge and northbound Curtiss 
Parkway. This is the closure utilized for the River Cities Festival. 

Car Show Closure: This is the most popular type of closure used for circle events. The 
incoming bridge remains open but traffic is diverted at Canal Street and prevented from 
entering the circle. Northbound Curtiss Parkway also remains open, however all traffic is 
diverted to the outgoing bridge or South Royal Poinciana Blvd. All other roads entering 
the circle are closed and traffic is diverted to perimeter streets. 

Inner Lane Closure: Traffic cones are placed along the inner lane of the circle as a traffic 
buffer and to slow vehicular traffic around the circle. Police officers or PSA' s are 
utilized to stop traffic and allow pedestrians to safely cross the streets to enter the circle 
area. This type of closure is used for events held within the confmes of the circle itself 
such as Movie Night. 



Events: 

January 11, 2011, Heart and Soul Music Festival 4pm-llpm 
Car Show Circle Closure 2 Officers I Off Duty 

January 13,2012, 
Car Show Closure 

January 21, 2012 
Car Show Closure 

February 22, 2011 
Car Show Closure 

February 14, 2011 
Car Show Closure 

March 9, 2013 
Car Show Closure 

March 23,2013 
Inner Lane Closure 

March 30, 2013 
Car Show Closure 

April (Dates Vary) 
Full Circle Closure 

Alexander Markov Concert 
2 Officers I Overtime 

Optimist Club Bar B Q 
2 Officers I Off-Duty 

Optimist Club Bar B Q 
2 Officers I Off Duty 

Valentines Day Jazz Concert 
2 Officers/ Off Duty 

Optimist Club BarB Q 
2 Officers/ Off Duty 

Earth Hour I MSSH Anchor Club 
2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

Zavier Garcia Re-Election Party 
3 Officers I Off Duty 

6:30pm-9:30pm 

7am-9pm 
2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

7am-7pm 
2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

(Exact Time Unknown) 
2 PSA's I Schedule Change) 

7am-9pm 
2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

8:30pm-9:30pm 

llam-4pm 

River Cities Festival Three Day Event 
Numerous Officers I Various Agencies 

April27 & 28, 2013 American Cancer Society I Cancer Walk 12pm-6am 
Car Show Closure 3 Officers I Overtime 2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

May 5 & 6, 2012 
Car Show Closure 

May29,2009 
Car Show Closure 

June 8, 2013, 
Car Show Closure 

American Cancer Society I Cancer Walk 7am-10am (27 Hrs.) 
6 Officers I Overtime 2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

sunnnertime on The Circle 7pm-llpm 
2 Officers I Overtime 

Optimist Club Fishing Tournament 2pm-9pm 
2 Officers I Off Duty 2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

July 3, 2011-2013 JumpinJack Car Show Spm-llpm 
Car Show Closure 2 Officers I Overtime 2 PSA's I Schedule Change 
Note: 2013 closure expanded to full circle closure at last minute due to number of 
vehicles. 



July 6, 2011 Optimist Club Fishing Tournament 12pm-11pm 
Car Show Closure 2 Officers I Off Duty 2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

July 14,2012 Optimist Club Fishing Tournament 1pm-11pm 
Car Show Closure 2 Officers I Off Duty 2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

August 27, 2011 
Car Show Closure 

Miami Springs 85th Birthday Party 3pm-11 pm 
7 Officers I Overtime 

October 1, 2011 
Inner Lane Closure 

Kids Karaoke Contest 12pm-3pm 
2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

October 8, 2011 
Car Show Closure 

American Cancer Society Cancer Walk 
4 Motor Officers I Overtime 

7am-11am 

December (Dates Vary) 
Car Show Closure 
(Yearly Event) 

December {Dates Vary) 
Car Show Closure 
(Yearly Event) 

Christmas on the Circle 
2 Officers I Overtime 

. JumpinJackCarShow 
2 Officers I Overtime 

4pm-11pm 
2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

Spm-llpm 
2 PSA's I Schedule Change 

December (Dates Vary) Iglesia Bautista Sion Church 6pm-9pm 
Inner Lane Closure 2 PSA's I Schedule Change 
(Christmas Carols, Yearly Event) 

2010 Thru 2012 
November to March Movie Night on the Circle 6:30pm-11 :30pm 
Inner Lane Closure 3 Officers I Off Duty 
(Third Friday of Each Month) 



Extra Duty at Milam's Market- 80 Curtiss Parkway 

2008- Nothing Found 

2009- Nothing Found 

2010 
· 11/24/10 Charlene Navarro 
12/24/10 Charlene Navarro 
12/31/10 Cheryl Mulet 

2011 
11/23/11 Jorge Pacheco 
12/24/11 Janice Simon 

2012 
4/13/12 Robert Castillo 
4/14/12 Andrew Sacasas 
11/21/12 Charlene Navarro 
12/24/12 Charlene Navarro 

2013 
4/5/13 Jorge Capote 
4/6/13 Jorge Capote 



-:J_.<;t/t-' 

fsg· 
11-r1· t1 

2008- Nothing Found 

2009- Nothing Found 

11/24/10 Charlene Navarro 
12/24/10 Charlene Navarro 
12/31/10 Cheryl Mulet 

11/23/11 Jorge Pacheco 
12/24/11 Janice Simon 

4/13/12 Robert Castillo 
4/14/12 Andrew Sacasas 
11/21/12 Charlene Navarro 
12/24/12 Charlene Navarro 

4/5/13 Jorge Capote 
4/6/13 Jorge Capote 

Milam's Market- 80 Curtiss Parkway 

:;i (?I! j 1! "l !:,> (?..I~(!. R 

"" ,. ( 
., 

?' ~ l<etJ Lv "'''' 
' 

~(Pf'Tti•, £~ n· 
.!J>ll_ p;;;._ ~-.;t_$-'-·'1J.. ~: tu /1- s-· 

'"c I"' s ·P~' j /Vr ~ 
" 

-R, ; '/ (5! {~ p::: GP 'i,,{"f i t/.-4 t,~. ,, ,, 

A- i;;;, \ i '" r ,, I{ '"'"'' c.' d 
.f);;;r 7•"·t<·-~.A- 1.>.'.~ 



Ron Gorland 

From: 
Sent: 

Jim Borgmann [jgatormann@gmail.com] 
Friday, July 26, 2013 9:32 PM 

To: Ron Garland 
Subject: Fwd: RE: Circle Closings 

From Donna ..... . 

---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: "Miami Springs Airport Area Chamber of Commerce" <msaacc@live.com> 
Date: Jul26, 2013 12:52 PM 
Subject: RE: Circle Closings 
To: "Jim Borgmann" <jgatormann(G)gmail.com> 
Cc: 

Firsthand ... Johnny's business is significantly compromised, M Salon has expressed dismay, as 
well as Dharma, Burritoville, Hair by Ingrid (a new business in the Arcade), and, according to one 
of their employees, Big Tomato is also adversely affected. Part of the complaint seems to be 
the early closing on a Saturday for an evening event ..... 

dwb 

Donna Wood-Beney 

MIAMI SPRINGS/ AIRPORT AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 

PO BOX 660123 MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33266 305-508-8080 msaacc.com 

CoVIA.V~A-ev-ce, AVLC!HOV\,, I 11\,otu.stv-1::1 .... CV\111 V~A-bev- MeV~A-bev-.sV!Lp Is Cjooot "B.U.SLV\,e.s.s! 

Date: Thu, 25 Jul2013 17:28:33 -0400 
Subject: Fwd: Circle Closings 
From: jgatormann@gmail.com 
To: msaacciallive.com 

Donna, have you heard anything? 
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: "Ron Garland" <gorlandr@miamisprings-fl.gov> 
Date: Jul24, 2013 9:02AM 
Subject: Circle Closings 

1 



Agenda Item No. I/ ft 

City Council Meeting of: 

Excerpts: 10-14-2013 City Council Regular Meeting 
I~-'!- C}-tJ J 3 

101) Consideration of Scheduling a Workshop or Special Meeting to Address Proposed Changes to 
the City Code of Ordinances 

City Manager Gorland read the memo in its entirety. 

Vice Mayor Bain moved to schedule a Code Workshop meeting after the first regular meeting in 
January 2014. Councilman Lob seconded the motion. 

Mayor Garcia requested that City Manager Gorland provide a list to Council of his recommended 
changes. 

The Administration will bring back an updated list of codes to be revised prior to the meeting. 

Mr. Ziadie commented that the most critical of the codes is commercial vehicles. 

Discussion ensued regarding an issue with someone leaving trash in the swale area of the tennis court. 
Mayor Garcia asked the Administration to install a sign in that area advising the residents to not put 
trash in the swale. 

City Attorney Seiden commented that Council needs to have a discussion on whether they believe there 
is an issue with signage and what they would be willing to allow and not allow. 

The motion was carried 5-0 on roll call vote. 


	Agenda
	5A - CCRM - 11-12-13
	6A - 11-19-13 - EAB - Minutes
	6B - 12-02-13 - Z&P - CN
	6C - 12-02-13 - BOA - CN
	6D - 12-03-13 - Code Enforcement - CN
	7A - Ord. No. 1060-2013
	8A - City Attorney's Invoice
	8B - Wrangler Construction Inc.
	8C - South Florida Maintenance
	8D - Greens Grade Services, Inc.
	8E - Southern Waste Systems
	8F - US Lubricants LLC
	8G - ITC Group
	9A - Pending Board Appointments
	9B - Boat Ramp Discussion
	9C - Springs on the Green LLC
	10A - EAB Recommendation
	10B - VG Agreement
	10C - Agreement - Traffic Engineering Functions
	10D - Reso. No. 2013-3607
	10E - Variance and Appeals Fees
	10F - Circle Closure Discussion
	11A - Scheduling of Workshop Meeting



